
             NOTICE

              OF

MEETING

BERKSHIRE PENSION FUND PANEL

will meet on

MONDAY, 23RD SEPTEMBER, 2019
at

5.00 pm

In

ASCOT AND BRAY - TOWN HALL, MAIDENHEAD 

TO: MEMBERS OF THE BERKSHIRE PENSION FUND PANEL

COUNCILLORS DAVID HILTON (VICE-CHAIRMAN), JULIAN SHARPE 
(CHAIRMAN), JOHN STORY, SIMON BOND AND WISDOM DA COSTA 

ADVISORY MEMBERS: MARK BUTCHER, CLLR LAW, CLLR JO LOVELOCK 
(READING), CLLR BALVINDER S. BAINS (SLOUGH), CLLR  JOHN KAISER 
(WOKINGHAM), CLLR  IAN LEAKE (BRACKNELL FOREST), PATRICK FULLER 
AND ASIA ALLISON

Karen Shepherd – Service Lead Governance.  Issued: 13/09/2019

Members of the Press and Public are welcome to attend Part I of this meeting.

The agenda is available on the Council’s web site at www.rbwm.gov.uk or contact the 
Panel Administrator  

Accessibility - Members of the public wishing to attend this meeting are requested to notify the clerk in advance of any accessibility 
issues. Fire Alarm - In the event of the fire alarm sounding or other emergency, please leave the building quickly and calmly by the 
nearest exit. Do not stop to collect personal belongings and do not use the lifts. Do not re-enter the building until told to do so by a 
member of staff. Recording of Meetings –In line with the council’s commitment to transparency the public part of the meeting will 
be audio recorded, and may also be filmed and broadcast through the online application Periscope. If filmed, the footage will be 
available through the council’s main Twitter feed @RBWM or via the Periscope website. The audio recording will also be made 
available on the RBWM website, after the meeting. Filming, recording and photography of public Council meetings may be 
undertaken by any person attending the meeting. By entering the meeting room you are acknowledging that you may be audio or 
video recorded and that this recording will be in the public domain. If you have any questions regarding the council’s policy,
please speak to the Democratic Services or Legal representative at the meeting.

Public Document Pack

http://www.rbwm.gov.uk/
http://www.rbwm.gov.uk/


AGENDA

PART I
ITEM SUBJECT PAGE 

NO

1.  APOLOGIES

To receive any apologies for absence. 
 

2.  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

To receive any declarations of interest. 
 

5 - 6

3.  MINUTES

To approve the Part I minutes of the meeting held on 11 March 2019.
 

7 - 10

4.  TERMS OF REFERENCE

To note the term of reference. 
 

11 - 14

5.  PENSION FUND PANELS WORK-PLAN

To consider the report.
 

15 - 18

6.  APPROVAL OF ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2018/19

To consider the report.
 

19 - 158

7.  INTERNAL AUDIT REPORT – PENSIONS AND PAYROLL AND 
ADMINISTRATION

To consider the report.
 

159 - 166

8.  RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY AND RISK ASSESSMENT REGISTER

To consider the report.
 

167 - 190

9.  ADMINISTRATION REPORT

To consider the report. 
 

191 - 202

10.  LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS 
AND PUBLIC

To consider passing the following resolution:-
“That under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the public
be excluded from the remainder of the meeting whilst discussion takes place
on the grounds that it involves the likely disclosure of exempt information as
defined in Paragraphs 1-7 of part I of Schedule 12A of the Act"
 

-



PART II - PRIVATE MEETING

ITEM SUBJECT PAGE 
NO

11.  MINUTES 

To approve the Part II minutes of the meeting held on 11 March 2019 and to 
note the Part II minutes of the Investment Working Group meeting of 11 
March 2019.

(Not for publication by virtue of Paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 
12A of the Local Government Act 1972)

203 - 206

12.  INVESTMENT PERFORMANCE UPDATE–LPPI 

To consider the report.

(Not for publication by virtue of Paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 
12A of the Local Government Act 1972)

207 - 220





 
MEMBERS’ GUIDE TO DECLARING INTERESTS IN MEETINGS  

 
Disclosure at Meetings 
 
If a Member has not disclosed an interest in their Register of Interests, they must make the declaration of 
interest at the beginning of the meeting, or as soon as they are aware that they have a DPI or Prejudicial 
Interest. If a Member has already disclosed the interest in their Register of Interests they are still required to 
disclose this in the meeting if it relates to the matter being discussed.   
 
A member with a DPI or Prejudicial Interest may make representations at the start of the item but must not 
take part in the discussion or vote at a meeting. The speaking time allocated for Members to make 
representations is at the discretion of the Chairman of the meeting.  In order to avoid any accusations of taking 
part in the discussion or vote, after speaking, Members should move away from the panel table to a public area 
or, if they wish, leave the room.  If the interest declared has not been entered on to a Members’ Register of 
Interests, they must notify the Monitoring Officer in writing within the next 28 days following the meeting.  

 
Disclosable Pecuniary Interests (DPIs) (relating to the Member or their partner) include: 
 

 Any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on for profit or gain. 

 Any payment or provision of any other financial benefit made in respect of any expenses occurred in 
carrying out member duties or election expenses. 

 Any contract under which goods and services are to be provided/works to be executed which has not been 
fully discharged. 

 Any beneficial interest in land within the area of the relevant authority. 

 Any licence to occupy land in the area of the relevant authority for a month or longer. 

 Any tenancy where the landlord is the relevant authority, and the tenant is a body in which the relevant 
person has a beneficial interest. 

 Any beneficial interest in securities of a body where:  
a) that body has a piece of business or land in the area of the relevant authority, and  
b) either (i) the total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 or one hundredth of the total issued 
share capital of that body or (ii) the total nominal value of the shares of any one class belonging to the 
relevant person exceeds one hundredth of the total issued share capital of that class. 

 
Any Member who is unsure if their interest falls within any of the above legal definitions should seek advice 
from the Monitoring Officer in advance of the meeting. 
 
A Member with a DPI should state in the meeting: ‘I declare a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in item x 
because xxx. As soon as we come to that item, I will leave the room/ move to the public area for the 
entire duration of the discussion and not take part in the vote.’ 
 
Or, if making representations on the item: ‘I declare a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in item x because xxx. 
As soon as we come to that item, I will make representations, then I will leave the room/ move to the 
public area for the entire duration of the discussion and not take part in the vote.’ 
 
Prejudicial Interests 
 
Any interest which a reasonable, fair minded and informed member of the public would reasonably believe is so 
significant that it harms or impairs the Member’s ability to judge the public interest in the item, i.e. a Member’s 
decision making is influenced by their interest so that they are not able to impartially consider relevant issues.   
 
A Member with a Prejudicial interest should state in the meeting: ‘I declare a Prejudicial Interest in item x 
because xxx. As soon as we come to that item, I will leave the room/ move to the public area for the 
entire duration of the discussion and not take part in the vote.’ 
 
Or, if making representations in the item: ‘I declare a Prejudicial Interest in item x because xxx. As soon as 
we come to that item, I will make representations, then I will leave the room/ move to the public area for 
the entire duration of the discussion and not take part in the vote.’ 
 
Personal interests 
 
Any other connection or association which a member of the public may reasonably think may influence a 
Member when making a decision on council matters.  
 

Members with a Personal Interest should state at the meeting: ‘I wish to declare a Personal Interest in item x 
because xxx’. As this is a Personal Interest only, I will take part in the discussion and vote on the 
matter. 5

Agenda Item 2



This page is intentionally left blank



BERKSHIRE PENSION FUND PANEL

MONDAY, 11 MARCH 2019

PRESENT: Councillors John Lenton (Chairman), Malcolm Alexander, Richard 
Kellaway and David Hilton (Vice-Chairman).

Advisory Members: Councillor Worrall, Councillor Brooker and Mr Butcher.

Officers: Philip Boyton, David Cook and Kevin Taylor. Local Pension Partnership 
(LPP) representatives Chris Rule, Richard J. Tomlinson and Kevin Parkin.  Andrew 
Harrison, Law Debenture.  Investment Group Rohan Worrall and Aoifinn Devitt.    

APOLOGIES 

Apologies for absence were received by Cllr Law and Cllr Jarvis.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

Councillor Brooker declared a personal interest on the agenda as he was a governor for 
schools that paid into the pension fund, as this was not a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest he 
stayed and considered the items.

MINUTES 

Resolved unanimously: that the Part I minutes of the meeting held on 14 January 2019 
were approved as a true and correct record. 

PENSION FUND PANEL WORKPLAN 2018-19 

The Deputy Pension Fund Manager introduced the report that requested that the Panel 
considered a number of Administering Authority policy statements as set out in the work-plan 
for 2018/19, approved previously by Members.

Members considered the items listed in appendix 1; Funding Strategy Statement,
Investment Strategy Statement and the  Pension Fund Business Plan 2019-20.

Resolved unanimously:  That Panel notes the report and:

i) Approved the policy statements set out in Appendix 1 to the report
having put forward any suggested amendments to those policy
documents.

ii) Requested that officers produce and publish the approved policy
statements on the Berkshire Pension Fund website.

ABATEMENT OF RETIREMENT PENSION DURING RE-EMPLOYMENT 

The Deputy Pension Fund Manager introduced the report regarding the possible reduction or 
suspension of a Local Government Pension on account of further employment within Local 
Government after a Scheme member had become entitled to receive their retirement benefits.

The Panel were informed that as the policy had not been considered for a while it had been 
added as a separate item rather than being updated under the work programme.   Regulations 
had been updated so this needed to be reflected in the policy.

7

Agenda Item 3



The Panel were informed that until 31 March 1998 abatement was mandatory but between 1 
April 1998 and 31 March 2014 it became discretionary and an Administering Authority was still 
required to issue a statutory policy as to how it will apply the abatement rules.  Since 2002, the 
Administering Authority has adopted a policy not to apply abatement, reasons detailed within 
the report.

In response to questions the Panel were informed that the cost implications of not changing 
the policy were minimal and the majority of LGPF’s did not apply abatement.  

Resolved unanimously: That Panel notes the report and:

i) Agrees to maintain its policy not to apply the abatement rules in
any circumstance.

ii) Approves the updated policy statement in Appendix 1 to the report.

iii) Requests that officers produce and publish the approved policy on
the Berkshire Pension Fund website.

ADMINISTRATION REPORT 

The Pension Administration Manager introduced the latest report that dealt with the 
administration of the Pension Fund for the period 1 October 2018 to 31 December 2018.

The Panel were informed that appendix 1 showed that deferred membership in the unitary 
authorities outnumbered active members mainly due to the increased outsourcing of services.  
Section 1.4, Scheme Employer Key Performance Indicators, showed the benefits of having i-
Connect.  Bracknell Forest and Slough Borough councils had gone live with i-Connect since 
the agenda had been published. All other administrative indicators were on target. 

The Panel also received an update on special projects including the following:

-  i-Connect – 70% of scheme members were currently using i-Connect.
- GMP Reconciliation - With the removal of the contracted-out nature of public service 

pension schemes the Pension Fund entered into a period of reconciliation against 
DWP records.

- Wokingham Schools – Selima.  Wokingham BC’s contract with Selima runs out on 31 
March 2019 with a new external payroll provider being appointed from 1 April 2019. 
Work is already underway with the new provider to on-board i-Connect by 31 May 
2019.

The Chairman thanked the administration team for all their work over the 12 years he had 
been chairman.  

Resolved unanimously: that the Panel notes the report and:

• All areas of governance and administration as reported
• All key performance indicators

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC 

RESOLVED UNANIMOUSLY: That under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government Act 
1972, the public be excluded from the remainder of the meeting on the grounds that 
they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in Paragraphs 1-7 of 
part I of Schedule 12A of the Act.

8



The meeting, which began at 4.05 pm, finished at 4.50 pm

CHAIRMAN……………………………….

DATE………………………………..........

9



This page is intentionally left blank



Royal Borough of Windsor and Maidenhead Constitution Part 6 

 Part 6 - 1

A) PENSION

A1 Berkshire Pension Fund Panel 

A1.1 Purpose

To exercise the general powers and duties of an Administering Authority in the 
maintenance of such Superannuation funds as may be required in accordance with the 
Superannuation Fund Act 1972 and Regulations existing under that Act including, but not 
restricted to the following.

(i) Determination of the investment policies of the Administering Authority in the light of 
professional officer advice and other suitably qualified independent advice, 
legislative constraints and Codes of Practice.

(ii) Responsibility for the administration of all superannuation funds maintained by the 
Administering Authority and including, specifically, custodianship arrangements.

(iii) The appointment of External Fund Managers.
(iv) Determination of the arrangements for obtaining appropriate investment advice 

including the appointment of a suitably qualified independent person or persons to 
give expert advice on superannuation fund investment and management 
arrangements.

(v) The periodic review and monitoring of the Funds' investment performance.
(vi) Determination of applications for admitted body status in accordance with the 

appropriate legislative provisions.
(vii) To consider the Annual Report on the Fund.

A1.2  Membership 

5 RBWM Councillors

N.B.  A Cabinet Member may be a Member of the Berkshire Pension Fund Panel 
and of the Berkshire Pension Fund Advisory Panel.

A1.3 Quorum 

2 RBWM Councillors

A1.4 Frequency 

Quarterly

A 2  Berkshire Pension Fund Panel Sub Committee

A2.1 Purpose

The Sub Committee shall have delegated authority to undertake the following functions: 

 To review and recommend appropriate policies/actions to the Pension Fund Panel 
and Advisory Panel in respect of the following:

11

Agenda Item 4



Royal Borough of Windsor and Maidenhead Constitution Part 6 

 Part 6 - 2

1. The Strategic Asset Allocation of the Fund
2. The investment performance of the Fund
3. New investment products/mandates and their suitability for investment by the 

Fund
4. To interview potential managers for the Fund
5. To recommend the appointment or termination of investment mandates

 Such other matters as may be relevant to managing the investments of the Fund 
and implementing decisions of the Pension Fund Panel

 Recommend changes to the Investment Strategy
 Set and Change asset allocation
 Review investment opportunities/new managers and authorise officers to make 

such investments if they comply with the agreed Investment Strategy. Such 
delegation is limited to a limit of the higher of £50 million, or 3% of the net asset 
value of the Fund as published in the Fund’s latest Financial Statements for any 
single or series of investments in any one asset class with any single manager. For 
the avoidance of doubt any proposed investment either incrementally or new in 
excess of £50 million will require prior approval from the Panel. 

 To take emergency actions to terminate a mandate, redeem a pooled holding or 
reduce exposure to one or more asset classes and to take any other action 
necessary to secure / recover/ Pension Fund Assets. Such emergency action is 
delegated to: the Chairman (or in his absence the Vice Chairman) of the Berkshire 
Pension Fund Panel and one other of: the Vice Chairman, Leader, and Lead 
Member for Finance, Managing Director or an Executive Director.

A2.2 Membership

The Berkshire Pension Fund Panel Sub Committee will consist of the Chairman and/or 
Vice-Chairman of the Berkshire Pension Fund Panel and up to three other members of the 
Berkshire Pension Fund and Pension Fund Advisory Panels.

A2.3 Quorum

Four members of whom at least two shall be members of the Berkshire Pension Fund 
Panel and include the Chairman and/or the Vice Chairman of the Panel.

A2.4 Frequency 

The Berkshire Pension Fund Panel Sub Committee will meet at least quarterly and on an 
ad-hoc basis as required.  At least five clear days’ notice of a meeting will be given for 
each meeting.  The Sub Committee may meet “electronically” if required.  In such a 
circumstance it will be made clear by what date Sub Committee Members are required to 
respond, decisions recorded and reported to subsequent meeting.

12



Royal Borough of Windsor and Maidenhead Constitution Part 6 

 Part 6 - 3

A3 Berkshire Pension Fund Advisory Panel

A3.1  Purpose

To consider and make recommendations to the Berkshire Pension Fund Panel on 
investment and actuarial issues relating to the Fund as follows:

(i) The investment policies of the Administering Authority, in the light of professional 
officer advice and other suitable qualified independent advice, legislative constraints 
and Codes of Practice.

(ii) The administration of all superannuation funds maintained by the Administering 
Authority, including specifically, custodianship arrangements.

(iii) The appointment of External Fund Managers.
(iv) The arrangements of obtaining appropriate investment advice, including the 

appointment of suitably qualified independent person or persons to give expert 
advice on Superannuation fund investment and management arrangements.

(v) The periodic review and monitoring of the Fund's investment performance.
(vi) The Annual Report on the Fund.

A3.2 Membership

17 persons comprising:

 Five Members of the Pension Panel; 
 One elected representative from each of Reading Borough Council, Slough Borough 

Council, West Berkshire Council, Bracknell Forest Borough Council and Wokingham 
Borough Council; 

 Two trade union employee representatives; 
 Three representatives from employer bodies with the Fund: University of West 

London; an employer with a minimum of 200 members within the Fund; a 
representative from an Academy (to represent all academies within the Fund )

 One member drawn from the active membership, and one member drawn from the 
deferred/pensioner membership.

The term of office for Members of the Advisory Panel should be set to run alongside 
the election cycle of the administering authority with Members being required to attend 
a minimum of 2 meetings per annum.  Members of the Advisory Panel who fail to 
attend the minimum meeting requirement will be asked by the Berkshire Pension Fund 
Panel to step down and for a replacement to be appointed.

.
A3.3  Quorum 
5 Members

A3.4    Frequency
As per the Pension Fund Panel schedule

13



This page is intentionally left blank



ReportTitle: Pension Fund Panels Work-plan
C ontains C onfid entialor
ExemptInformation?

YES -P artI

M emberreporting: C ou nc illorJu lian S harpe, C hairman
B erks hire P ens ion Fu nd and P ens ion
Fu nd A d vis ory P anels

M eetingand D ate: B erks hire P ens ion Fu nd and P ens ion
Fu nd A d vis ory P anels –23 S eptember
20 19

Res pons ible O ffic er(s ): Kevin Taylor, D epu ty P ens ion Fu nd
M anager

W ard s affec ted : N one

1 DETAILS OF RECOMMENDATION(S)

RECOMMENDATION: That Panel notes the report and:

i) Agrees an annual work-plan in line with that set out in Appendix 1 to the
report.

ii) Requests that officers keep the work-plan updated to ensure that Panel
fulfils the statutory duties set out in the LGPS Regulations as required
of an Administering Authority (Scheme Manager).

2 REASON(S) FOR RECOMMENDATION(S) AND OPTIONS CONSIDERED

2 . 1 In ac c ord anc e with Regu lation 53 of the L oc alGovernmentP ens ion S c heme
Regu lations 2 0 13 (“the Regu lations ”)and as lis ted in P art1 ofS c hed u le 3 ofthe
Regu lations , RB W M is an A d minis tering A u thority (S c heme M anager)requ ired to
maintain a P ens ion Fu nd forthe S c heme.

2 . 2 A n A d minis tering A u thority is res pons ible for managing and ad minis tering the
S c heme in relation to any pers on for whic h itis the appropriate A d minis tering
A u thority u nd erthe Regu lations .

2 . 3 The P ens ion Fu nd P anelas s etou tin RB W M ’ s C ons titu tion ac ts as the S c heme
M anagerand is therefore res pons ible forens u ringthatthe A d minis teringA u thority
fu lfils its s tatu tory res pons ibilities in ac c ord anc e with the Regu lations and the
P u blic S ervic e P ens ion A c t20 13

REPORT SUMMARY

1 . This reportbrings to M embers ’ a propos ed annu alwork-plan whic h
c ontains d etails ofpolic ies and reports thatthe ad minis teringau thority is
s tatu torily requ ired to keepu nd erreview and u pto d ate.

2 . Its hou ld be noted thatad d itionalpapers willbe provid ed as and when
c irc u ms tanc es req u ire itand thatthis work-plan s ets ou tthe minimu m
requ ired ofthe P ens ion P anels as s etou tin the terms ofreferenc e
c ontained in the C ou nc il’ s C ons titu tion.

3. M embers are as ked to c ons id erthe items lis ted in append ix 1 to this report
and s u gges tany amend ments as req u ired .

15

Agenda Item 5



2 . 4 The pu rpos e ofthis paperand attac hed work-plan is to id entifyforP anelmembers
thos e areas oflegis lation thatrequ ire them to s etand approve c ertain polic ies and
proc ed u res to enable itto meetthe s tatu tory requ irements ofthe Regu lations .

2 KEY IMPLICATIONS

2 . 1 The A d minis teringA u thority(S c heme M anager)is req u ired bylaw to maintain the
RoyalC ou ntyofB erks hire P ens ion Fu nd is ac c ord anc e withthe Regu lations and
allother as s oc iated legis lation. Failu re to d o s o c ou ld res u ltin the P ens ions
Regu latoris s u ingfines to the A u thoritywhere itis d eemed to have failed in areas
ofs c heme governanc e, ris kmanagementand ad minis tration.

3 FINANCIAL DETAILS / VALUE FOR MONEY

3. 1 N otapplic able.

4 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

4. 1 The L oc alGovernmentP ens ion S c heme Regu lations 2 0 13 (as amend ed )s etou t
the s tatu tory requ irements ofthe A d minis teringA u thority.

5 RISK MANAGEMENT

5. 1 Failu re to maintain the P ens ion Fu nd in line withs tatu tory legis lation c ou ld res u lt
in a s c heme memberors c heme employerreporting the A d minis tering A u thority
to the P ens ions Regu latorforfailingto fu lfilits s tatu tory res pons ibilities .

6 POTENTIAL IMPACTS

6. 1 Failu re to maintain the P ens ion Fu nd in ac c ord anc e with s tatu tory legis lation
c ou ld res u ltin a los s ofc onfid enc e in the A d minis teringA u thority.

7 CONSULTATION

N /A

8 TIMETABLE FOR IMPLEMENTATION

8 . 1 Implementation timetable

Date Details
23 September 2019 P anelmembers to agree the annu alwork-plan and

c ons id er:
1 . P ens ion Fu nd A nnu alReportand A c c ou nts

(d raft)
2 . A u d itReports
3. Ris kM anagementP olic y
4. Ris kA s s es s mentRegis ter

16 December 2019 1 . A c tu arialValu ation Report
2 . ReportingB reac hes ofthe L aw P olic y
3. S L A B etween RB W M and RC B P F

16



Date Details
23 March 2020 1 . Inves tmentS trategy S tatement

2 . Fu nd ingS trategy S tatement
3. Governanc e C omplianc e S tatement
4. P ens ion Fu nd B u s ines s P lan 20 20 /21

Q1 2020/21 1 . A d minis teringA u thority D ec is ions P olic y
2 . C ommu nic ations P olic y
3. P ens ion A d minis tration S trategy
4. A batementP olic y

9 APPENDICES

9. 1 The append ic es to the reportare as follows :

 A ppend ix 1 –P ropos ed annu alwork-plan

10 BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

1 0 . 1 L oc alGovernmentP ens ion S c heme Regu lations 20 13 (as amend ed )
10 . 2 P u blic S ervic e P ens ions A c t20 13
10 . 3 The P ens ions Regu lator’ s C od e ofprac tic e N o. 14

11 CONSULTATION (MANDATORY)

Name of
consultee

Post held Date
issued for
comment

Date
returned
with
comments

C llrJu lian S harpe C hairman –B erks hire
P ens ion Fu nd P anel

Rob S tu bbs S ec tion 151 O ffic er

17



Date Statutory Documents

Q2 - 23/09/2019 Pension Fund Annual Report & Accounts (draft)

Reporting period: Audit Reports

1 April to June 2019 Risk Management Policy

Risk Assessment Register

Standing items:

Administration Report

Investment Performance and Asset Allocation - LPPI

Q3 - 16/12/2019 (Windsor) Actuarial Valuation Report

Reporting period: Reporting Breaches of the Law

1 July to 30 September 2019 SLA Between RBWM and RCBPF

Standing items:

Administration Report

Investment Performance and Asset Allocation - LPPI

Q4 - 23/03/2020 Investment Strategy Statement

Reporting period: Funding Strategy Statement

1 October to 31 December 2019 Governance Compliance Statement

Pension Fund Business Plan 2020/21

Standing items:

Administration Report

Investment Performance and Asset Allocation - LPPI

Q1 - 2020/21 Administering Authority Decisions Policy

Reporting period: Communication Policy

1 January to 31 March 2020 Pension Administration Strategy

Abatement Policy

Standing items:

Administration Report

Investment Performance and Asset Allocation - LPPI

Appendix 1 - BERKSHIRE PENSION FUND PANEL ANNUAL WORKPLAN

18



ReportTitle: Approval of Annual Report and
Accounts 2018/19

C ontains C onfid entialor
ExemptInformation?

YES -P artI

M emberreporting: C ou nc illorS harpe, C hairman B erks hire
P ens ion Fu nd and P ens ion Fu nd A d vis ory
P anels

M eetingand D ate: B erks hire P ens ion Fu nd and P ens ion
Fu nd A d vis ory P anels –23 S eptember
20 19

Res pons ible O ffic er(s ): Kevin Taylor, D epu ty P ens ion Fu nd
M anager

W ard s affec ted : N one

1 DETAILS OF RECOMMENDATION(S)

RECOMMENDATION: That Panel notes the report and:

i) Authorises Officers to correct any identified typographical and drafting
errors and to insert the Auditor’s Report on receipt.

ii) Approves publication of the final version of the Fund’s Annual report
and Accounts by the statutory deadline of 1 December 2019.

2 REASON(S) FOR RECOMMENDATION(S) AND OPTIONS CONSIDERED

2 . 1 A ttac hed atA ppend ix 1 is a d raftc opy ofthe Fu nd ’ s A nnu alReportand A c c ou nts
forthe yearto 31 M arc h 20 19. The A u d itors willnotis s u e theirfinalreportu ntil
they have reviewed the d raftA nnu alReport(inc lu d ing Financ ialS tatements )
approved by P anel. A c c ord ingly O ffic ers req u es tau thority to ins ertthis on rec eipt
and priorto pu blic ation.

2 . 2 The ac c ou nts als o inc lu d e the IA S 26 report. This is an ac c ou ntanc y requ irement
thatvalu es the Fu nd ’ s liabilities u s ingad is c ou ntrate d erived from C orporate B ond
Yield s . Ithas no role in s etting c ontribu tion rates for S c heme Employers or
S c heme M embers .

2 . 3 O ffic ers als o requ es t au thority to c orrec t typographic al and d rafting errors ,
ens u ring thatthe meaning of the c ontentis notc hanged from thatapproved by
P anel, and pu blis h the A nnu alReportby the s tatu tory d ead line of 1 D ec ember
20 19.

REPORT SUMMARY

1 . This reportpres ents a d raftofthe Fu nd ’ s A nnu alReportand A c c ou nts forthe
yearto 31 M arc h20 19 fornotingand approvalby P anel.

2 . Itals o requ es ts au thority forthe finalvers ion to be pu blis hed by the s tatu tory
d ead line of1 D ec ember20 19.

19

Agenda Item 6



3 KEY IMPLICATIONS

3. 1 N otapplic able.

4 FINANCIAL DETAILS / VALUE FOR MONEY

4. 1 O nly a s mallnu mberofc opies ofthe A nnu alReportand A c c ou nts are printed s o
the financ ialimplic ations ofprod u c tion are d e minimis .

5 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

5. 1 P u blic ation is a s tatu tory requ irement.

6 RISK MANAGEMENT

6. 1 N otapplic able as pu blic ation is a s tatu tory requ irement.

7 POTENTIAL IMPACTS

7 . 1 N otapplic able.

8 CONSULTATION

8 . 1 The P ens ion Fu nd ac c ou nts form partofthe B orou gh’ s ac c ou nts whic hhave
to be approved by The RoyalB orou gh’ s A u d itand P erformanc e Review P anel.

9 TIMETABLE FOR IMPLEMENTATION

9. 1 P u blic ation by 1 D ec ember20 19.

10 APPENDICES

1 0 . 1 The append ic es to the reportare as follows :

 A ppend ix 1 –The RoyalC ou nty ofB erks hire P ens ion Fu nd A nnu al
Reportand A c c ou nts 20 1 8 /19.

11 BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

11 . 1 L oc alGovernmentP ens ion S c heme Regu lations 20 13 (as amend ed )

12 CONSULTATION (MANDATORY)

Name of
consultee

Post held Date
issued for
comment

Date
returned
with
comments

C llrJu lian S harpe C hairman –B erks hire
P ens ion Fu nd P anel

Rob S tu bbs S ec tion 151 O ffic er

20



2018/2019

Protection for your 
Family

Royal County of Berkshire 
Pension Fund   

 
Annual Report and Accounts

21



22



CONTENTS PAGE

PENSION FUND PANEL AND ADVISORY PANEL MEMBERS AND 5
SCHEME ADVISORS

CHAIRMAN’S INTRODUCTION 7

PENSION BOARD STATEMENT: APRIL 2018 TO 31 MARCH 2019 9

SCHEME ADMINISTRATION REPORT 11

INVESTMENT REPORT 21

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE REPORT 23

RISK MANAGEMENT 25

ACTUARY’S STATEMENT AS AT 31 MARCH 2019 29

AUDIT STATEMENT (Draft to follow) 33

STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE PENSION FUND ACCOUNTS 35

PENSION FUND ACCOUNTS 37

PENSION ACCOUNTING DISCLOSURE - IAS 26 59

APPENDICES

Appendix 1 Communications Strategy 73

Appendix 2 Governance Compliance Statement 83

Appendix 3a Funding Strategy Statement 93

Appendix 3b Rates and Adjustment Certificate 107

Appendix 4 Investment Strategy Statement 117

Appendix 5 Service Level Agreement between the Pension 123
Administration Team and The Royal Borough of
Windsor & Maidenhead

Appendix 6 List of Scheme Employers and Contributions 131
Received During 2018/19

Appendix 7 AVC Arrangements 137

23



24



PENSION FUND PANEL AND ADVISORY PANEL
MEMBERS AND SCHEME ADVISORS

PENSION FUND PANEL

Chairman Councillor John Lenton
Vice Chairman Councillor David Hilton

Other members Councillor Geoff Hill
Councillor Richard Kellaway
One vacancy

PENSION FUND ADVISORY PANEL

In addition to the 5 Pension Fund Panel members, the Advisory Panel consisted of:

Councillor David Worrall (Bracknell Forest Borough Council)
Councillor Tony Jones (Reading Borough Council)
Councillor Preston Brooker (Slough Borough Council)
Councillor Alan Law (West Berkshire Council)
Councillor Rob Stanton (Wokingham Borough Council)
Mr Engin Eryilmaz (University of West London)
UNISON - vacant
Asia Allison (GMB)
Mr Mark Butcher (deferred scheme member)

ADVISERS

Actuary Barnett Waddingham LLP

Independent Investment Adviser The Law Debenture Pension Trustee
Corporation (Mr Andrew Harrison)

Independent Strategy Advisers Ms Aoifinn Devitt
(to the Investment Working Group) Mr Rohan Worrall

Global Custodian

JP Morgan Worldwide Securities Services

Additional Voluntary Contribution Provider

Prudential Assurance Company

Royal Borough of Windsor & Maidenhead Pension Fund Officers

Head of Finance Rob Stubbs
Deputy Pension Fund Manager Kevin Taylor
Pension Administration Manager Philip Boyton

5
25



PENSION BOARD

In accordance with the provisions of the Public Service Pensions Act 2013 a Pension
Board was constituted on 22 July 2015.

Chairman Mr Tony Pettitt

Vice-Chairman Mr Alan Cross

Employer Representatives

Mr Alan Cross (Reading Borough Council)
Mr Neil Wilcox (Slough Borough Council)
Mrs Nikki Craig

Scheme Member Representatives

Mr Tony Pettitt (Retired Scheme member)
Mr Jeff Ford (Active Scheme member)
1 vacancy

6
26



CHAIRMAN’S INTRODUCTION

It gives me great pleasure as the newly appointed Chairman of the Pension Fund Panel and
the Pension Fund Advisory Panel to present the Annual Report and Accounts for the financial
year ended 31 March 2019 for the Royal County of Berkshire Pension Fund (the “Fund”). I
would like to take this opportunity to thank former Cllr. John Lenton as the previous Chairman
to the Panels for his hard work and dedication over 12 years involvement with the Pension
Fund.

The Royal Borough of Windsor & Maidenhead (RBWM) administers the Fund on behalf of the
6 Berkshire Unitary Authorities and around 250 other public, and private, sector employers. I
am most grateful to the administration team for the efficient service they have provided to all
of our employers and their continued professionalism in maintaining the highest standards of
service to our Scheme members

The Berkshire Pension Fund Panel has powers delegated to it under the Constitution of the
Royal Borough of Windsor & Maidenhead. The Panel comprises of five Councillors from the
Royal Borough of Windsor & Maidenhead and receives invaluable support from the Pension
Fund Advisory Panel, which consists of representatives from the other 5 Berkshire Unitary
Authorities, three other Scheme employer representatives, 2 Scheme member representatives
and the trades unions. The Panels are additionally assisted by an independent advisor.

In practice decisions are taken at joint meetings of the two Panels. Investment decisions by
the Pension Fund Panel are made after considering recommendations from the Investment
Group (IG). The IG includes members nominated from both Panels together with our external
Investment Strategy Advisers.

With effect from 1 June 2018 and as a result of the Government’s initiative to pool Local
Authority Pension Funds, The Royal County of Berkshire Pension Fund entered into a
Management Agreement with the Local Pensions Partnership Investments Limited (LPPI)
meaning that all of the Fund’s assets are now managed by LPPI, although those assets remain
the property of the Pension Fund. The Pension Fund Panel remains responsible for setting
the Investment Strategy and Strategic Allocation of its assets and for monitoring investment
performance.

In addition to taking investment decisions the Pension Fund Panels also have a statutory duty
to ensure that the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) in governed and administered
in line with the LGPS Regulations and other associated legislation. I am grateful to members
of our local Pension Board for their input in these areas and their assistance in ensuring that
RBWM as the ‘Scheme Manager’ fulfils its statutory responsibilities.

The LGPS is under greater scrutiny than ever before. The Pensions Regulator issues Codes
of Practice that Public Service Pension Schemes, including the LGPS, are expected to adhere
to and has the power to intervene where necessary and issue improvement notices and even
fines.

However, I have great confidence that the Pension Team will continue to provide a high quality
service and excellent support to everyone connected with the Pension Fund as I move into my
new role as the Chairman of the Pension Fund Panels.

Councillor Julian Sharpe
Chairman
Berkshire Pension Fund Panel
Berkshire Pension Fund Advisory Panel

7
27



8
28



PENSION BOARD STATEMENT: APRIL 2018 – MARCH 2019

The Pension Board was set up in 2015 in accordance with the requirements defined
in the Public Sector Pensions Act 2013.

The Board has a statutory duty to:

 Ensure the Fund’s compliance with legislation, regulation and guidance,
along with the Pension Regulator’s (TPR) requirements;

 Ensure that the Fund’s governance and administration is effective and
efficient.

The Board focusses mainly on governance and administration issues through the
management of a clearly defined work programme of reviews, monitored through an
action tracker. In addition, the Board has sought to deliver effective advice and
assurance in line with the agreed Terms of Reference and the Administering
Authority’s Constitution.

The Board has continued the process of developing the knowledge and skills of
the Board Members to enable them to undertake their duties with confidence. It
has also given attention to the compliance of the Fund’s administration, reviewing
statutory documentation as it has been published throughout the year and building
on the positive outcome of the internal audit of the Administering Authority’s
compliance with the TPR Code of Practice 14.

The Board remains apprised of the transfer of assets to the management of the
Local Pensions Partnership Investments Limited (LPPI) and receives copies of all
papers taken to meetings of the Pension Fund Panels which includes, but is not
limited to, the Administering Authority’s Investment Strategy and Funding Strategy
Statements and all Investment Performance reports produced by LPPI. In addition
the Board continues to keep under review the Pension Panels’ work-plan offering
whatever assistance it can give to the Administering Authority in fulfilling its statutory
duties of governance and administration.

The last 18 to 24 months has been a period of transition for all Local Government
Pension Funds including the Berkshire Fund. There is the ongoing transfer of assets
to LPPI, amendments to scheme regulations and over-arching legislation to contend
with and numerous and complex consultations by the Government concerning
proposals on future changes to the LGPS to be considered, all of which has made
for a demanding time for all connected with Local Government Pension Funds. Add
to this the ever-increasing scrutiny of the Pensions Regulator and it is clear that the
governance and administration of the scheme is more important than ever and a
challenge to which the Berkshire Pension Fund has in the past and will in the future
continue to meet.

There will always be room for improvement but the work of the Board helps to establish
clear priorities for future activity.

9
29



PENSION BOARD 2018-19

Chairman: Tony Pettitt
Vice-Chairman: Alan Cross

Scheme Employer Representatives

Neil Wilcox (Slough Borough Council)
Nikki Craig (RBWM)
1 vacancy

Scheme Member Representatives

Tony Pettitt (Retired Scheme Member)
Alan Cross (Deferred Scheme Member)
Jeff Ford (Active Scheme Member)

Dates of meetings:

11 September 2018
20 February 2019

Attendance for 2018/19

Name Number of meeting
eligible to attend

Attended

Tony Pettitt 2 2
Alan Cross 2 2
Neil Wilcox 2 2
Jeff Ford 2 2
Nikki Craig 2 2

10
30



SCHEME ADMINISTRATION REPORT

Introduction

The Royal Borough of Windsor and Maidenhead acts as the administering authority for the
Royal County of Berkshire Pension Fund – the pension fund for local government employees
in the County of Berkshire. Benefits for members of the Fund are set by the Local
Government Pension Scheme Regulations 2013 (as amended).

The Royal Borough has delegated its role as administering authority to the Pension Fund
Panel. This Panel consists of five Royal Borough councillors and is assisted by the Pension
Fund Advisory Panel. This latter panel includes the five Royal Borough councillors plus one
councillor drawn from each of the other five unitary authorities in the Fund, one representative
from the University of West London on behalf of the other employing bodies in the Fund, two
Trade Union representatives (one each from Unison and GMB) acting for the active members
of the Fund and one independent adviser.

The Pension Fund and Pension Fund Advisory Panels meet quarterly to receive and consider
reports from the Pension Fund Manager and external advisors on the management of the
Fund. Attendance to the Panel is noted below:

Name Authority Number of
Meetings eligible

to attend

Attended

Councillor Lenton (Chair) RB Windsor &
Maidenhead

6 6

Councillor Hilton (Vice Chair) RB Windsor &
Maidenhead

6 5

Councillor Hill RB Windsor &
Maidenhead

6 4

Councillor Kellaway RB Windsor &
Maidenhead

6 5

Vacancy RB Windsor &
Maidenhead

6 0

Councillor Brooker Slough
Borough Council

4 2

Councillor Sarfraz Slough Borough
Council

2 0

Councillor Law West Berkshire
Council

6 5

Councillor Stanton Wokingham
Borough Council

1 1

Councillor Jones Reading
Borough Council

6 1

Councillor Worrall Bracknell Forest
Council

6 5

Royal Borough councillors may delegate designated substitute members to attend a Panel
meeting if they are unable to attend.

In addition to the invaluable support and advice offered by the Pension Fund Advisory Panel
the Pension Fund Panel is assisted by a variety of advisers including Mr Inder Dhingra as an
independent adviser and Mr Graeme Muir of Barnett Waddingham, the Actuary to the Fund.
The Investment Working Group, a sub-group of the panels, is independently advised by Mr
Rohan Worrall and Ms Aoifinn Devitt. Additional advice from other professional advisers is

11
31



sought as necessary. Many of the duties of the Panel are delegated to Officers in accordance
with the Royal Borough’s constitution.

Customer Satisfaction

The landscape of the Local Government Pension Scheme continues to evolve greatly resulting
in the need for our administration team to continue using a variety of methods to understand
our members and employers needs. Their needs, experiences of the service we provide and
their perception of the Pension Fund help us to continually improve and become more efficient
and effective.

The 1 April 2014 saw a significant change to the Local Government Pension Scheme with the
introduction of a career average scheme, fundamentally different to the final salary scheme
previously in place. This event undoubtedly made the Scheme more complex to administer
with increased scrutiny from The Pensions Regulator.

During the last year the team has continued to communicate with members to ensure that they
are aware of the impact the changes to the Scheme will make to their pension benefits and to
ensure employers are fully educated and understand their responsibilities to provide timely
and accurate information together with the consequences of their failure to do so.

There is no doubt our relationship and need to continue working with our scheme employers
and their members is ever more important.

Compliance with Communications Policy Statement

Under Regulation 61 of the Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations 2013 (as
amended) The Royal Borough of Windsor & Maidenhead, in its role as administering authority
to The Royal County of Berkshire Pension Fund, is required to publish a statement of policy
concerning communications.

This policy statement can be found at Appendix 1 and deals with the methods of
communication between the administering authority, members and employers of the Pension
Fund.

The administering authority keeps the policy statement under review. During the year the
Fund undertook:

 Communication with Employers

Annual Employers Meeting

All employers were invited to attend a meeting on 7 March 2019. They were provided
with details of the data they are required to submit to the administration team so that
members’ records are correct, an actuarial update of the Pension Fund, and a
presentation by AVC Wise, regarding the savings scheme employers can realise by
introducing Shared Cost AVCs and the options AVCs provide scheme members at
retirement.

Training for Employers

The Administration Team continues to hold ad-hoc training sessions throughout the
year on request. These sessions are designed to educate both new and current
employers about the important role they play in helping the team administer the
Scheme and the importance of holding clean and accurate data to process benefits
quickly and efficiently. These sessions were well received with the team immediately
seeing a more proactive approach towards the submission and quality of data by
employers.

12
32



Regular Updates on the LGPS

“The Inscribe” bulletin is distributed to employers on a quarterly basis with other global
emails distributed to employers when deemed necessary.

Pension Fund website

The Pension Fund website continues to prove a valuable source of information for our
Scheme employers and their members.

The website contains sections dedicated to the following:

 Current members
 Deferred members
 Retired members
 Councillor members
 Employers

The site received over 64,500 visits from members and employers during the year, an
increase of 4.1% when compared to the previous year, and has been described as
easily accessible and having many links making navigation user friendly.

The administration team continue to review and remodel the website to ensure
members are aware of the impact any changes to the Scheme will make to their
pension benefits but also to ensure a point of reference for employers to help
continually educate them and understand their responsibilities.

The website address is www.berkshirepensions.org.uk

Employer Self Service (ESS)

The Pension Fund launched ESS on 19 October 2017. ESS is accessible to all
registered scheme employers and enables them to view and amend their own scheme
members’ pension data remotely and securely from the comfort of their workplace.

ESS also enables scheme employers to calculate quickly and efficiently the value of
their scheme members benefits any respective strain cost payable thus avoiding the
need to contact the administration team.

i-connect Software

The Pension Fund continues to build on the success it has experienced since February
2016 by seeing a further 25 employers start submitting data to the Fund on a monthly
basis using i-connect Software during the year. A total of 63 scheme employers are
now on board covering a little over 79% of the total active scheme membership.

This has saved the team a significant administration time by removing the need for
manual input, but most importantly helping maintain the accuracy of member data. No
doubt employers and the team will continue to benefit from this service throughout the
next 12 months.

General Guidance and Assistance

The pension administration team can be contacted during normal office hours. There
is a dedicated help-line 0845 602 7237 and a dedicated email help desk
(info@berkshirepensions.org.uk).

13
33



Promotional Services

The Pension Fund continues to produce and publish scheme guides and factsheets
relating to specific pension topics all of which are available for download from the
Pension Fund website. These are constantly reviewed and updated to keep pace with
the ever evolving Local Government Pension Scheme.

 Communication with All Members

Member Self Service - ‘my pension ONLINE’

The Pension Fund’s ‘my pension ONLINE’ service enables members to securely
access and update your own pension details using not just their desktop PC but now
using their laptop, tablet or smartphone.

The service continues to prove popular with over 15,500 members now registered,
which represents 26% of the total membership the service is accessible to. Registered
members’ can quickly gain access to their own pension record to check their details
are correct and calculate the current and future value of their own benefits and their
dependants. This removes the need to contact the administration team and wait for
an estimate to be sent to them.

Welcome Pack

With the implementation of ‘my pension ONLINE’ each new member receives a letter
containing an activation code and guidance as to how to access their welcome pack
online. If a member chooses not to register for ‘my pension ONLINE’ a paper version
of the welcome pack will be sent to the member’s home address upon request.

Annual Benefit Statements

Each active and deferred member of the pension scheme receives an annual benefit
statement. With the availability of ‘my pension ONLINE’ these statements are available
for viewing, downloading or printing on-line and means the Fund only issues a paper
statement to approximately 3,700 or 6.25% of the membership by post.

The Annual Benefit Statement provides details of benefits built up to 31st March the
previous year, benefits projected to Normal Pension Age, death in service benefits and
details of the member’s nominated beneficiaries.

Pension Surgeries

During the year two pension surgeries were held at each of the six Unitary Authorities
with additional pension surgeries being held at other employer locations upon request.
These pension surgeries provide an opportunity for members to discuss any aspect of
their pension benefits. The administration team met with 539 scheme members across
the pension surgeries held. To accompany these pension surgeries the administration
team provide pre-retirement courses and presentations aimed at those members
considering retirement in the near future.

Newsletters

The Pension Fund produces and distributes bi-annual newsletters. ‘The Quill’ is issued
to active and deferred members and ‘The Scribe’ is issued to pensioner and dependant
members. Both continue to be very well received by members. Since the
implementation of ‘my pension ONLINE’ newsletters are available for viewing,
downloading or printing on-line.

14
34



Annual Meeting

A meeting took place on 7 November 2018 held at the Town Hall in Maidenhead. At
the same time, the pension team invited members to attend an open day at the same
location. In attendance were members of the administration and payroll teams,
representatives from Barnett Waddingham (the Pension Fund Actuary) and AVC Wise,
regarding the benefits AVCs provide at retirement.

 Communication with Pensioner and Dependant Members

The Pension Fund has a dedicated payroll team dealing with former members now
receiving payment of their pension benefits. As well as responding to their enquiries
the payroll team are responsible for ensuring we meet our regulatory requirements.

Pension Payslips

The administration team has issued payslips in accordance with its 50 pence variance
rule each month and before payment has been made. The Retired Members area of
the Pension Fund website provides a detailed explanation of a payslip. Since the
implementation of ‘my pension ONLINE’ payslips are available for viewing,
downloading and printing on-line.

P60s

The administration team issued P60s to all pensioner and dependant members in April
2017 well in advance of the HMRC deadline. The Retirement Members area of the
Pension Fund website provides a detailed explanation of a P60, which was also
contained in our Spring edition of ‘The Scribe’. Since the implementation of ‘my
pension ONLINE’ P60s are available for viewing, downloading and printing on-line in
a format approved by HM Revenue & Customs.

Annual Pension Increase Notice

The administration team issued a notification to all pensioner and dependant members
in April 2018 providing details of the 3% increase awarded from 9 April 2018 in line
with the Consumer Price Index (CPI).

Tell Us Once (TUO)

A service designed to provide Funds with details of those members having died and
their next of kin via the General Registry Office (GRO), the Fund was one of the first
Local Government Pension Funds to on board and up load membership data and since
going LIVE in March 2016 has received 568 notifications with 272 of these received
between 1 April 2018 and 31 March 2019 alone.

This helped the Fund make contact with the next of kin more quickly and avoid any
potential overpayment of benefits.

Management Performance

Key Administration Performance Indicators

The administration team monitor the time it takes to complete procedures. The key foundation
to achieving the performance standards we set to complete procedures is by ensuring we
maintain quality data.

15
35



Our key procedures reported to the Pension Fund Panel on a quarterly basis are:

 Inputting of new members;
 Processing of early leavers;
 Payment of retirement benefits;
 Payment of transfer values (to 30 June 2018);
 Payment of Refund of Contributions (from 1 July 2018).

Performance for these key procedures over the year was 98.69%, which is a decrease of 0.6%
on the 2017/18 year. It is important to note there has been a significant increase in the number
of cases processed across a team reduced in size, as highlighted over the page. A summary
of achievement in each area is shown in the table below:

Administration
Team

Performance
2017/18 2018/19

Case Type
Target

(working
days)

Number
received

Number
within
target

%
within
target

Number
received

Number
within
target

%
within
target

Inputting of new
members

20 5424 5406 99.67 6538 6489 99.25

Processing of
early leavers

20 4670 4644 99.44 6010 5897 98.12

Payment of
retirement
benefits

5 1115 1080 96.86 1159 1136 98.02

Payment of
transfer values

15 54 53 98.15 7 7 100

Payment of
Refund of

Contributions
10 n/a n/a n/a 530 528 99.62

A further top five procedures in terms of cases completed are shown in the table below:

Administration
Team

Performance
2017/18 2018/19

Case Type
Target

(working
days)

Number
received

Number
within
target

%
within
target

Number
received

Number
within
target

%
within
target

Employee
estimate
requests

7 1428 1192 83.47 2223 1828 82.23

Employer
estimate
requests

5 391 354 90.54 291 249 85.57

Changes to
personal details

15 5977 5616 93.96 5340 4824 90.34

Issue of ‘my
pension
ONLINE’

Activation Keys

5 2247 2217 98.66 1569 1548 98.66

APC Quotes 20 213 100 97.87 205 203 99.02

16
36



Complaints

The administration team monitor the complaints received on a monthly basis and ensure we
respond promptly having investigated thoroughly and learn from them to improve the service.

The complaints are monitored in two distinct ways:

 Complaints about our service and the way we apply the regulations; and

 Under the LGPS members can use a three stage Internal Dispute Resolution
Procedure (IDRP) to settle any disagreement or complaint that they may have about
decisions made under scheme rules.

The table below shows the number of complaints in each category. These represent a minimal
percentage when compared to more than 41,500 procedures we carried out in 2018/19.

Administration
Team

Performance
2017/18 2018/19

Case Type
Target

(working
days)

Number
received

Number
within
target

%
within
target

Number
received

Number
within
target

%
within
target

Service 10 0 n/a n/a 0 n/a n/a

IDRP n/a 2 2 100% 0 n/a n/a

Key Staffing and Membership Numbers

Staffing

The administration team is made up of the following members:

Year 2017/18 2018/19

Deputy Pension Fund Manager 1.0 1.0
Pension

Administration Manager
1.0 1.0

Deputy Pension
Administration Manager

1.0 1.0

Assistant Pension Manager
(Communications)

1.0 1.0

Technical Analyst 1.0 1.0
Assistant Technical Analyst n/a 1.0

Senior Pension Administrators 2.0 1.0
Pension Administrators 4.5 2.5

Trainee Pension Administrators 3.0 4.0
Payroll Supervisor 0.7 0.7

Pension & Payroll Administrator 1.0 1.0
Administration Support Officer 1.0 1.0

Clerical Support 0.6 0.6
Total 17.8 16.8

17
37



Membership

Membership of the Pension Fund continues to grow. The chart and table overleaf show the
number of contributors, deferred beneficiaries and pensioners (including dependants) and
Undecided Leaver member records (individuals may have more than one membership record)
over the last five years to 31 March 2019.

31 March
2015

31 March
2016

31 March
2017

31 March
2018

31 March
2019

Contributors 23,783 25,434 25,845 27,369 24,203
Pensioners 14,610 15,243 16,126 16,955 17,763
Deferred
Beneficiaries

23,415 21,187 25,256 25,624 26,626

Undecided
Leavers

4,083 3,271 5,015 5,127 6,650

Total
Members

65,891 65,135 72,242 75,075 75,242

NOTES:

 Contributors are employees currently contributing to the Local Government Pension
Scheme and include some employees who have more than one contract of
employment, each contract being treated separately for administration purposes.

 Pensioner members are in receipt of a pension and include all dependants of former
members.

 Deferred beneficiaries are former contributors who have elected to retain their rights
in the Scheme until such time as they become payable.

 Undecided Leavers are former contributors who have an entitlement to receive a return
of contributions paid less mandatory deductions.

The result is a large Pension Fund being administered by a small team. The administrator to
scheme member ratio remains consistent with the previous year at 1:4478 with the

0

10000

20000

30000

40000

50000

60000

70000

80000

1 2 3 4 5

Contributors

Pensioners

Deferred Beneficaries

Undecided Leavers

Total Members

18
38



administration team continuing to provide a highly regarded and professional service across
the entire membership.

Benchmarking

The Pension Fund has not taken part in any formal benchmarking exercise since 2006 but is
always prepared to take the opportunity to compare ourselves against other Pension Funds
of a comparable size in terms of membership.

Gathering Assurance and Data Quality

The Pension Fund recognises the importance of gathering assurance over the effective and
efficient operation of the pension and payroll administration software used, altair. Provided by
heywood Limited, both our teams utilise the workflow functionality afforded to us ensuring
thorough checks are performed by senior members of the team in all areas of administration.

In addition it is fundamentally important to measure the presence and accuracy of both
Common and Scheme Specific data held to administer benefits on behalf of scheme members
and their beneficiaries and to have plans in place to resolve discrepancies where they are
found. In consideration of the Pension Regulators (tPR) requirements in this area the Pension
Fund entered into a three year agreement with heywood Limited during August 2018 with
feedback received during November 2018 that our results were well above average.

The exercise of monitoring the accuracy of data will be performed annually and will
demonstrate how serious the Pension Fund is with regard to holding accurate data on behalf
of scheme members and their beneficiaries.

The Pension Fund is also proactive in responding to enquiries received from both internal
(Royal Borough of Windsor & Maidenhead) and external (KPMG) auditors.

The Future

We remain committed and focus our efforts on communicating with both our scheme
employers and their members. We will ensure that members understand and appreciate the
value of the Scheme, which forms a significant part of the pay and reward package provided
by their employer.

Ensuring the timely and accurate submission of data from employers is crucial to the
administration team continuing to deliver a quality service to members. We will continue to
endeavour to introduce further efficiencies and better ways of working to further improve on
the systems that are currently in place.

These improvements will be delivered to not only ensure the quality of our members data is
maintained to the standard required by the Pensions Regulator (tPR) but is also protected as
required by Government Data Protection Regulation (GDPR).

Customer service will continue to be a priority as the next few years will be challenging for
both members and employers. To demonstrate our commitment and ensure this continues we
will ask for our members and employers opinion on our services in a variety of ways. We will
continue to survey a sample of our active, deferred, pensioner and dependant members by
post, at pension surgeries, presentations and on-line via our website.

19
39



20
40



INVESTMENT REPORT

In continuing with the UK Government’s initiative for Local Government Pension Funds to take
advantage of pooling their investments, the management of the Fund’s assets has transferred to
the Local Pensions Partnership (LPP). The assets remain the legal property of the Royal County
of Berkshire Pension Fund.

LPP has set up and oversee the investment of seven pooled fund vehicles. The majority of the
Fund’s on balance assets have transferred into the pooled funds. LPP is in the process of setting
up an eighth pooled fund vehicle for the asset class of Real Estate. The Fund’s asset allocation
can be seen the following table:

31-Mar-19 31-Mar-18

Asset Class Actual
weighting

Target
Weighting

Actual
Weighting

Target
Weighting

Credit 12.5% 10.0% 12.0% 10.0%

Diversifying Strategies 3.6% 4.0% 4.0% 4.0%
Fixed Income 2.9% 3.0% 3.2% 3.0%

Infrastructure 9.0% 12.5% 6.2% 12.5%
Private Equity 12.9% 13.0% 12.6% 13.0%

Public Equity 38.3% 40.0% 33.6% 40.0%
Real Estate 13.3% 16.5% 13.1% 16.5%

Cash 7.5% 1.0% 15.3% 1.0%

100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%
N.B. “Target Weighting” shown above represents the agreed Strategic Asset Allocation (‘SSA’).

Over the reporting period The Strategic Asset Allocation weightings / Target Weightings remained
unaltered. The Fund is currently through an actuarial valuation (which occurs every three years)
and the appropriateness of the SAA will be reviewed as part of establishing the funding level and
determining longer term ambitions.

The Fund’s exposure to Public Equities and Infrastructure increased over the reporting period (by
circa 5% and 3% respectively) whilst the cash weighting reduced significantly.

How did the investments perform?

Over the twelve month period to the end of March 2019 the Fund generated a positive return of
6.7%. This represents an outperformance of 0.2% against the Policy Portfolio (the “Policy Portfolio”
weightings are reflective of the Strategic Asset Allocation weighting). During this period the asset
classes of Credit. Infrastructure and Real Estate added to the outperformance, whist Diversifying
Strategies and Public Equity underperformed.

Over a three year horizon to the end of Q1 2019, the Fund delivered an 8.8% annualised return
outperforming its policy portfolio by 1.9%. Credit was the stellar performer over this period whilst
Diversifying Strategies once again struggled.

Economic Update

The year through to March 2019 was a period of slowing global economic activity. The deceleration
in global gross domestic product (“GDP”) growth was relatively synchronised across the developed
and emerging markets. Inflation, within the UK, Eurozone and United States, subsided from key
central bank levels in the first quarter of 2019. GDP growth and inflation are two key
macroeconomic variables that impact most asset classes (to varying degrees and over different
time horizons). Amid this trend of lower growth and inflation, all the major central banks pivoted to
a more “dovish” stance (i.e. accommodative policy) either through their forward guidance and/or

21
41



their monetary policy tools. For major developed and emerging market equity indices, Q4’s market
turbulence led to negative full-year returns for the first time since 2015. In a whipsaw move though,
2019 started strongly for all major equity and credit markets.

22
42



FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE REPORT

Movement in Net assets of the scheme

During the financial year, the value of the net assets of the scheme increased by
£144.2 million.

Timeliness of Receipt of Contributions

2018/19 2017/18 2016/17

Percentage of contributions
received on or before the due date

98.75% 97.65% 98.43%

The option to levy interest on overdue contributions has not been exercised.

Administrative Costs Actual compared to Budget

2018/19 Actual £000’s 2018/19 Budget £000’s

Staff 620 615
Supplies and Services 443 589
Unit Recharges 96 96
TOTAL 1,159 1,300

Income and Expenditure

2018/19
Actual
£000’s

2018/19
Forecast

£'000’s

Employee/Employer Contributions 114,581 100,614
Transfer Values Received 8,130 6,600
Employer additional contributions for early retirements 2,409 1,800
Investment income via Custodian 39,032 34,700
Pensions Payable -85,105 -85,902
Retirement Lump Sums and Death Grants -17,730 -21,200
Transfer Values Paid and Refund of Contributions -10,526 -6,500
Investment Management Expenses -9,934 -7,363

Employee & Other costs -1,159 -1,300

Net additions/(withdrawals) from dealing with
members

39,698 21,449

23
43



24
44



RISK MANAGEMENT

The Royal Borough of Windsor and Maidenhead as the administering authority
for The Royal County of Berkshire Pension Fund (“the Fund”) places great
emphasis on risk management. The Fund differentiates between operational
and strategic risks in order to secure the effective governance and
administration of the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS). The main
internal controls for the Fund set out the arrangements and procedures to be
followed in administration, governance and management of the Scheme and
the systems required for ensuring those arrangements are met.

Operational risk

Operational risk covers such areas as administration of members’ records and
payment of benefits, receipt of contributions as well as such things as business
continuity, disaster recovery and having staff with the appropriate skill sets.

The Fund participates in the National Fraud Initiative where National Insurance
numbers of members receiving pensions and other benefits are matched
against a national database of reported deaths. Any matches are thoroughly
investigated.

A number of key operational risks and the action taken to mitigate them are
detailed below:

Risk Mitigating Action

Failure to comply with Scheme
regulations and associated pension
law.

Staff training, employer training and
external guidance provided. Desk
top procedures in place and systems
software provider competent.

Payments of incorrect benefits. Annually each active member’s
contributions and pay details are
confirmed with their employer.

On leaving employment an
individual’s scheme membership
history and pay details will be
confirmed with their employer.

Pension Fund is moving toward an
automated and secure method of
data transfer between employers
and the Fund.

Pension benefits not paid on time. A schedule of payment dates is
maintained and written procedures
adopted.

Sufficient cover is provided to ensure
payments are made at the correct
time.

25
45



Ongoing pension benefits paid to a
deceased member.

The Fund undertakes a monthly
mortality screening exercise and
takes part in the biennial National
Fraud Initiative (NFI)

Failure to maintain a high quality
database.

The Fund’s preferred method of
receiving data from scheme
employers is through a secure
electronic data transfer system
called i-connect thereby maintaining
member records in real-time.

Pro-active data checks are
undertaken before benefits are paid.

Both members and employers have
access to self-service systems
enabling them to check data.

Failure to hold data securely. Database is hosted off-site and
backed-up in 2 separate locations.

Access to systems is via dual-
password and username.

Data transferred between systems is
encrypted.

Compliant with General Data
Protection Regulations (GDPR) and
IT policies.

Contribution payments received late
from scheme employers.

Receipt of contributions is monitored
robustly with employers being
reminded of their statutory duty if
payments are received late.

Procedures in place to issue notices
of unsatisfactory performance to
employers who fail to make
payments on time and to report them
to the Pensions Regulator where
deemed materially significant.

Failure to communicate properly
with stakeholders.

The Fund has a Communication
Policy and a Communications
Manager.

The website is maintained to a high
standard at all times.

Newsletters and factsheets are
issued to both scheme members and
scheme employers.

26
46



Training is provided to scheme
employers.

Loss of office premises A comprehensive business
continuity plan is in place.

Systems are hosted and so can be
accessed remotely from home or
from an alternative office space.

Loss of funds through fraud. The Fund is externally and internally
audited annually to test that controls
are adequate.

The Fund participates on the
biennial National Fraud Initiative
(NFI)

Strategic risks

Strategic risks are those which whilst not affecting day to day operations of the
Fund could, nevertheless, in the medium and/or long-term have significant
impact. A number of key strategic risks and the action taken to mitigate them
are detailed in the table below:

Risk Mitigating Action
Funding level below 100%. The Fund has issued a Funding

Strategy Statement and Investment
Strategy Statement.

Deficit recovery plan is in place.
Unstable employer contributions. The Fund aims to keep employer

contribution rates stable by agreeing
with scheme employers and the
Actuary an appropriate deficit recovery
plan.

Unsatisfactory investment
performance.

The Fund has issued an Investment
Strategy Statement and monitors
closely the performance of its
Investment Manager.

An Investment Group meets quarterly
with the Investment Manager to
discuss investment performance an
asset allocation.

Inappropriate funding targets. The Fund has a broadly diversified
portfolio with no one asset class
dominating.

Targets are reviewed quarterly with
the Investment Manager.

Scheme employer covenants. The Fund monitors closely the ability
of scheme employers to meet their
obligations.

27
47



A cessation valuation is undertaken by
the Actuary when a scheme employer
exits the Scheme.

A funding report and covenant
assessment is provided by the Actuary
when an employer becomes a new
admission body to the Fund.

Governance of the Fund The Pension Fund is governed by the
Pension Fund Panel and Pension
Fund Advisory Panel.

The Pension Board assists the Panels
in fulfilling their statutory duties.

Law Debenture have been appointed
as an independent Governance
Advisor to both Panels.

Officers arrange training on specific
matters as required during the year.

28
48



Royal County of Berkshire Pension Fund

Actuary’s Statement as at 31 March 2019

Barnett Waddingham LLP
6 September 2019

29
49



RESTRICTED

Version 1

2 of 4

Introduction

The last full triennial valuation of the Royal County of Berkshire Pension Fund was carried out as at 31 March 2016

as required under Regulation 62 of the Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations 2013 (the Regulations)

and in accordance with the Funding Strategy Statement of the Fund. The results were published in the triennial

valuation report dated March 2017.

2016 valuation results

The results for the Fund at 31 March 2016 were as follows:

 The Fund as a whole had a funding level of 73% i.e. the assets were 73% of the value that they would

have needed to be to pay for the benefits accrued to that date, based on the assumptions used. This

corresponded to a deficit of £597m which is higher than the deficit at the previous valuation in 2013.

 To cover the cost of new benefits and to also pay off the deficit over a period of 24 years, an average

total employer contribution rate of 22.0% of pensionable salaries would be required.

 However, the contribution rate for each employer was set as the cost of new benefits accruing in future

plus an adjustment (expressed either as a percentage of payroll or as a lump sum payment) required to

fund their individual deficit over an appropriate period.

30
50



RESTRICTED

Version 1

3 of 4

Assumptions

The assumptions used to value the liabilities at 31 March 2016 are summarised below:

Further details of these assumptions can be found in the relevant actuarial valuation report.

Assets

At 31 March 2016, the market value of the assets was £1,656m.

The assumptions used to value the liabilities are smoothed based on market conditions around the valuation date

and the asset value used at the valuation is adjusted in a consistent manner although the difference between the

smoothed and market values was not significant.

Assumption 31 March 2016

Discount rate
Unitary employers - 5.7% p.a.

Non unitary employers - 5.5% p.a.

Pension increases (CPI) 2.4% p.a.

Salary increases In line with CPI until 31 March 2020 and 3.9% p.a. thereafter

Pension increases on GMP

Mortality

S2PMA tables with a 95% multiplier for male and female members, a 115%

multiplier for male dependants and the S2DFA tables for female dependants

with an 80% multiplier, with projected improvements in line with the CMI

2015 model allowing for a long term rate of improvement of 1.5% p.a.

Retirement
Each member retires at a single age, weighted based on when each part of

their pension is payable unreduced

Commutation
Members will convert 50% of the maximum possible amount of pension into

cash

Funds will pay limited increases for members that have reached SPA by 6

April 2016, with the Government providing the remainder of the inflationary

increase. For members that reach SPA after this date, we have assumed that

Funds will be required to pay the entire inflationary increases.

31
51



RESTRICTED

Version 1

4 of 4

Updated position since the 2016 valuation

Since 31 March 2016, investment returns have been higher than assumed at the 2016 triennial valuation. The

value placed on the liabilities will, however, have also increased due to the accrual of new benefits as well as a

decrease in the real discount rate underlying the valuation funding model. Overall, we estimate that the funding

position as at 31 March 2019 has improved compared with the position as at 31 March 2016 although the primary

rate has also increased due to changes in market conditions.

The next formal valuation will be carried out as at 31 March 2019 with new contribution rates set from

1 April 2020.

Barry McKay FFA

Partner, Barnett Waddingham LLP

32
52



AUDIT STATEMENT -tofollow

33
53



34
54



Statement of Responsibilities for the Royal County of Berkshire Pension Fund
Accounts

The Royal Borough of Windsor and Maidenhead’s Responsibilities

The Royal Borough is required:
 To make arrangements for the proper administration of its financial affairs and to

secure that one of its officers has the responsibility for the administration of those
affairs. The Pension Fund Manager is the officer fulfilling that responsibility;

 To manage its affairs so as to secure economic, efficient and effective use of
resources and safeguard its assets;

 To approve the Fund’s statement of accounts;

The Head of Finance’s Responsibilities

The Head of Finance is responsible for the preparation of the Fund’s statement of
accounts in accordance with proper practices set out in the CIPFA Code of Practice
on Local Authority Accounting.

In preparing this statement of accounts, the Head of Finance has:

 Selected suitable accounting policies and then applied them consistently;
 Made judgements and estimates that were reasonable and prudent;
 Complied with the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting;
 Kept proper accounting records which were up to date;
 Taken reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other

irregularities.

Rob Stubbs
Deputy Director and Head of Finance

35
55



36
56



PENSION FUND ACCOUNTS

The Royal County of Berkshire Pension Fund fund account

2017/18 2018/19

£'000 Notes £'000

(108,591) Contributions 7 (116,990)

(13,403) Transfers in from other pension funds 8 (8,130)

(121,994)    (125,120)

100,493 Benefits 9 102,835

10,184 Payments to and on account of leavers 10 10,526

110,677 113,361

(11,317) Net (additions)/withdrawals from dealings with members (11,759)

9,204 Management expenses 11 11,093

(2,113) Net (additions)/withdrawals including fund management expenses (666)

Returns on investments

(40,770) Investment income 12 (43,766)

3,036 Taxes on income 13 4,734 

(48,421) 14 (104,482)

(86,155) Net return on investments (143,514)

1,923,995 Opening net assets of the scheme 2,012,263 

2,012,263 Closing net assets of the scheme 2,156,443 

The Royal County of Berkshire Pension Fund net assets statement

2017/18 2018/19

£'000 Notes £'000

2,082,344 Investment assets 14 2,219,285

(63,402) Investment liabilities 14 (67,998)

2,018,942 Total net investments 2,151,287

9,048 Current assets 21 14,814 

9,048    14,814 

(15,727) Current liabilities 22 (9,658)

2,012,263 

Net assets of the fund available to fund benefits at the end of the 

reporting period 2,156,443 

The fund's financial statements do not take account of liabilities to pay pensions and others benefits after the period end.

The actuarial present value of promised retirement benefits is disclosed at Note 20.

Dealings with members, employers and others directly involved in 

the Fund

Profits and losses on disposal of investments and changes in the market 

value of investments 

(88,268)

Net (increase)/decrease in the net assets available for benefits 

during the year (144,180)

37
57



PENSION FUND ACCOUNTS

Notes to the Royal County of Berkshire Pension Fund Accounts for the year ended 31 March 2019

1 Description of Fund

a) General

- The Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations 2013 (as amended)

-

- The Local Government Pension Scheme (Management and Investment of Funds) Regulations 2016.

The fund is overseen by the Pension Fund Panel, which is a committee of the Royal Borough of Windsor and Maidenhead.

b) Membership

Organisations participating in the Royal County of Berkshire Pension Fund include:

-

-

Membership details are set out below:

The Royal County of Berkshire Pension Fund

31 March 

2018

31 March 

2019

Number of employers with active members 186 204

Number of employees in scheme

Administering authority 1,867 1,594

Unitary authorities 12,741 13,297

Other employers 12,990 11,008

Total 27,598 25,899

Number of pensioners

Administering authority 1,792 1,878

Unitary authorities 8,822 9,354

Other employers 6,314 6,618

Total 16,928 17,850

Deferred pensioners

Administering authority 3,635 3,564

Unitary authorities 15,332 15,601

Other employers 6,817 7,403

Total 25,784 26,568

Total number of members in pension scheme 70,310 70,317

Admitted bodies, which are other organisations that participate in the fund under an admission agreement

between the fund and the relevant organisation. Admitted bodies include voluntary, charitable and similar

bodies or private contractors undertaking a local authority function following outsourcing to the private sector.

The Royal County of Berkshire Pension Fund (the ‘fund’) is part of the Local Government Pension Scheme and is administered by

the Royal Borough of Windsor and Maidenhead.

The fund is governed by the Public Service Pensions Act 2013. The fund is administered in accordance with the following secondary

legislation:

The Local Government Pension Scheme (Transitional Provisions, Savings and Amendment) Regulations 2014 

(as amended)

It is a contributory defined benefit pension scheme administered by the Royal Borough of Windsor and Maidenhead to provide

pensions and other benefits for pensionable employees of the 6 unitary local authorities in the geographical region of Berkshire, and

a range of other scheduled and admitted bodies. Teachers, police officers and firefighters are not included as they come within other

national pension schemes.

Membership of the LGPS is voluntary. Employees are automatically enrolled into the fund and are free to choose whether to remain

in the fund, opt-out of the fund, or make their own personal arrangements outside the fund.

Scheduled bodies, which are local authorities and similar bodies whose staff are automatically entitled to be

members of the fund.

38
58



PENSION FUND ACCOUNTS

c) Funding

d) Benefits

Service pre 1 April 2008 Service post 1 April 2008
Pension

Lump Sum Automatic lump sum of 3 x salary. No automatic lump sum.

2 Basis of preparation

3 Summary of significant accounting policies

Fund account - revenue recognition

a) Contribution income

b) Transfers to and from other schemes

Transfers in and out relate to members who have either joined or left the fund.

Employer deficit funding contributions are accounted for on the due dates on which they are payable under the rates and

adjustments certificate set by the fund actuary.

Additional employers' contributions in respect of ill-health and early retirements are accounted for in the period in which they are due.

Any amount due in year but unpaid will be classed as a current financial asset. Amounts not due until future years are classed as

long-term financial assets.

From 1 April 2014, the fund became a career average revalued earnings (CARE) scheme, whereby members accrue benefits based 

on their pensionable pay in that year at an accrual rate of 1/49th. Accrued pension is updated annually in line with the Consumer 

Prices Index.

There are a range of other benefits provided under the fund including early retirement, disability pensions and death benefits. For 

more details, please refer to the Royal County of Berkshire Pension Fund website.

The Statement of Accounts summarises the fund’s transactions for the 2018/19 financial year and its position at year-end as at 31

March 2019. The accounts have been prepared in accordance with the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United

Kingdom 2018/19 ('the code') which is based upon International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), as amended for the UK public

sector.

Paragraph 3.3.1.2 of the Code requires disclosure of any accounting standards issued but not yet adopted. No such accounting 

standards have been identified for 2018/19.

The accounts summarise the transactions of the fund and report on the net assets available to pay pension benefits. The accounts

do not take account of obligations to pay pensions and benefits which fall due after the end of the financial year.

Normal contributions, both from the members and from the employer, are accounted for on an accruals basis. Employee's

contribution rates are set in accordance with LGPS regulations. Employer's contributions are set at the percentage rate

recommended by the fund actuary.

Benefits are funded by contributions and investment earnings. Contributions are made by active members of the fund in accordance

with the LGPS Scheme Regulations 2013 and range from 5.5% to 12.5% of pensionable pay for the financial year ending 31 March

2019. Employers’ contributions are set based on triennial actuarial funding valuations. The last such valuation was at 31 March 2016.

During 2018/19, employer contribution rates ranged from 10.1% to 31.3% of pensionable pay.

Prior to 1 April 2014, pension benefits under the LGPS were based on final pensionable pay and length of pensionable service, 

summarised below.

Each year worked is worth 1/80 x final pensionable 

salary.

Each year worked is worth 1/60 x final pensionable 

salary.

In addition, part of the annual pension can be exchanged 

for a one-off tax-free cash payment. A lump sum of £12 

is paid for each £1 of pension given up.

Part of the annual pension can be exchanged for a one-

off tax-free cash payment. A lump sum of £12 is paid 

for each £1 of pension given up.

39
59



PENSION FUND ACCOUNTS

Bulk (group) transfers are accounted for on an accruals basis in accordance with the terms of the transfer agreement.

c) Investment income

i) Interest income

ii) Dividend income

iii) Distributions from pooled funds

iv) Movement in the net market value of investments

Fund Account - expense items

d) Benefits payable

e) Taxation

f) Management expenses

Administrative expenses

Investment management expenses

Oversight and governance costs

All staff costs associated with governance and oversight are charged direct to the fund. Associated management, accommodation

and other overheads are apportioned to this activity and charged as expenses to the fund.

Fees of the external investment manager and custodian are agreed in the respective mandates governing their appointments. Most

are based on the market value of the investments under their management and therefore increase or reduce as the value of these

investments change, but there are a number of fixed price contracts with annual inflation related increases.

Distributions from pooled funds are recognised at the date of issue. Any amount not received by the end of the reporting period is 

disclosed in the net assets statement as a current financial asset.

Changes in the net market value of investments are recognised as income and comprise all realised and unrealised profits/losses 

during the year.

Pensions and lump-sum benefits payable include all amounts known to be payable during the financial year. Any amounts due but 

unpaid are disclosed in the net assets statement as current liabilities.

The fund is a registered public service scheme under section 1(1) of Schedule 36 of the Finance Act 2004 and as such is exempt

from UK income tax on interest received and from capital gains tax on the proceeds of investments sold. Income from overseas

investments suffers withholding tax in the country of origin, unless exemption is permitted. Irrecoverable tax is accounted for as a

fund expense as it arises.

The fund discloses its pension fund management expenses in accordance with the CIPFA guidance Accounting for Local

Government Pension Scheme Management Costs (2016) . All items of expenditure are charged to the fund on an accruals basis as

follows:

All staff costs of the pensions administration team are charged direct to the fund. Associated management, accommodation and

other overheads are apportioned to this activity and charged as expenses to the fund.

Individual transfers in/out are accounted for when received/paid, which is normally when the member liability is accepted or 

discharged.

Transfers in from members wishing to use the proceeds of their additional voluntary contributions (see note 3m) to purchase fund

benefits are accounted for on a receipts basis and are included in transfers In (see Note 8).

Interest income is recognised in the fund account as it accrues, using the effective interest rate of the financial instrument as at the 

date of acquisition.

Dividend income is recognised on the date the shares are quoted ex-dividend. Any amount not received by the end of the reporting 

period is disclosed in the net assets statement as a current financial asset.

40
60



PENSION FUND ACCOUNTS

Net Assets Statement

g) Financial assets

h) Foreign currency transactions

i) Derivatives

j) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash comprises cash in hand and demand deposits and includes amounts held by the fund's external managers.

k) Financial liabilities

l) Actuarial present value of promised retirement benefits

m) Additional voluntary contributions

n) Contingent assets and contingent liabilities

AVCs are not included in the accounts in accordance with section 4(1)(b) of the LGPS (Management and Investment of Funds) 

Regulations 2016 but are disclosed as a note only (Note 23).

A contingent asset arises where an event has taken place giving rise to a possible asset whose existence will only be confirmed or 

otherwise by the occurrence of future events.

A contingent liability arises where an event has taken place prior to the year-end giving rise to a possible financial obligation whose 

existence will only be confirmed or otherwise by the occurrence of future events. Contingent liabilities can also arise in circumstances 

where a provision would be made, except that it is not possible at the balance sheet date to measure the value of the financial 

obligation reliably.

Contingent assets and liabilities are not recognised in the net assets statement but are disclosed by way of narrative in the notes.

The fund uses derivative financial instruments to manage its exposure to specific risks arising from its investment activities. The fund 

does not hold derivatives for speculative purposes.

Cash equivalents are short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and that are subject 

to minimal risk of changes in value.

The fund recognises financial liabilities at fair value as at the reporting date. A financial liability is recognised in the net assets

statement on the date the fund becomes party to the liability. From this date any gains or losses arising from changes in the fair

value of the liability are recognised by the fund.

The actuarial present value of promised retirement benefits is assessed on a triennial basis by the fund actuary in accordance with 

the requirements of International Accounting Standards (IAS19) and relevant actuarial standards.
As permitted under the code, the fund has opted to disclose the actuarial present value of promised retirement benefits by way of a 

note to the net assets statement (Note 20).

The Royal County of Berkshire Pension Fund provides an additional voluntary contributions (AVC) scheme for its members, the

assets of which are invested separately from those of the pension fund.

Financial assets are included in the net assets statement on a fair value basis as at the reporting date. A financial asset is

recognised in the net assets statement on the date the fund becomes party to the contractual acquisition of the asset. From this date,

any gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of the asset are recognised in the fund account.

The values of investments as shown in the net assets statement have been determined at fair value in accordance with the

requirements of the Code and IFRS13 (see note 16). For the purposes of disclosing levels of fair value hierachy, the fund has

adopted the classification guidelines recommended in Practical Guidance on Investment Disclosures (PRAG/Investment Association,

2016).

Dividends, interest and purchases and sales of investments in foreign currencies have been accounted for at the spot market rates

at the date of transaction. End-of-year spot market exchange rates are used to value cash balances held in foreign currency bank

accounts, market values of overseas investments and purchases and sales outstanding at the end of the reporting period.

41
61



PENSION FUND ACCOUNTS

4 Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

Pension fund liability

5 Assumptions made about the future and other major sources of estimation uncertainty

Item Uncertainties Effect if actual results differ from assumptions

6 Events after the balance sheet date

7 Contributions receivable

By category

2017/18 2018/19

£'000 £'000

26,650 Employees' contributions 27,654

Employers' contributions

61,089 Normal contributions 64,323

18,602 Deficit recovery contributions 22,604

2,250 Augmentation contributions 2,409

81,941 Total employer's contributions 89,336

108,591 116,990

Private equity 

investments
Private equity investments are valued at fair value in 

accordance with the International Private Equity and 

Venture Capital Board guidelines. These investments 

are not publicly listed and as such there is a degree of 

estimation involved in the valuation.

The total private equity investments in the financial 

statements are £697 million. There is a risk that this 

investment may be under- or overstated in the 

accounts.

There have been no events since 31 March 2019, and up to the date when these accounts were authorised, that require any 

adjustments to these accounts.

These actuarial revaluations are used to set future contribution rates and underpin the fund's most significant investment 

management policies, for example in terms of the balance struck between longer term investment growth and short-term yield/return.

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the

amounts reported for assets and liabilities at the balance sheet date and the amounts reported for the revenues and expenses during

the year. Estimates and assumptions are made taking into account historical experience, current trends and other relevant factors.

However, the nature of estimation means that the actual outcomes could differ from the assumptions and estimates.

The items in the financial statements and notes at 31 March 2019 for which there is a significant risk of material adjustment in the 

forthcoming financial year are as follows:

Actuarial present 

value of promised 

retirement benefits

Estimation of the net liability to pay pensions depends 

on a number of complex judgements relating to the 

discount rate used, the rate at which salaries are 

projected to increase, changes in retirement ages, 

mortality rates and expected returns on pension fund 

assets. A firm of consulting actuaries is engaged to 

provide the fund with expert advice about the 

assumptions to be applied.

The effects on the net pension liability of changes in 

individual assumptions can be measured. For 

instance, a 0.1% increase in the discount rate 

assumption would result in a decrease in the pension 

liability of approximately £84.2 million. A 0.1% increase 

in the long term salary increases assumption would 

increase the value of liabilities by approximately £7.3 

million, and a one-year increase in assumed life 

expectancy would increase the liability by 

approximately £157.5 million.

The net pension fund liability is recalculated every three years by the appointed actuary, with annual updates in the intervening 

years. The methodology used is in line with accepted guidelines.

This estimate is subject to significant variances based on changes to the underlying assumptions which are agreed with the actuary 

and have been summarised in Note 20. 

42
62



PENSION FUND ACCOUNTS

By type of employer

2017/18 2018/19

£'000 £'000

98,681 Scheduled bodies 105,180
4,657 Admitted bodies 5,761

5,253 Transferee admission body 6,049

108,591 116,990

8 Transfers in from other pension funds

2017/18 2018/19

£'000 £'000

13,356 Individual transfers from other pension funds 8,055

47 AVC to purchase scheme benefits 75
13,403 8,130

9 Benefits payable

By category

2017/18 2018/19

£'000 £'000

80,065 Pensions 85,105
17,520 15,674

2,908 Lump sum death benefits 2,056

100,493 102,835

By type of employer

2017/18 2018/19

£'000 £'000

91,265 Scheduled bodies 93,126

6,554 Admitted bodies 6,987

2,674 Transferee admission body 2,722

100,493 102,835

10 Payments to and on account of leavers

2017/18 2018/19

£'000 £'000

478 Refunds to members leaving service 485

9,706 Individual transfers to other pension funds 10,041

10,184 10,526

11 Management expenses

2017/18 2018/19

£'000 £'000

1,342 Administrative costs 1,349

7,816 Investment management expenses 9,698

46 Oversight and governance costs 46

9,204 11,093

a) Investment management expenses

2017/18 2018/19

£'000 £'000

7,583 Management Fees 9,414

233 Custody Fees 284

7,816 9,698

Commutation and lump sum retirement benefits

43
63



PENSION FUND ACCOUNTS

12 Investment income

2017/18 2018/19

£'000 £'000

19,090 Income from equities 14,080

2,348 Income from bonds 2,874

7,671 Private equity income 15,151

9,199 Pooled property investments 9,153

1,616 Pooled investments - unit trusts & other managed funds 733

846 Interest on cash deposits 1,775

40,770 Total before taxes 43,766

13 Other fund account disclosures

a) Taxes on income

2017/18 2018/19

£'000 £'000

1,064 Withholding tax - equities 583

1,342 Withholding tax - pooled property investments 175

630 Withholding tax - pooled investments 3,976

3,036 4,734

b) External audit costs

2017/18 2018/19

£'000 £'000

30 Payable in respect of external audit 21

30 21

14 Investments

  Market value Market value 

31 March 2018 31 March 2019

£'000 £'000

Investment assets

100,456 Bonds 36,453

458,806 Equities 23,588

332,724 Pooled investments 997,973

295,208 Pooled liquidity funds 137,972

271,613 Pooled property investments 294,011

583,269 Private equity 696,663

Derivative contracts:

3,929 - Forward currency contracts 413

32,836 Cash deposits 29,819

3,503 Investment income due 2,393

- Amounts receivable for sales -
2,082,344 Total investment assets 2,219,285

Investment liabilities

Derivative contracts:

(289) - Forward currency contracts (4,471)

(63,113) - Longevity Insurance Policy (63,527)

(63,402) Total investment liabilities (67,998)

2,018,942 Net investment assets 2,151,287

44
64



PENSION FUND ACCOUNTS

a) Reconciliation of movements in investments and derivatives

Market value Market value

1 April 2018 31 March 2019

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Bonds 100,456 363 (65,709) 1,343 36,453

Equities 458,806 75,282 (500,474) (10,026) 23,588

Pooled investments 332,724 646,906 (24,147) 42,490 997,973

Pooled liquidity funds 295,208 323,728 (482,068) 1,104 137,972

Pooled property investments 271,613 27,442 (20,338) 15,294 294,011

Private equity 583,269 138,288 (125,532) 100,638 696,663
2,042,076 1,212,009 (1,218,268) 150,843 2,186,660

Derivative contracts:

- Forward currency contracts 3,640 82,870 (49,600) (40,968) (4,058)

- Longevity insurance policy (63,113) 6,760 - (7,174) (63,527)

1,982,603 1,301,639 (1,267,868) 102,701 2,119,075 

Other investment balances:

- Cash deposits 32,836 1,781 29,819
- -

- Investment income due 3,503 2,393

Net investment assets 2,018,942 104,482 2,151,287

Market value Market value

1 April 2017 31 March 2018

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Bonds 84,320 20,347 -                 (4,211) 100,456

Equities 471,187 77,408 (77,447) (12,342) 458,806

Pooled investments 387,279 763 (44,218) (11,100) 332,724

Pooled liquidity funds 81,518 320,537 (105,647) (1,200) 295,208

Pooled property investments 259,548 25,283 (45,730) 32,512 271,613

Private equity 580,664 128,326 (128,686) 2,965 583,269
1,864,516 572,664 (401,728) 6,624 2,042,076

Derivative contracts:

- Forward currency contracts 20,606 28,105 (97,689) 52,618 3,640

- Longevity insurance policy (64,200) 6,894 - (5,807) (63,113)

1,820,922 607,663 (499,417) 53,435 1,982,603 

Other investment balances:

- Cash deposits 31,119 (5,014) 32,836
61,141 -

- Investment income due 3,120 3,503

Net investment assets 1,916,302 48,421 2,018,942

Purchases and sales of derivatives are recognised in note 14a above as follows:

Longevity insurance policy - the payments or receipts under the contract are reported in the above reconciliation table.

- Amount receivable for sales of 

investments

Forward currency contracts - forward foreign exchange contracts settled during the period are reported on a gross basis as gross 

receipts and payments.

£'000

- Amount receivable for sales of 

investments

Purchases during the 

year and derivative 

payments

Sales during the 

year & derivative 

receipts

Change in 

market value 

during the 

year

£'000

Purchases during the 

year and derivative 

payments

Sales during the 

year & derivative 

receipts

Change in 

market value 

during the 

year

45
65



PENSION FUND ACCOUNTS

b) Analysis of investments

31 March 2018 31 March 2019

£'000 £'000

Investment assets

Bonds

Overseas

100,456 Corporate quoted 36,453

100,456 36,453

Equities

UK

95,766 Quoted 23,588

Overseas

363,040 Quoted -

458,806 23,588

UK

221,673 Unit Trusts 935,447

Overseas

111,051 Unit Trusts 62,526

332,724 997,973

Other investment assets

295,208 Pooled liquidity funds 137,972

271,613 Pooled property investments 294,011

583,269 Private Equity 696,663

3,929 Derivative contracts - Forward Currency Contracts 413

32,836 Cash deposits 29,819

3,503 Investment income due 2,393

1,190,358 1,161,271

2,082,344 Total investment assets 2,219,285

Investment liabilities

(289) Derivative contracts - Forward Currency Contracts (4,471)

(63,113) Derivative contracts - Longevity insurance policy (63,527)

(63,402) Total investment liabilities (67,998)

2,018,942 Net investment assets 2,151,287

c) Investments analysed by fund manager

£'000 % £'000 %

- - LPP Investments 2,151,287 100.0

1,342,739 - -

221,659 11.0 Aviva Global Investors - -

242,880 12.0 Kames Capital - -

207,192 10.3 RWC Partners - -

4,472 0.2 The Cambridge Strategy - -

2,018,942 2,151,287

All the above organisations are registered in the United Kingdom.

In June 2018 the fund transferred the management of all investment assets to Local Pensions Partnership (LPP) Investments as part 

of the government's LGPS pooling initiative.

Pooled investments - additional 

analysis

Market value 31 

March 2018

Market value 31 

March 2019

66.5 Royal County of Berkshire Pension 

Fund in-house investment team

46
66



PENSION FUND ACCOUNTS

The following investments represent more than 5% of the net assets of the fund

Investment % of total fund Market % of total fund

value 31

March 2019

£'000 £'000

Aviva Global Real Estate 153,161 7.6 167,515 7.8

LPPI Global Equities Fund - - 624,010 28.9

15 a) Analysis of derivatives

Objectives and policies for holding derivatives

-  Forward foreign currency

-  Longevity Insurance Policy

Open forward currency contracts

Settlement Local Currency Local Liability

value sold value  value

'000 '000 £000 £000

One to six months JPY 3,315,270 GBP (22,792) 247

One to six months CHF 9,707 GBP (7,379) 128

One to six months BRL 4,912 USD (1,231) 19

One to six months INR 210,456 USD (2,986) 13

One to six months SGD 4,295 USD (3,170) 4

One to six months SGD 1,732 USD (1,279) 1

One to six months CLP 854,185 USD (1,254) 1

One to six months KRW 1,506,376 USD (1,328) (0)

One to six months INR 103,530 USD (1,479) (1)

One to six months MXN 22,268 USD (1,136) (2)

One to six months MXN 64,035 USD (3,267) (6)

One to six months KRW 3,521,028 USD (3,125) (17)

One to six months TRY 7,841 USD (1,331) (28)

One to six months CLP 2,100,764 USD (3,144) (43)

One to six months BRL 12,080 USD (3,148) (47)

One to six months GBP 12,845 AUD (23,820) (108)

One to six months TRY 16,676 USD (2,898) (110)

One to six months GBP 12,629 CAD (22,228) (114)

One to six months GBP 12,341 NOK (139,950) (120)

One to six months GBP 86,160 EUR (100,042) (284)

One to six months GBP 643,950 USD (847,108) (3,591)
Open forward currency contracts at 31 March 2019 413 (4,471)
Net forward currency contracts at 31 March 2019 (4,058)

Prior year comparative

Open forward currency contracts at 31 March 2018 3,929 (289)
Net forward currency contracts at 31 March 2018 3,640 

Market value 

31 March 

2018

Most of the holding in derivatives is to hedge liabilities or hedge exposures to reduce risk in the fund. Derivatives may be used to

gain exposure to an asset more efficiently than holding the underlying asset. The use of derivatives is managed in line with the

investment management agreement agreed between the fund and the various investment managers.

To maintain appropriate diversification and to take advantage of overseas investment returns, a significant proportion of the fund's

portfolio is in overseas assets. To reduce the volatility associated with fluctuating currency rates, the fund has a passive currency

programme in place with an external manager.

In December 2009 the fund entered into an insurance contract with ReAssure Ltd to cover a closed group of pensioner members.

The fund pays ReAssure a pre-determined fixed annual premium and ReAssure reimburses the fund for pensions paid to the insured

members. The contract is valued by an external firm of actuaries by considering what adjustment to the discount rate assumption

(based on the Merrill Lynch LIBOR swap curve) would be required if the contract had a zero value at the date of inception. A similar

adjustment is then made to the discount rate assumption at the accounting date to calculate the updated value of the contract.

Currency 

bought

Asset

value

47
67



PENSION FUND ACCOUNTS

16 Fair value - Basis of valuation

Not required

Not required

Not required

Not required

Not required

Sensitivity of assets valued at level 3

£'000 £'000 £'000
Private equity 4% 696,663 724,529 668,796
Total 696,663 724,529 668,796

a) Fair value hierarchy

Level 1

Asset and liability valuations have been classified into three levels, according to the quality and reliability of information used to 

determine fair values. Transfers between levels are recognised in the year in which they occur.

Assets and liabilities at level 1 are those where the fair values are derived from unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for 

identical assets or liabilities. Products classified as Level 1 comprise quoted equities, quoted fixed securities and quoted index linked 

securities.

Valuations could be affected by 

material events occurring 

between the date of the financial 

statements provided and the 

pension fund's own reporting 

date, by changes to expected 

cash flows, and by any 

differences between audited and 

unaudited accounts

Revenue multiple

Discount for lack of 

marketability
Control premium

Having analysed historical data and current market trends the fund has determined that the valuation methods described above are 

likely to be accurate to within the following ranges, and has set out below the consequent potential impact on the closing value of 

investments held at 31 March 2019.

Assessed 

valuation 

range (+/-)

Value at 

31 March 2019

Value on 

increase

Value on 

decrease

Pooled 

investments - 

overseas unit 

trusts and 

property funds

Level 2 Closing bid price where bid and offer 

prices are published

NAV-based pricing 

set on a forward 

pricing basisClosing single price where single price 

published

Unquoted equity Level 3 Comparable valuation of similar 

companies in accordance with 

International Private Equity and venture 

Capital Guidelines (2012)

EBITDA multiple

Exchange traded 

pooled 

investments

Level 1 Closing bid values on published 

exchanges

Not required

Forward foreign 

exchange 

derivatives

Level 2 Market forward exchange rates at the 

year-end

Exchange rate risk

Market quoted 

investments

Level 1 Published bid market price ruling on the 

final day of the accounting period

Not required

Quoted bonds Level 1 Fixed interest securities are valued at a 

market value based on current yields

Not required

The basis of the valuation of each class of investment asset is set below. There has been no change in the valuation techniques 

during the year. All assets have been valued using fair value techniques which represent the highest and best price available at the 

reporting date.

Description of 

asset

Valuation 

hierarchy

Observable and 

unobservable 

inputs

Key sensitivities affecting the 

valuations providedBasis of valuation

48
68



PENSION FUND ACCOUNTS

Level 2

Level 3

Using Total

observable
inputs inputs

Values at 31 March 2019 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

951,316 245,083 990,674 2,187,073 

(4,471) (63,527) (67,998)

Net investment assets 946,845 245,083 927,147 2,119,075 

Using Total
observable

inputs inputs
Values at 31 March 2018 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

814,103 377,010 854,882 2,045,995 

(279) (63,113) (63,392)

Net investment assets 813,824 377,010 791,769 1,982,603 

b) Reconciliation of fair value measurements within level 3

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Private equity 583,269 138,288 (125,532) 65,188 35,450 696,663 
583,269 138,288 (125,532) 65,188 35,450 696,663 

17 Financial instruments

a) Classification of financial instruments

31 March 2018

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

31 March 2019

U
n

re
a
li
s
e
d

 g
a
in

s
/

(l
o

s
s
e
s
)

R
e
a
li
s
e
d

 g
a
in

s
/

(l
o

s
s
e
s
)

M
a
rk

e
t 

v
a
lu

e

 3
1
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
9

The following table analyses the carrying amounts of financial assets and liabilities by category and net assets statement heading.

Fair value 

through profit 

and loss

Loans and 

receivables

Financial 

liabilities at 

amortised 

cost

Fair value 

through 

profit and 

loss

Loans and 

receivables

Financial 

liabilities at 

amortised

 cost

Financial assets at fair value 

through profit and loss
Financial liabilities at fair value 

through profit and loss

M
a
rk

e
t 

v
a
lu

e
 

3
1
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
8

P
u

rc
h

a
s
e
s
 d

u
ri

n
g

 t
h

e
 y

e
a
r

S
a
le

s
 d

u
ri

n
g

 t
h

e
 y

e
a
r 

Financial assets at fair value 

through profit and loss
Financial liabilities at fair value 

through profit and loss

Quoted 

market price

With significant
unobservable

Assets and liabilities at level 1 are those where the fair values are derived from unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for 

identical assets or liabilities. Products classified as Level 1 comprise quoted equities, quoted fixed securities and quoted index linked 

securities.

Assets and liabilities at level 2 are those where quoted market prices are not available; for example, where an instrument is traded in 

a market that is not considered to be active, or where valuation techniques are used to determine fair value.

Assets and liabilities at level 3 are those where at least one input that could have a significant effect on the instrument’s valuation is 

not based on observable market data.

The following table provides an analysis of the financial assets and liabilities of the pension fund grouped into levels 1 to 3, based on 

the level at which the fair value is observable.

Quoted 

market price

With significant
unobservable

49
69



PENSION FUND ACCOUNTS

Financial assets

100,456 Bonds 36,453

458,806 Equities 23,588

332,724 Pooled investments 997,973

295,208 Pooled liquidity funds 137,972

271,613 Pooled property investments 294,011

583,269 Private equity 696,663

3,929 Derivative contracts 413

36,131 Cash 39,098

3,503 Other investment balances 2,393

5,753 Debtors 5,535

2,046,005 45,387 - 2,187,073 47,026 -

Financial liabilities

(63,402) Derivative contracts (67,998)

(15,727) Creditors (9,658)

(63,402) - (15,727) (67,998) - (9,658)

1,982,603 45,387 (15,727) 2,119,075 47,026 (9,658)

b) Net gains and losses on financial instruments

31 March 2018 31 March 2019

£'000 £'000

53,435 Fair value through profit and loss 102,701 

(5,014) Loans and receivables 1,781 

48,421 Total 104,482 

The authority has not entered into any financial guarantees that are required to be accounted for as financial instruments.

18 Nature and extent of risks arising from financial instruments

Risk and risk management

a) Market risk

The fund manages these risks in two ways:

-

- specific risk exposure is limited by applying risk-weighted maximum exposures to individual investments.

the exposure of the fund to market risk is monitored through a factor risk analysis, to ensure that risk remains 

within tolerable levels

Equity futures contracts and exchange traded option contracts on individual securities may also be used to manage market risk on

equity investments. It is possible for over-the-counter equity derivative contracts to be used in exceptional circumstances to manage

specific aspects of market risk.

The fund’s primary long-term risk is that its assets will fall short of its liabilities (i.e. promised benefits payable to members).

Therefore the aim of investment risk management is to minimise the risk of an overall reduction in the value of the fund and to

maximise the opportunity for gains across the whole fund portfolio. The fund achieves this through asset diversification to reduce

exposure to market risk (price risk, currency risk, and interest rate risk) and credit risk to an acceptable level. In addition, the fund

manages its liquidity risk to ensure there is sufficient liquidity to meet the fund’s forecast cash flows. The fund manages these

investment risks as part of its overall pension fund risk management programme.

Responsibility for the fund's risk management strategy rests with the pension fund panel. Risk management policies are established

to identify and analyse the risks faced by the pension fund's operations. Policies are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in activity

and in market conditions.

Market risk is the risk of loss from fluctuations in equity and commodity prices, interest and foreign exchange rates and credit 

spreads. The fund is exposed to market risk from its investment activities, particularly through its equity holdings. The level of risk 

exposure depends on market conditions, expectations of future price and yield movements and the asset mix.

The objective of the fund's risk management strategy is to identify, manage and control market risk exposure within acceptable 

parameters, whilst optimising investment return.

In general, excessive volatility in market risk is managed through the diversification of the portfolio in terms of geographical and

industry sectors and individual securities. To mitigate market risk, the pension fund and its investment advisors undertake

appropriate monitoring of market conditions and benchmark analysis.

50
70



PENSION FUND ACCOUNTS

Other price risk

Other price risk - sensitivity analysis

Asset type Potential market movements (+/-)

Bonds 7.4%

Equities - listed 17.2%

Equities - unlisted 24.9%

Private Equity 24.9%

Private Equity - Credit 7.4%

Private Equity - Infrastructure 17.6%

Pooled investments - Equity 17.2%

Pooled investments - Bonds 6.3%

Pooled investments - Credit 7.4%

Pooled investments - Diversifying strategies 8.7%

Pooled Property Funds 18.8%

Asset type Potential market

movement

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Investment portfolio assets:

Bonds 36,453 2,698 39,150 33,755 

Equities - listed - - - -

Equities - unlisted 23,588 5,874 29,462 17,715 

Pooled investments - Equity 847,473 145,765 993,238 701,708 

Pooled investments - Bonds 64,597 4,070 68,667 60,527 

Pooled investments - Credit 6,979 516 7,495 6,463 

Pooled investments - Div. strategies 78,924 6,866 85,790 72,057 

Pooled liquidity funds 137,972 - 137,972 137,972 

Pooled Property Funds 294,011 55,274 349,285 238,737 

Private Equity 263,253 65,550 328,803 197,703 

Private Equity - Credit 234,361 17,343 251,703 217,018 

Private Equity - Infrastructure 199,049 35,033 234,081 164,016 

Net derivative liabilities (67,585) - (67,585) (67,585)

Cash deposits 29,819 - 29,819 29,819 

Investment income due 2,393 - 2,393 2,393 

Current assets:

The potential price changes disclosed above are broadly consistent with a one-standard deviation movement in the value of the 

assets. This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular foreign currency exchange rates and interest rates, remain the 

same.

Had the market price of the fund investments increased/decreased in line with the above, the change in the net assets available to 

pay benefits in the market price would have been as follows (with prior year comparator):

Value as at 

31 March 

2019

Value on 

increase

Value on 

decrease

Equity futures contracts and exchange traded option contracts on individual securities may also be used to manage market risk on

equity investments. It is possible for over-the-counter equity derivative contracts to be used in exceptional circumstances to manage

specific aspects of market risk.

Other price risk represents the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate as a result of changes in market prices (other

than those arising from interest rate risk or foreign exchange risk), whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the

individual instrument or its issuer or factors affecting all such instruments in the market.

The fund is exposed to share and derivative price risk. This arises from investments held by the fund for which the future price is

uncertain. All securities investments present a risk of loss of capital. Except for shares sold short, the maximum risk resulting from

financial instruments is determined by the fair value of the financial instruments.

The fund mitigates this price risk through diversification and the selection of securities and other financial instruments is monitored to 

ensure it is within limits specified in the fund investment strategy.

Following analysis of historical data and expected investment return during the financial year the council has determined that the 

following movements in market price risk are reasonably possible for the 2019/20 reporting period:

51
71



PENSION FUND ACCOUNTS

Debtors 5,536 - 5,536 5,536 

Cash balances 9,279 - 9,279 9,279 

Current liabilities (9,658) - (9,658) (9,658)

Total 2,156,443 2,495,432 1,817,456

Asset type Potential market

movement

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Investment portfolio assets:

Bonds 100,456 7,434 107,890 93,022 

Equities - listed 447,612 76,989 524,602 370,623 

Equities - unlisted 11,194 2,787 13,981 8,407 

Pooled investments - Equity 239,977 41,276 281,253 198,701 

Pooled investments - Bonds - - - -

Pooled investments - Credit 9,271 686 9,957 8,585 

Pooled investments - Div. strategies 83,476 7,262 90,738 76,213 

Pooled liquidity funds 295,208 - 295,208 295,208 

Pooled Property Funds 271,613 51,063 322,676 220,549 

Private Equity 250,203 62,301 312,504 187,902 

Private Equity - Credit 204,089 15,103 219,192 188,986 

Private Equity - Infrastructure 128,977 22,700 151,677 106,277 

Net derivative liabilities (59,473) - (59,473) (59,473)

Cash deposits 32,836 - 32,836 32,836 

Investment income due 3,503 - 3,503 3,503 

Current assets:

Debtors 5,753 - 5,753 5,753 

Cash balances 3,295 - 3,295 3,295 

Current liabilities (15,727) - (15,727) (15,727)

Total 2,012,263 2,299,866 1,724,660 

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk sensitivity analysis

+ 100 BPS - 100 BPS

£'000 £'000 £'000

Investments - Pooled liquidity funds 137,972 - -

Investments - Cash deposits 29,819 - -

Current assets - Cash balances 9,279 - -

Bonds 36,453 (1,094) 1,094 

1 BPS is the movement of 0.01% between two percentages, for example from 0.50% to 0.51%. Therefore 100BPS is the movement 

of 1.00% between two percentages, for example from 0.50% to 1.50%.

Total change in assets available

The fund invests in financial assets for the primary purpose of obtaining a return on investments. These investments are subject to

interest rate risks, which represent the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of

changes in market interest rates.

The fund's direct exposure to interest rate movements as at 31 March 2019 and 31 March 2018 is set out below. These disclosures 

present interest rate risk based on the underlying financial assets at fair value.

The fund recognises that interest rates can vary and can affect both income to the fund and the value of the net assets available to 

pay benefits. A 100 basis point (BPS) movement in interest rates is consistent with the level of sensitivity applied as part of the fund's 

risk management strategy.

The analysis that follows assumes that all other variables, in particular exchange rates, remain constant, and shows the effect in the 

year on the net assets available to pay benefits of a ± 100 BPS change in interest rates:

Asset exposed to 

interest rate risk

Value as at 

31 March 

2019

Change in year in the net assets available 

to pay benefits

Value as at 

31 March 

2018

Value on 

increase

Value on 

decrease

52
72



PENSION FUND ACCOUNTS

213,523 (1,094) 1,094 

+ 100 BPS - 100 BPS

£'000 £'000 £'000

Investments - Pooled liquidity funds 295,208 - -

Investments - Cash deposits 32,836 - -

Current assets - Cash balances 3,295 - -

Bonds 100,456 (4,379) 4,379 

431,795 (4,379) 4,379 

+ 100 BPS - 100 BPS

£'000 £'000 £'000

1,775 1,678 (1,678)

Bonds 2,874 - -

4,649 1,678 (1,678)

+ 100 BPS - 100 BPS

£'000 £'000 £'000

846 3,280 (3,280)

Bonds 2,348 - -

3,194 3,280 (3,280)

Currency risk

Currency risk - sensitivity analysis

This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular interest rates, remain constant.

Total change in income 

receivable

This analysis demonstrates that a 1% increase in interest rates will not affect the interest received on fixed interest assets but will

reduce their fair value, and vice versa. Changes in interest rates do not impact on the value of cash/cash equivalent balances but

they will affect the interest income received on those balances. Changes to both the fair value of assets and the income received

from investments impact on the net assets available to pay benefits.

Currency risk represents the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in

foreign exchange rates. The fund is exposed to currency risk on financial instruments that are denominated in any currency other

than the functional currency of the fund GBP. The fund holds both monetary and non-monetary assets denominated in currencies

other than GBP.

The table below shows the value of assets held by the fund in foreign currencies and the likely volatility associated with foreign 

exchange rate movements (as measured by one standard deviation).

Cash balances/cash and cash 

equivalents

Total change in income 

receivable

Income exposed 

to interest rate 

risk

Amount 

receivable in 

year ending 

31 March 

2018

Effect on income values

Cash balances/cash and cash 

equivalents

Total change in assets available

Asset exposed to 

interest rate risk

Value as at 

31 March 

2018

Change in year in the net assets available 

to pay benefits

Total change in assets available

Income exposed 

to interest rate 

risk

Amount 

receivable in 

year ending 

31 March 

2019

Effect on income values

53
73



PENSION FUND ACCOUNTS

Denominated Potential Value on increase

currency

volatility

 (+/-)

£'000 £'000 £'000

AUD 16,617 9.2% 18,150 15,083

CAD 4 9.0% 4 3

CHF 395 7.8% 426 365

EUR 1,058 6.9% 1,131 985

JPY 28 9.1% 31 25

NOK 221 8.5% 240 202

NZD 19,937 9.2% 21,777 18,097

SEK - 8.5% - -

USD 159,635 8.4% 173,092 146,177

Emerging markets - 8.7% - -
Total 197,895 214,851 180,937

Denominated Potential Value on increase

currency

volatility

 (+/-)

£'000 £'000 £'000

AUD 29,825 9.2% 32,578 27,073

CAD 2,618 9.0% 2,854 2,383

CHF 23,815 7.8% 25,668 21,963

EUR 77,374 6.9% 82,736 72,012

JPY 26,890 9.1% 29,340 24,441

NOK 13,221 8.5% 14,338 12,104

NZD 19,799 9.2% 21,626 17,971

SEK 5,317 8.5% 5,766 4,867

USD 353,067 8.4% 382,831 323,304

Emerging markets 23,806 8.7% 25,877 21,735
Total 575,732 623,614 527,853

b) Credit risk

Rating

£'000 £'000

Money Market funds

Aviva AAA 41,090 17,286

JP Morgan AAA 177,106 77,334

Legal & General AAA 36,009 26,207

Northern Trust AAA 41,002 17,146

Bank deposit accounts

JP Morgan AA- 32,836 29,819

Bank current accounts

Lloyds A+ 3,295 9,279

Total 331,338 177,071

Balances as at 31 

March 2018

Balances as at 31 

March 2019

Value as at 

31 March 

2018

Value on decrease

Credit risk represents the risk that the counterparty to a transaction or a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation and

cause the fund to incur a financial loss. The market values of investments generally reflect an assessment of credit in their pricing

and consequently the risk of loss is implicitly provided for in the carrying value of the fund's financial assets and liabilities.

The selection of high quality counterparties, brokers and financial institutions minimises credit risk that may occur through the failure

to settle a transaction in a timely manner.

Deposits are not made with banks and financial institutions unless they are rated independently and meet the funds's credit criteria.

The fund has also set limits as to the maximum deposit placed with any one class of financial institution. In addition, the fund invests

an agreed amount of its funds in the money markets to provide diversification.

The fund believes it has managed its exposure to credit risk, and has had no experience of default or uncollectable deposits over the 

past five financial years. The fund's cash holding under its treasury management arrangements at 31 March 2019 was £177.1m (31 

March 2018: £331.3m). This was held with the following institutions:

Value as at 

31 March 

2019

Value on decrease

54
74



PENSION FUND ACCOUNTS

c) Liquidity risk

Refinancing risk

19 Funding arrangements

The key elements of the funding policy are:

- 

-  to ensure that employer contribution rates are as stable as possible

- 

- 

- 

Financial assumptions

Discount Rate 5.7% per annum for unitary authorities, 5.5% for other employers

Pension and Deferred Pension Increases 2.4% per annum

Short term pay increases CPI for period from 31 March 2016 to 31 March 2020

Long term pay increases 3.9% per annum

Mortality assumptions

Current mortality 95% of the S2PA tables

Mortality Projection 2015 CMI Model with a long-term rate of improvement of 1.5% p.a

The fund defines liquid assets as assets that can be converted to cash within three months. Illiquid assets are those which will take 

longer than three months to convert to cash. As at 31 March 2019 the value of illiquid assets was £990.6m, which represented 45.9% 

of the total fund net assets (31 March 2018: £854.9m, which represented 42.5% of the total fund net assets).

to ensure the long-term solvency of the fund, i.e. that sufficient funds are available to meet all pension liabilities 

as they fall due for payment

to minimise the long-term cost of the fund by recognising the link between assets and liabilities and adopting an 

investment strategy that balances risk and return

to reflect the different characteristics of employing bodies in determining contribution rates where the 

administering authority considers it reasonable to do so

to use reasonable measures to reduce the risk to other employers and ultimately to the council tax payer from 

an employer defaulting on its pension obligations.

At the 2016 actuarial valuation the average required employer contribution to restore the funding position to 100% over the next 24 

years was 22.0% of pensionable pay.

The valuation of the fund has been undertaken using the projected unit method under which the salary increase for each member is 

assumed to increase until they leave active service by death, retirement or withdrawal from service. The principal assumptions were:

The aim is to achieve 100% solvency over a period of 24 years from the valuation date and to provide stability in employer 

contribution rates by spreading any increases in rates over a period of time. Solvency is achieved when the funds held, plus future 

expected investment returns and future contributions, are sufficient to meet expected future pension benefits payable.

At the 2016 actuarial valuation, the fund was assessed as 73% funded (75% at the March 2013 valuation). This corresponded to a 

deficit of 597 million (2013 valuation: 527 million) at that time.

Liquidity risk represents the risk that the fund will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. The fund therefore 

takes steps to ensure that it has adequate cash resources to meet its commitments.

The key risk is that the fund will be bound to replenish a significant proportion of its pension fund financial instruments at a time of 

unfavourable interest rates. The fund does not have any financial instruments that have a refinancing risk as part of its treasury 

management and investment strategies.

In line with the Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations 2013, the fund's actuary undertakes a funding valuation every three 

years for the purpose of setting employer contribution rates for the forthcoming triennial period. The last such valuation took place as 

at 31 March 2016. The next valuation will take place as at 31 March 2019.

55
75



PENSION FUND ACCOUNTS

Commutation assumption

20 Actuarial present value of promised retirement benefits

IAS19 assumptions used

Inflation/pension increase rate assumption 2.40%

Salary increase rate 3.90%

Discount rate 2.40%

21 Current assets

31 March 2018 31 March 2019

£'000 £'000

5,157 Contributions due 4,750 

596 Sundry debtors 785 

5,753 Debtors 5,535 

3,295 Cash balances 9,279 

9,048 14,814 

Analysis of debtors

31 March 2018 31 March 2019

£'000 £'000

1,549 Other local authorities 2,138

4,204 Other entities & individuals 3,397

5,753 5,535

22 Current liabilities

31 March 2018 31 March 2019

£'000 £'000

(15,727) Sundry creditors (9,658)

(15,727) (9,658)

Analysis of creditors

31 March 2018 31 March 2019

£'000 £'000

(902) Central government bodies (968)

(11,940) Other local authorities (5,051)

(2,885) Other entities & individuals (3,639)

(15,727) (9,658)

As noted above, the liabilities above are calculated on an IAS 19 basis and therefore differ from the results of the 2016 triennial 

funding valuation (see Note 19) because IAS 19 stipulates a discount rate rather than a rate which reflects market rates.

It is assumed that members at retirement will commute pension to provide a lump sum of 50% of the maximum allowed under HMRC 

rules and this will be at a rate of £12 lump sum of £1 of pension.

In addition to the triennial funding valuation, the fund’s actuary also undertakes a valuation of the pension fund liabilities, on an IAS

19 basis, using the same base data as the funding valuation rolled forward to the current financial year, taking account of changes in

membership numbers and updating assumptions to the current year. This valuation is not carried out on the same basis as that used

for setting fund contribution rates and the fund accounts do not take account of liabilities to pay pensions and other benefits in the

future.

In order to assess the value of the benefits on this basis, the actuary has updated the actuarial assumptions (set out below) from 

those used for funding purposes (see Note 19). The actuary has also used valued ill health and death benefits in line with IAS 19.

Calculated on an IAS19 basis, the actuarial present value of promised retirement benefits at 31 March 2019 was £4,413 million (31

March 2018: £4,264 million). The net assets available to pay benefits as at 31 March 2019 was £2,156 million (31 March 2018:

£2,010 million). The implied fund deficit as at March 2019 was therefore £2,258 million (31 March 2018: £2,254 million).

56
76



PENSION FUND ACCOUNTS

23 Additional voluntary contributions

Market value Market value

31 March 2018 31 March 2019

£'000 £'000

13,874 Prudential 13,861

4 Equitable Life 4

18 Clerical Medical 18

13,896 Total 13,883

AVC Contributions of £1.914 million were paid directly to Prudential during the year (2017/18: £2.051 million).

24 Related party transactions

The Royal Borough of Windsor and Maidenhead

Governance

No members of the pension fund panel are in receipt of pension benefits from The Royal County of Berkshire Pension Fund.

Each member of the pension fund panel is required to declare their interests at each meeting.

Key management personnel

25 Contingent liabilities and contractual commitments

Outstanding capital commitments (investments) at 31 March 2019 totalled £314.621m (31 March 2018: £321.046m).

26 Contingent assets

The Royal County of Berkshire Pension Fund is administered by The Royal Borough of Windsor and Maidenhead. During the 

reporting period, The Royal Borough of Windsor and Maidenhead incurred costs of £1.349m (2017/18 £1.342m) in relation to the 

administration of the fund and was subsequently reimbursed by the fund for these expenses. The council is also the 6th largest 

employer in the pension fund (by contributions paid) and contributed £10.9m (2017/18 £9.7m).

The disclosures required by Regulation 7(2)-(4) of the Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations can be found in the main accounts 

of The Royal Borough of Windsor and Maidenhead.

These commitments relate to outstanding call payments due on unquoted limited partnership funds held in the private equity and 

infrastructure parts of the portfolio. The amounts "called" by these funds are irregular in both size and timing.

Several admitted body employers in the Royal County of Berkshire Pension Fund hold insurance bonds to guard against the 

possibility of being unable to meet their pension obligations. These funds are drawn in favour of the pension fund and payment will 

only be triggered in the event of employer default.

57
77



58
78



 

 

Royal County of Berkshire Pension 

Fund 

Pension accounting disclosure as at 31 March 2019 

Prepared in accordance with IAS26 

 

Barnett Waddingham LLP 

23 May 2019 

 

59
79



 

 
RESTRICTED 0318                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                

Version 2 Royal County of Berkshire Pension Fund   |   IAS26 disclosure as at 31 March 2019  |  23 May 2019 

| 

 
2 of 13 

Contents 

Introduction ........................................................................................................................................................................................................ 3 

Valuation data ................................................................................................................................................................................................... 4 

Data sources .................................................................................................................................................................................................. 4 

Fund membership statistics ..................................................................................................................................................................... 4 

Early retirements .......................................................................................................................................................................................... 4 

Assets ............................................................................................................................................................................................................... 5 

Unfunded benefits ...................................................................................................................................................................................... 5 

Actuarial methods and assumptions ........................................................................................................................................................ 6 

Valuation approach .................................................................................................................................................................................... 6 

Guaranteed Minimum Pension (GMP) Equalisation .................................................................................................................. 6 

Demographic/Statistical assumptions ................................................................................................................................................. 7 

Financial assumptions ................................................................................................................................................................................ 8 

Results and disclosures .................................................................................................................................................................................. 9 

 Statement of financial position as at 31 March 2019....................................................................................... 10 

 Asset and benefit obligation reconciliation for the year to 31 March 2019 ........................................... 11 

 Sensitivity analysis .......................................................................................................................................................... 13 

 

 

60
80



 

 
RESTRICTED 0318                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                

Version 2 Royal County of Berkshire Pension Fund   |   IAS26 disclosure as at 31 March 2019  |  23 May 2019 

| 

 
3 of 13 

Introduction 

We have been instructed by the Royal Borough of Windsor and Maidenhead, the administering authority to the 

Royal County of Berkshire Pension Fund (the Fund), to undertake pension expense calculations in respect of 

pension benefits provided by the Local Government Pension Scheme (the LGPS) to members of the Fund as at 31 

March 2019.  We have taken account of current LGPS Regulations, as amended, as at the date of this report. 

This report is addressed to the administering authority and its advisers; in particular, this report is likely to be of 

relevance to the Fund’s auditor. 

These figures are prepared in accordance with our understanding of IAS26.  In calculating the disclosed numbers 

we have adopted methods and assumptions that are consistent with IAS19. 

This advice complies with Technical Actuarial Standard 100: Principles for Technical Actuarial Work (TAS 100). 

The LGPS is a defined benefit statutory scheme administered in accordance with the Local Government Pension 

Scheme Regulations 2013 and currently provides benefits based on career average revalued earnings. 

Please note that no allowance has been made for the recent McCloud judgement which relates to age 

discrimination within the New Judicial Pension Scheme.  It is currently unclear how this judgement may affect 

LGPS members’ past or future service benefits.  We continue to participate in discussions with the governing 

bodies of the LGPS to understand how this may affect mechanisms within the scheme, however, at the time of 

producing the report no guidance or indication of the likely impact of this ruling has been provided to funds. 

61
81



 

 
RESTRICTED 0318                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                

Version 2 Royal County of Berkshire Pension Fund   |   IAS26 disclosure as at 31 March 2019  |  23 May 2019 

| 

 
4 of 13 

Valuation data 

Data sources 

In completing our calculations for pension accounting purposes we have used the following items of data, which 

we received from the Royal Borough of Windsor and Maidenhead: 

 The results of the valuation as at 31 March 2016 which was carried out for funding purposes and the 

results of the 31 March 2018 IAS26 report which was carried out for accounting purposes; 

 Estimated whole Fund income and expenditure items for the period to 31 March 2019; 

 Estimated Fund returns based on Fund asset statements provided (or estimated where necessary) as at 

31 March 2016, 31 March 2018 and 31 March 2019; and 

 Details of any new early retirements for the period to 31 March 2019 that have been paid out on an 

unreduced basis, which are not anticipated in the normal service cost. 

Although some of these data items have been estimated, we do not believe that they are likely to have a material 

effect on the results of this report.  Further, we are not aware of any material changes or events since we received 

the data.  The data has been checked for reasonableness and we are happy that the data is sufficient for the 

purposes of this advice. 

Fund membership statistics 

The table below summarises the membership data, as at 31 March 2016. 

 

Early retirements 

We requested data on any early retirements in respect of the Fund from the administering authority for the year 

ending 31 March 2019.  

We have been notified of 67 new early retirements during the year which were not allowed for at the previous 

accounting date.  The total annual pension that came into payment was £635,500. 

The capitalised cost of the additional benefits on IAS19 compliant assumptions is calculated at £3,175,000.  This 

figure has been included within the service cost in the statement of profit or loss. 

 

Member data summary Number Salaries/Pensions Average age

£000s

Actives 25,050 390,997 45

Deferred pensioners 29,817 36,630 46

Pensioners 15,269 71,952 71

62
82



 

 
RESTRICTED 0318                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                

Version 2 Royal County of Berkshire Pension Fund   |   IAS26 disclosure as at 31 March 2019  |  23 May 2019 

| 

 
5 of 13 

Assets 

The return on the Fund (on a bid value to bid value basis) for the year to 31 March 2019 is estimated to be 7%.  

The actual return on Fund assets over the year may be different. 

The estimated asset allocation for Royal County of Berkshire Pension Fund as at 31 March 2019 is as follows: 

 

We have estimated the bid values where necessary.  The final asset allocation of the Fund assets as at 31 March 

2019 is likely to be different from that shown due to estimation techniques. 

Unfunded benefits 

We have excluded any unfunded benefits as these are liabilities of employers rather than the Fund. 

Asset breakdown

£000s % £000s %

Equities 1,136,095 53% 934,720 46%

Other Bonds 289,758 13% 295,759 15%

Property 294,434 14% 271,613 14%

Cash 166,752 8% 326,541 16%

Target Return Portfolio 78,924 4% 80,293 4%

Commodities 53,112 2% 35,507 2%

Infrastructure 199,049 9% 128,977 6%

Longevity Insurance -63,527 -3% -63,113 -3%

Total 2,154,597 100% 2,010,297 100%

31 Mar 201831 Mar 2019

63
83



 

 
RESTRICTED 0318                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                

Version 2 Royal County of Berkshire Pension Fund   |   IAS26 disclosure as at 31 March 2019  |  23 May 2019 

| 

 
6 of 13 

Actuarial methods and assumptions 

Valuation approach 

To assess the value of the Fund’s liabilities at 31 March 2019, we have rolled forward the value of Fund’s liabilities 

calculated for the funding valuation as at 31 March 2016, using financial assumptions that comply with IAS19. 

The full actuarial valuation involved projecting future cashflows to be paid from the Fund and placing a value on 

them.  These cashflows include pensions currently being paid to members of the Fund as well as pensions (and 

lump sums) that may be payable in future to members of the Fund or their dependants.  These pensions are 

linked to inflation and will normally be payable on retirement for the life of the member or a dependant following 

a member’s death. 

It is not possible to assess the accuracy of the estimated liability as at 31 March 2019 without completing a full 

valuation.  However, we are satisfied that the approach of rolling forward the previous valuation data to 31 March 

2019 should not introduce any material distortions in the results provided that the actual experience of the Fund 

has been broadly in line with the underlying assumptions, and that the structure of the liabilities is substantially 

the same as at the latest formal valuation.  From the information we have received there appears to be no evidence 

that this approach is inappropriate. 

The Fund entered into a longevity insurance contract in 2009 and this has been included in the assets.  To value 

the longevity insurance contract we have considered what adjustment to the discount rate assumption (based on 

the Merrill Lynch LIBOR swap curve) would be required if the contract had a zero value at the date of inception.  

This is consistent with the approach taken last year.  A similar adjustment is then made to the discount rate 

assumption at the accounting date to calculate the updated value of the contract.  Further details on this can be 

provided on request. 

Guaranteed Minimum Pension (GMP) Equalisation 

As a result of the High Court’s recent Lloyds ruling on the equalisation of GMPs between genders, a number of 

pension schemes have made adjustments to accounting disclosures to reflect the effect this ruling has on the 

value of pension liabilities.  It is our understanding that HM Treasury have confirmed that the judgement “does 

not impact on the current method used to achieve equalisation and indexation in public service pension 

schemes”.  More information on the current method of equalisation of public service pension schemes can be 

found here. 

On 22 January 2018, the Government published the outcome to its Indexation and equalisation of GMP in public 

service pension schemes consultation, concluding that the requirement for public service pension schemes to fully 

price protect the GMP element of individuals’ public service pension would be extended to those individuals 

reaching State Pension Age (SPA) before 6 April 2021.  HM Treasury published a Ministerial Direction on 

4 December 2018 to implement this outcome, with effect from 6 April 2016.  Details of this outcome and the 

Ministerial Direction can be found here. 

Our valuation assumption for GMP is that the Fund will pay limited increases for members that have reached SPA 

by 6 April 2016, with the Government providing the remainder of the inflationary increase.  For members that 

reach SPA after this date, we have assumed that the Fund will be required to pay the entire inflationary 

increase.  Therefore we do not believe we need to make any adjustments to the value placed on the liabilities as 

a result of the above outcome. 

64
84

https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/indexation-and-equalisation-of-gmp-in-public-service-pension-schemes/consultation-on-indexation-and-equalisation-of-gmp-in-public-service-pension-schemes
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/indexation-of-public-service-pensions


 

 
RESTRICTED 0318                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                

Version 2 Royal County of Berkshire Pension Fund   |   IAS26 disclosure as at 31 March 2019  |  23 May 2019 

| 

 
7 of 13 

Demographic/Statistical assumptions 

The demographic assumptions adopted were requested by the employer.  The post retirement mortality tables 

adopted are the S2PA tables with a multiplier of 95%.  These base tables are then projected using the CMI 2018 

Model, allowing for a long-term rate of improvement of 1.5% p.a.. 

Although the post retirement mortality tables adopted are consistent with the previous accounting date, the 

mortality improvement projection has been updated to use the latest version of the Continuous Mortality 

Investigation’s model, CMI_2018, which was released in March 2019.  We have adopted the default smoothing 

parameter of 7.0 and have not applied an additional initial rate, while continuing to adopt a long term 

improvement rate of 1.5% p.a.  At the last accounting date, the CMI_2015 Model was adopted.  The effect of 

updating to the most recent model is reflected in the Change in demographic assumptions figure in Appendix 2. 

The assumed life expectations from age 65 are: 

 

We have also assumed that: 

 Members will exchange half of their commutable pension for cash at retirement; 

 Members will retire at one retirement age for all tranches of benefit, which will be the pension weighted 

average tranche retirement age; and 

 The proportion of the membership that had taken up the 50:50 option at the previous valuation date 

will remain the same. 

Retiring today

Males 22.0 23.1

Females 24.0 25.2

Retiring in 20 years

Males 23.7 25.3

Females 25.8 27.5

31 Mar 2018Life expectancy from age 65 (years) 31 Mar 2019

65
85



 

 
RESTRICTED 0318                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                

Version 2 Royal County of Berkshire Pension Fund   |   IAS26 disclosure as at 31 March 2019  |  23 May 2019 

| 

 
8 of 13 

Financial assumptions 

The financial assumptions used to calculate the results in the Appendices are as follows: 

 

These assumptions are set with reference to market conditions at 31 March 2019. 

Our estimate of the Fund’s past service liability duration is 20 years. 

An estimate of the Fund’s future cashflows is made using notional cashflows based on the estimated duration 

above.  These estimated cashflows are then used to derive a Single Equivalent Discount Rate (SEDR).  The discount 

rate derived is such that the net present value of the notional cashflows, discounted at this single rate, equates 

to the net present value of the cashflows, discounted using the annualised Merrill Lynch AA rated corporate bond 

yield curve (where the spot curve is assumed to be flat beyond the 30 year point).  This is consistent with the 

approach used at the previous accounting date. 

Similar to the approach used to derive the discount rate, the Retail Prices Index (RPI) increase assumption is set 

using a Single Equivalent Inflation Rate (SEIR) approach, using the notional cashflows described above.  The single 

inflation rate derived is that which gives the same net present value of the cashflows, discounted using the 

annualised Merrill Lynch AA rated corporate bond yield curve, as applying the BoE implied inflation curve.  As 

above, the Merrill Lynch AA rated corporate bond yield spot curve is assumed to be flat beyond the 30 year point 

and the BoE implied inflation spot curve is assumed to be flat beyond the 40 year point.  This is consistent with 

the approach used at the previous accounting date. 

As future pension increases are expected to be based on the Consumer Prices Index (CPI) rather than RPI, we 

have made a further assumption about CPI which is that it will be 1.0% p.a. below RPI i.e. 2.4% p.a.  We believe 

that this is a reasonable estimate for the future differences in the indices, based on the different calculation 

methods and recent independent forecasts.  This is consistent with the approach used at the previous accounting 

date. 

Salaries are assumed to increase at 1.5% p.a. above CPI in addition to a promotional scale.  However, we have 

allowed for a short-term overlay from 31 March 2016 to 31 March 2020 for salaries to rise in line with CPI. 

Assumptions as at 31 Mar 2019 31 Mar 2018 31 Mar 2017

% p.a. % p.a. % p.a.

Discount rate 2.40% 2.55% 2.80%

Pension increases 2.40% 2.30% 2.70%

Salary increases 3.90% 3.80% 4.20%

66
86



 

 
RESTRICTED 0318                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                

Version 2 Royal County of Berkshire Pension Fund   |   IAS26 disclosure as at 31 March 2019  |  23 May 2019 

| 

 
9 of 13 

Results and disclosures 

We estimate that the net liability as at 31 March 2019 is a liability of £2,258,182,000.  

The results of our calculations for the year ended 31 March 2019 are set out in the appendices below: 

 Appendix 1 sets out the Statement of financial position as at 31 March 2019; 

 Appendix 2 details a reconciliation of assets and liabilities during the year; and 

 Appendix 3 shows a sensitivity analysis on the major assumptions. 

The figures presented in this report are prepared only for the purposes of IAS19.  In particular, they are not 

relevant for calculations undertaken for funding purposes or for other statutory purposes under UK pensions 

legislation. 

We would be pleased to answer any questions arising from this report.  

 

Roisin McGuire FFA 

Associate 

67
87



 

 
RESTRICTED 0318                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                

Version 2 Royal County of Berkshire Pension Fund   |   IAS26 disclosure as at 31 March 2019  |  23 May 2019 

| 

 
10 of 13 

 Statement of financial position as at 31 March 

2019 

 

*Present value of funded obligation consists of £4,296,997,000 in respect of vested obligation and £115,782,000 

in respect of non-vested obligation. 

Net pension asset as at 31 Mar 2019 31 Mar 2018 31 Mar 2017

£000s £000s £000s

4,412,779 4,263,622 4,185,496

2,154,597 2,010,297 1,924,017

Net liability in balance sheet 2,258,182 2,253,325 2,261,479

Present value of the defined benefit obligation

Fair value of Fund assets (bid value)

68
88



 

 
RESTRICTED 0318                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                

Version 2 Royal County of Berkshire Pension Fund   |   IAS26 disclosure as at 31 March 2019  |  23 May 2019 

| 

 
11 of 13 

 Asset and benefit obligation reconciliation for 

the year to 31 March 2019 

 

Year to Year to

31 Mar 2019 31 Mar 2018

£000s £000s

Opening defined benefit obligation 4,263,622 4,185,496

Current service cost 155,094 156,636

Interest cost 107,786 116,277

Change in financial assumptions 212,180 (127,915)

Change in demographic assumptions (251,529) -

Experience loss/(gain) on defined benefit obligation - -

Liabilities assumed / (extinguished) on settlements - -

Estimated benefits paid net of transfers in (105,168) (97,795)

Past service costs, including curtailments 3,175 4,467

Contributions by Scheme participants and other employers 27,619 26,456

Unfunded pension payments - -

Closing defined benefit obligation 4,412,779 4,263,622

Reconciliation of opening & closing balances of 

the present value of the defined benefit 

obligation

69
89



 

 
RESTRICTED 0318                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                

Version 2 Royal County of Berkshire Pension Fund   |   IAS26 disclosure as at 31 March 2019  |  23 May 2019 

| 

 
12 of 13 

The total return on the Fund’s assets for the year to 31 March 2019 is £133,654,000. 

Year to Year to

31 Mar 2019 31 Mar 2018

£000s £000s

Opening fair value of Fund assets 2,010,297 1,924,017

Interest on assets 51,414 53,936

Return on assets less interest 82,240 29,630

Other actuarial gains/(losses) - -

Administration expenses (1,300) (1,862)

Contributions by employer including unfunded 89,495 75,915

Contributions by Scheme participants and other employers 27,619 26,456

Estimated benefits paid plus unfunded net of transfers in (105,168) (97,795)

Settlement prices received / (paid) - -

Closing Fair value of Fund assets 2,154,597 2,010,297

Reconciliation of opening & closing balances of 

the fair value of Fund assets

70
90



 

 
RESTRICTED 0318                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                

Version 2 Royal County of Berkshire Pension Fund   |   IAS26 disclosure as at 31 March 2019  |  23 May 2019 

| 

 
13 of 13 

 Sensitivity analysis 

 

  

Sensitivity analysis (£000's)

Present value of total obligation

Sensitivity to +0.5% +0.1% -0.1% -0.5%

Discount rate 4,007,918 4,328,498 4,498,786 4,860,826

Long term salary increase 4,449,955 4,420,111 4,405,499 4,376,882

Pension increases and deferred revaluation 4,821,361 4,491,369 4,335,697 4,041,928

Sensitivity to +1 Year - 1 Year

Life expectancy assumptions 4,570,277 4,260,722

4,412,779

71
91



72
92



APPENDIX 1

COMMUNICATIONS STRATEGY

73
93



Version 4 – September 2018
2

74
94



Version 4 – September 2018
3

CONTENTS

1.0 INTRODUCTION ................................................................................................4

2.0 COMMUNICATION WITH SCHEME EMPLOYERS ..........................................5

2.1 Decision Making Process ......................................................................................... 5
2.2 Annual Scheme Employers Meeting ......................................................................... 5
2.3 Training for Scheme Employers................................................................................ 5
2.4 Regular LGPS updates............................................................................................. 6
2.5 General Guidance and Assistance............................................................................ 6
2.6 Promotional Services................................................................................................ 6
2.7 Scheme Member Data.............................................................................................. 7
2.8 Employer Factsheets ............................................................................................... 7
2.8 Employer Self-Service (ESS).................................................................................... 7

3.0 COMMUNICATION WITH INDIVIDUAL SCHEME MEMBERS 8

3.1 Welcome Pack.......................................................................................................... 8
3.2 Annual Benefit Statements ....................................................................................... 8
3.3 Pension Surgeries .................................................................................................... 8
3.4 Newsletters............................................................................................................... 9
3.5 Pre-Retirement Courses ........................................................................................... 9
3.6 Pension Fund Website.............................................................................................. 9
3.7 Pension Payslips ...................................................................................................... 9
3.8 P60s ......................................................................................................................... 9
3.9 Annual Pension Increase Letter.............................................................................. 10
3.10 Annual Meeting....................................................................................................... 10
3.11 Ad Hoc Meetings .................................................................................................... 10

4.0 COMMUNICATION WITH PROSPECTIVE SCHEME MEMBERS ..................10

5.0 COMMUNICATION WITH PROSPECTIVE SCHEME EMPLOYERS ..............10

75
95



Version 4 – September 2018
4

1.0 INTRODUCTION

This Communications Strategy (‘the Strategy’) is formulated by the Royal Borough of Windsor and
Maidenhead in its role as the Administering Authority for the Royal County of Berkshire Pension
Fund in accordance with Regulation 61 of the Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations
2013.

This Strategy deals with the communication of
all aspects of the scheme to both Scheme
employers and the individual LGPS members
(or their representatives).

It should be noted for the purposes of
clarification that the reference to ‘member’ in
this statement means an individual who by
virtue of his/her employment is an active
contributor, deferred beneficiary or retired
member of the Royal County of Berkshire
Pension Fund.

The aim of the Strategy is to provide clear and consistent information to all Scheme members and
employers and to communicate this information effectively and accurately.

This Strategy will be kept under review and amended following any material change as regards:

i) The provision of information and publicity about the Scheme to members,
representatives of members and Scheme employers;

ii) The format, frequency and method of distributing such information or publicity; and

iii) The promotion of the Scheme to prospective members.

Following any revision to the policy statement, the Administering Authority will publish the
statement as revised.

The communication policy is sub-divided into four main areas:

1 - Communication with Scheme employers;

2 - Communication with individual Scheme members (or their
representatives);

3 - Communication with prospective Scheme members; and

4 - Communication with prospective Scheme employers.

76
96



Version 4 – September 2018
5

2.0 COMMUNICATION WITH SCHEME EMPLOYERS

The Royal County of Berkshire Pension Fund has many Scheme employers that satisfy the
relevant membership conditions set out within the LGPS Regulations. These employers can be
broadly split into 2 groups:

Group 1: Scheduled Bodies (including Borough, District, Town and Parish Councils,
Academies, Berkshire Fire & Rescue Service, Colleges and Housing Associations)

Group 2 Admission Bodies (including employers previously defined as Community
Admission Bodies and Transferee Admission Bodies).

2.1 Decision Making Process

The Policy Statement on Governance covers the involvement of Scheme employers within the
decision making process but should also be seen as an element in the communication process
with regard to Scheme employers other than the Royal Borough of Windsor & Maidenhead in its
role as the Administering Authority for the Fund.

2.2 Scheme Employer Meetings

Meetings will be held between representatives of the 6 Berkshire Unitary Authorities and the Fund
on a quarterly basis to discuss all current pension-related matters. An open invitation is also
provided to other Scheme employers to meet with the Fund and discuss any element of pension
procedures they wish.

An annual meeting is held with at least one
representative of each Scheme employer being
invited to attend. Representatives of various
professional bodies employed by the Fund such as the
Actuary will be present at the meeting to explain the
details of any relevant topic and receive questions.
The Chairman of the Berkshire Pension Fund Panel is
expected to attend and chair the meeting. If possible
the Chairman of the Pension Board will also attend.
The date for this meeting may vary so as to take into
account the timing of any specific issues that may
arise such as the actuarial valuation results.

2.3 Training for Scheme Employers

Scheme administration guidance is available to all the
Scheme employers within the Fund via the Pension
Fund website. In addition training meetings may be
arranged on an ad hoc basis with the relevant officers
within the pension administration team and individual
Scheme employers by way of supplementing the
guidance provided via the website. These meetings are
most applicable for HR and payroll staff of the Scheme
employer.

77
97



Version 4 – September 2018
6

2.4 Regular LGPS updates

Regular updates are sent to each Scheme employer by the pension administration team regarding
any changes to the Local Government Pension Scheme. These are mainly in the form of
Employer newsletters (‘Inscribe’) posted to the Employer section of the Royal County of Berkshire
Pension Fund website but updates may also be provided in the form of letters or e-mails. Bulletins
will be issued three or four times a year and will include details of any legislation changes and
how the changes impact on Scheme employers.

The Royal County of Berkshire Pension Fund operates a Pension Fund website with sections
specifically dedicated to active Scheme members, deferred beneficiaries, retired members, and
Scheme employers.

Other details that can be found include:

Standard Fund documentation (guides,
leaflets and forms)

Statement of Accounts for the Pension
Fund

Investment Strategy Statement

Funding Strategy Statement

Governance Compliance Statement

Copies of Scheme Member newsletters

Links to other web sites

The Berkshire Pension Fund website address is www.berkshirepensions.org.uk.

2.5 General Guidance and Assistance

The pension administration team can be contacted during normal office hours and is always
available to answer any questions raised by Scheme employers and can arrange for ad hoc
meetings to be held for pension input into any specific tasks Scheme employers may have e.g.
outsourcing of services. The pension administration team can be contacted by telephone on 0845
602 7237 or by email at info@berkshirepensions.org.uk

2.6 Promotional Services

Promotional guides, factsheets and leaflets are produced by the pension administration team and
are available from the Pension Fund website. The pension administration team will also commit
to attending any events held by the Scheme employer where their input would be seen to be of
value.

78
98



Version 4 – September 2018
7

2.7 Scheme Member Data

The Administering Authority’s ‘Pension Administration Strategy’ is to accept data from Scheme
employers via i-Connect, a secure electronic data transfer interface between the Scheme
employer’s payroll system and the Scheme Administrator’s pension administration system. The
reasons for this are many but in particular because the data transfer is encrypted providing greater
data security, pension information is uploaded in real time meaning that Scheme members have
access to the most up to date membership information via ‘mypension ONLINE’, keying and data
errors are eliminated and scheme administration is maintained to the highest standards possible.

The Administering Authority will continue to work with
Scheme employers in implementing i-Connect but
until such time as a Scheme Employer contracts into
using i-Connect the Scheme Administrator will
continue to receive pension data from a Scheme
employer via either a pre-formatted excel
spreadsheet or by the completion of standard forms
as made available from the Scheme employers’
section of the Pension Fund website in both pdf and
Word formats.

With the exception of Scheme employers who use i-
Connect, all other Scheme employers are required to
supply a ‘year end’ return (31st March) to the
Administering Authority by 30th April in a specified

format to enable annual benefits statements to be produced and supplied to active and deferred
members within the statutory deadlines set out in Scheme regulations.

2.8 General Data Protection Regulations (GDPR)

GDPR came into force on 25 May 2018 and requires Privacy Notices to be published
showing transparency on how personal data is used. The Administering Authority has
produced and published on the Berkshire Pension Fund website a Privacy Notice
explaining how the Pension Fund collects personal data, what that data is used for, with
whom that data is shared and the rights of individuals with regard to their data.

In addition a Memorandum of Understanding regarding compliance with Data Protection
law has been produced and published on the website and Scheme employers and
Members have been advised through their respective newsletters.

2.9 Employer Factsheets

A suite of topical factsheets (known as “Pension Pointers”) is available to assist employers with
the administration of the LGPS.

2.10 Employer Self-Service (ESS)

The Administering Authority makes available to each Scheme employer the facility to access
member data in respect of their own current and former Scheme members through a secure link
to the pension administration software.

79
99



Version 4 – September 2018
8

3.0 COMMUNICATION WITH INDIVIDUAL SCHEME MEMBERS

Membership of the Royal County of Berkshire Pension Fund covers the active contributors, those
members who have left the Fund but still have a deferred pension awaiting payment from normal
retirement age and retired members and their dependants.

The preferred method of communication with Scheme members is via mypension ONLINE a
secure member self-service facility provided as part of the pension administration software.
mypension ONLINE is available to all member types and enables the member to update certain
personal details online and provides each member type with access to their annual benefit
statements, membership certificates and guides/leaflets relevant to their membership type.
Where a member requests that information should be supplied in a paper format the Scheme
Administrator will make arrangements for this information to be sent to the member’s home
address.

3.1 Welcome Pack

Upon receipt of a new starter notification from a Scheme employer, a mypension ONLINE
activation key is sent, by the pension administration team, to the home address of the new active
member. Access to the pension system provides a new Scheme member with:

A membership certificate of entry into the scheme
An employee guide to the scheme
A guide to increasing pension benefits
A guide to making a transfer of pension rights from a previous pension scheme;
A guide to protections for the family
An expression of wish form for payment of a death grant
A guide to civil partnerships
A guide to working part-time
A copy of the Pension Fund’s Service Standards
A guide to keeping records up to date
A guide to making contributions following a period of absence

If a Scheme member prefers not to use mypension ONLINE, they can request a full welcome pack
to be sent to their home address.

3.2 Annual Benefit Statements

Each active contributor and deferred beneficiary has an Annual Benefit Statement made available
via mypension ONLINE which includes details of:

Accrued benefits within the scheme as at the 31st March last

An estimate of benefits to Normal Pension Age

The value of the death grant payable from the Scheme

The member’s nominated beneficiaries for receipt of any death grant

If a Scheme member prefers, a paper copy of their annual benefit statement will be sent to their
home address upon request.

3.3 Pension Surgeries

One to one meetings are available at the Pension Fund offices for any member of the Fund and
formal Pension Surgeries are held twice yearly at the offices of the six Unitary Authorities and on
an ad hoc basis at the offices of other Scheme employers as arranged by the employer.

80
100



Version 4 – September 2018
9

3.4 Newsletters

Newsletters are produced bi-annually for active and retired
members and annually for deferred members. These
newsletters are available via mypension ONLINE or the
Pension Fund website although they can be sent out to
individual addresses if requested.

The newsletters are tailored to the recipient according to their
membership status and contain an update of all matters relating to the
LGPS and the Berkshire Pension Fund. Retired members receive “The
Scribe”.

Active members receive “The Quill” as do deferred members although
two different versions of the autumn edition are provided to cater for the
differences in the specific member types.

3.5 Pre-Retirement Courses

Where pre–retirement courses are run by Scheme employers, a member of the pension
administration team will be available to attend to explain the details of Scheme benefits and how
and when pension payments will be made.

3.6 Pension Fund Website

Individual members of the Fund have access to the Pension Fund website which is continually
reviewed and updated. Specific sections of the website have been designed for each membership
type with downloadable forms, guides, online flipbooks and modellers made available. Access to
mypension ONLINE is gained via the Pension Fund website www.berkshirepensions.org.uk

3.7 Pension Payslips

Pension payslips are available via mypension
ONLINE. If a member requires a pay advice slip to
be sent to their home address it is the practice of the
administering authority to only send out pay advice
slips when there is a variation of 50 pence or more in
net pay between consecutive months. A detailed
description of a payslip is available on the retired
members section of the Pension Fund website.

3.8 P60s

P60s are available via mypension ONLINE but will be
sent out to members’ home addresses as a matter of
course. Every retired member and/or their
dependants will receive a P60 each year before the
HMRC deadline of 31st May. A detailed description
of a P60 is available on the retired members section
of the Pension Fund website.

81
101



Version 4 – September 2018
10

3.9 Annual Pension Increase Letter

Annual Pension Increase letters are available via mypension ONLINE but will also be sent out to
members’ home addresses. Retired members will receive a pension increase booklet every April
containing their individual increase on their pension (where an increase is to be applied). This
letter will include details of the monetary value of their revised pension and details of the amount
to be paid in April.

3.10 Annual Meeting

An Annual Meeting of the Royal County of Berkshire Pension
Fund is held with all Scheme members receiving an invite. A
restricted number of members will be able to attend on a first
come first served basis. The main purpose of the meeting is
to communicate details of the Fund’s Annual Report &
Accounts, Investment Strategy and any other specific matters
relating to the LGPS Regulations. The date for this meeting
may vary so as to take into account certain regulatory matters
that may arise.

3.11 Ad Hoc Meetings

Ad hoc meetings will be held from time to time for various groups of members. These may be
defined by type of member (active or retired) or location (for a specific employer or group of
employers). The timing of these meetings will be dictated by either requests from employers or
the need to consult and notify members of any changes that occur.

4.0 COMMUNICATION WITH PROSPECTIVE SCHEME MEMBERS

A brief guide to the Scheme is available to all prospective Scheme members and should be
provided to all new employees by their Scheme employer as part of their contract of employment
details. The brief guide is available from the Pension Fund website in both pdf and Word formats
and is kept up to date with current regulations at all times.

The Berkshire Pension Fund website has a dedicated area for employees considering opting into
the LGPS.

5.0 COMMUNICATION WITH PROSPECTIVE SCHEME EMPLOYERS

A guide for admission bodies is available on the Pension Fund website for all prospective
employers considering admission to the Berkshire Pension Fund and is available as a hard copy
upon request.

A template admission agreement has been produced and is available either via the Pension Fund
website or as a hard copy upon request.

The administering authority has the power to accept various types of Scheme employer into the
Pension Fund but will only do so subject to a full and open discussion taking place between the
parties to any admission agreement and that the final admission agreement has been completed
in advance of the agreed admission date.

Approved by the Berkshire Pension Fund Panel: 17 September 2018

Next review date: September 2019

82
102



APPENDIX 2

GOVERNANCE

COMPLIANCE

STATEMENT

83
103



Document created May 2015
Date last reviewed January 2019
Approved by Pension Panel 14 January 2019

2

84
104



Document created May 2015
Date last reviewed January 2019
Approved by Pension Panel 14 January 2019

3

CONTENTS

INTRODUCTION.............................................................................................................5

STRUCTURE..................................................................................................................5

REPRESENTATION .......................................................................................................6

SELECTION AND ROLE OF LAY MEMBERS ...............................................................7

VOTING ..........................................................................................................................7

TRAINING / FACILITY TIME / EXPENSES ....................................................................7

MEETINGS (frequency/Quorum) ..................................................................................8

ACCESS.........................................................................................................................8

SCOPE ...........................................................................................................................8

PUBLICITY .....................................................................................................................9

85
105



Document created May 2015
Date last reviewed January 2019
Approved by Pension Panel 14 January 2019

4

86
106



Document created May 2015
Date last reviewed January 2019
Approved by Pension Panel 14 January 2019

5

INTRODUCTION

This document details the compliance of the Royal Borough of Windsor and Maidenhead,
as the administering authority of the Royal County of Berkshire Pension Fund, with the
guidance issued for governance of the Local Government Pension Scheme by the
Secretary of State for Housing, Communities and Local Government. It has been
prepared as required by Regulation 55 of the Local Government Pension Scheme
Regulations 2013.

The Regulations require the administering authority to prepare this written statement
setting out whether or not it delegates its functions or part of its functions to a committee,
a sub-committee or an officer of the authority.

Where the administering authority does delegate all or part of its functions the statement
must include the terms, structure and operational procedures of the delegation, the
frequency of any committee or sub-committee meetings and whether such a committee or
sub-committee includes representatives of Scheme employers and members, and if so,
whether those representatives have voting rights.

In addition, the administering authority must state the extent to which a delegation, or the
absence of a delegation, complies with guidance given by the Secretary of State and, to
the extent that it does not comply, the reasons for not complying.

The administering authority must also set out details of the terms, structure and
operational procedures relating to the local pension board established under regulation
106 of the Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations 2013 as inserted by the Local
Government Pension Scheme (Amendment) (Governance) Regulations 2015.

This governance compliance statement must be published by the administering authority,
kept under review and amended following any material change to any matters included
within, once any consultation has been concluded.

STRUCTURE

The Royal Borough of Windsor & Maidenhead (RBWM) has been designated as the
administering authority to the Royal County of Berkshire Pension Fund in accordance with
Part 1 of Schedule 3 of the Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations 2013.

For the purposes of managing the Pension Fund, RBWM delegates its powers under the
Constitution of the Council where it sets out the functions of the Royal County of Berkshire
Pension Fund Panel (hereinafter referred to as ‘the Main Panel’), the Royal County of
Berkshire Pension Fund Advisory Panel (hereinafter referred to as ‘the Advisory Panel’)
and the Berkshire Pension Board (hereinafter referred to as ‘the Pension Board’). As such
several principles have been set out to ensure compliance with the scheme regulations.

i) The management of the administration of benefits and strategic allocation of fund
assets.

Compliant – The Constitution of the Council defines the responsibilities of ‘the
Main Panel’ to manage the Pension Fund.

ii) Representatives of Scheme employers and Scheme members should sit on ‘the
Advisory Panel’ to underpin the work of ‘the Main Panel’.

87
107



Document created May 2015
Date last reviewed January 2019
Approved by Pension Panel 14 January 2019

6

Compliant – Membership of ‘the Advisory Panel’ includes five Elected Members
from RBWM, one Elected Member from each of the other five Berkshire Unitary
Authorities, three other Scheme employer representatives, two union
representatives, and two members to represent the active, deferred and retired
Scheme members.

iii) The structure of ‘the Main Panel’ and ‘the Advisory Panel’ should ensure
effective communication across both levels.

Compliant – ‘The Advisory Panel’ meets concurrently with ‘the Main Panel’ with
both Panels receiving the same information.

iv) At least one seat on ‘the Main Panel’ should be allocated for a member of ‘the
Advisory Panel’.

Complaint – All five seats on ‘the Main Panel’ are allocated to the five RBWM
members of ‘the Advisory Panel’.

v) The structure of ‘the Pension Board’ must consist of an equal number of Scheme
member and Scheme employer representatives all of whom have voting rights.

Compliant – Membership of ‘the Pension Board’ consists of three Scheme
member representatives and three Scheme employer representatives.

REPRESENTATION

All key stakeholders should be afforded the opportunity to be represented with ‘the Main
Panel’, ‘the Advisory Panel’ and ‘the Pension Board’. To ensure compliance a number of
principles have been identified.

The key stakeholders are:

i) Scheme employers.

Compliant – The six Berkshire Unitary Authorities and up to three of the other
Scheme employers are represented on ‘the Advisory Panel’. In addition three
Scheme employer representatives make up membership of ‘the Pension Board’

ii) Scheme members (including deferred and retired members).

Compliant – ‘The Advisory Panel’ has two representatives from the major trades
unions and makes provision to have two representatives from the active, deferred
or retired Scheme membership. In addition 3 Scheme member representatives sit
on ‘the Pension Board’

iii) Independent Professional Observers.

Compliant – An Independent Adviser attends each meeting of ‘the Main Panel’
and ‘the Advisory Panel’. Independent Advisers are also required to attend
meetings of ‘the Pension Board’ as may be requested.

iv) Expert advisers (on an ad-hoc basis)

88
108



Document created May 2015
Date last reviewed January 2019
Approved by Pension Panel 14 January 2019

7

Compliant – Expert advisers are invited to meetings of ‘the Main Panel’ and ‘the
Advisory Panel’ as required. Independent Strategy Advisers attend meetings of
the Investment Group. In addition expert advisers are required to attend meetings
of ‘the Pension Board’ as may be requested.

v) Where lay members sit on either ‘the Main Panel’ or ‘the Advisory Panel’ they
are treated equally in terms of access to papers, meetings and training and are
given full opportunity to contribute to the decision making process with or without
voting rights. No lay members sit on ‘the Pension Board’.

Compliant – Members of both ‘the Main Panel’, ‘the Advisory Panel’ and ‘the
Pension Board’ are treated equally in respect of access to papers, meetings and
training. All members are given full opportunity to contribute to the decision making
process although only members of ‘the Main Panel’ have voting rights.

SELECTION AND ROLE OF LAY MEMBERS

Members of ‘the Main Panel’, ‘the Advisory Panel’ and ‘the Pension Board’ need to be fully
aware of the status, role and function that they are required to perform.

Compliant – Bodies nominating individuals for membership of ‘the Main Panel’, ‘the
Advisory Panel’ or ‘the Pension Board’ are periodically reminded that it is their
responsibility to ensure that all members are aware of their responsibilities. The Chair of
‘the Main Panel’ will remind members of both ‘the Main Panel’ and ‘the Advisory Panel’ of
their responsibilities as required. The Chair of ‘the Pension Board’ will remind members
of ‘the Pension Board’ of their responsibilities as required. Each set of papers for every
Panel/Board meeting contains a reminder to members of their duty in respect to potential
conflicts of interest. Members are expected to declare conflicts of interest and abide by
RBWM’s rules on conflicts of interest.

VOTING

The policy of the administering authority on voting rights must be clear and transparent
and include justification for not extending voting rights to each body or group represented
on ‘the Main Panel’, ‘the Advisory Panel’ or ‘the Pension Board’.

Compliant – The Constitution of RBWM sets out the terms of reference and voting rights
of ‘the Main Panel’, ‘the Advisory Panel’ and ‘the Pension Board’.

TRAINING / FACILITY TIME / EXPENSES

i) In relation to the way in which statutory and related decisions are taken by
RBWM, a clear policy on training, facility time and reimbursement of expenses in
respect of members involved in that decision making process must be made.

Compliant – All members of ‘the Main Panel’ and ‘the Advisory Panel’ are entitled
to attend or request training. Members of ‘the Pension Board’ are required to have
a working knowledge of the LGPS regulations and other associated legislation as
it relates to the governance and administration of the Scheme and so must commit
to undertaking the relevant training in order to achieve this requirement. All
members of ‘the Main Panel, ‘the Advisory Panel and ‘the Board’ are entitled to
request the use of facilities belonging to RBWM in respect of their respective duties
and reasonable expenses incurred will be reimbursed upon request.

89
109



Document created May 2015
Date last reviewed January 2019
Approved by Pension Panel 14 January 2019

8

ii) Any policy must apply equally to all members of the Panels/Board.

Compliant – No distinction is made between members of ‘the Main Panel’, ‘the
Advisory Panel’ or ‘the Board’.

MEETINGS (frequency/Quorum)

i) RBWM will hold meetings of ‘the Main Panel’ at least quarterly.

Compliant – Meetings are held quarterly. To be quorate two members are
required to attend.

ii) RBWM will hold meetings with ‘the Advisory Panel’ at least twice a year
synchronised with the dates for meetings of ‘the Main Panel’.

Compliant – Both Panels meet concurrently

iii) RBWM will hold meetings of ‘the Pension Board’ ahead of each meeting of ‘the
Main Panel’ and ‘the Advisory Panel’.

Compliant – ‘The Pension Board’ meets quarterly at a satisfactorily and mutually
agreed date ahead of each meeting of ‘the Main Panel’ and ‘the Advisory Panel’.
To be quorate at least 50% of the Scheme Member representatives and Scheme
Employer Representatives must attend with at least one member being present
from each group.

iv) Where lay members are included in the formal governance arrangements
RBWM will provide a forum outside of those arrangements by which the interests
of key stakeholders can be represented.

Compliant – ‘The Advisory Panel’ has four lay members. An annual Scheme
employer meeting is held in March/April with an annual Scheme member meeting
being held in November. In addition pension surgeries and employer training
events are held throughout the year.

ACCESS

Subject to any rules in RBWM’s Constitution, all members of ‘the Main Panel’, ‘the
Advisory Panel’ and ‘the Pension Board’ will have equal access to committee papers,
documents and advice that falls to be considered at meetings of the Panels/Board.

Compliant – All members of ‘the Main Panel’, ‘the Advisory Panel’ and ‘the Pension
Board’ have equal access to Panel/Board papers, documents and advice that falls to be
considered at Panel/Board meetings.

SCOPE

RBWM will take steps to bring wider Scheme issues within the scope of their governance
arrangements.

Compliant – Wider Scheme issues are considered by ‘the Main Panel’, ‘the Advisory
Panel’ and ‘the Pension Board’ on a regular basis.

90
110



Document created May 2015
Date last reviewed January 2019
Approved by Pension Panel 14 January 2019

9

PUBLICITY

RBWM will publish details of their governance arrangements in such a way that interested
stakeholders can express their interest in wanting to be part of those arrangements.

Compliant – The Governance Policy Statement is published on the Royal County of
Berkshire Pension Fund website (www.berkshirepensions.org.uk) and is available on
request from the Pension Fund.

Approved by The Berkshire Pension Fund Panel on 14 January 2019

91
111



92
112



APPENDIX 3a

FUNDING
STRATEGY
STATEMENT

93
113



Version 8 – March 2019 2

94
114



Version 8 – March 2019 3

CONTENTS

1 INTRODUCTION ............................................................................................................ 5

Purpose of the Funding Strategy Statement ....................................................................... 5

Funding Objectives ............................................................................................................. 5

2 KEY PARTIES................................................................................................................ 6

The Administering Authority ................................................................................................ 6

Scheme employers ............................................................................................................. 6

Fund Actuary ...................................................................................................................... 7

3 FUNDING STRATEGY ................................................................................................... 7

Funding Method.................................................................................................................. 8

Valuation Assumptions and Funding Model ........................................................................ 9

Future Price Inflation........................................................................................................... 9

Future Pay Inflation............................................................................................................. 9

Future Pension Increases ................................................................................................... 9

Future Investment Returns/Discount Rate .......................................................................... 9

Asset Valuation................................................................................................................. 10

Statistical Assumptions ..................................................................................................... 10

Deficit Recovery/Surplus Amortisation Periods ................................................................. 10

Pooling of Individual Scheme employers........................................................................... 11

Cessation Valuations ........................................................................................................ 12

Early Retirement Costs ..................................................................................................... 12

Triennial Valuation ............................................................................................................ 12

4 LINKS WITH THE INVESTMENT STRATEGY STATEMENT (ISS) ............................. 12

5 RISKS AND COUNTER MEASURES........................................................................... 13

Financial Risks.................................................................................................................. 13

Demographic Risks........................................................................................................... 13

Regulatory Risks............................................................................................................... 14

Governance ...................................................................................................................... 14

6 MONITORING AND REVIEW....................................................................................... 14

95
115



Version 8 – March 2019 4

96
116



Version 8 – March 2019 5

1 INTRODUCTION

1.1 This is the Funding Strategy Statement (“FSS”) for the Royal County of Berkshire
Pension Fund (“the Fund”) which is administered by The Royal Borough of Windsor and
Maidenhead (“the Administering Authority”). It has been prepared in accordance with
Regulation 58 of the Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations 2013.

1.2 This statement should be read in conjunction with the Fund’s Investment Strategy
Statement (“ISS”)

Purpose of the Funding Strategy Statement

1.3 The purpose of the FSS is to explain the Fund’s approach to meeting the employer’s
pension liabilities and in particular:

 To establish a clear and transparent Fund-specific strategy which will identify how
employers’ pension liabilities are best met going forward;

 To take a prudent longer-term view of funding those
liabilities; and

 To support the regulatory framework to ensure the
solvency of the Fund and the long-term cost efficiency
of the Scheme, and where possible to maintain as
nearly constant Scheme employer contribution rates as
possible.

1.4 The purpose of the Fund is to:

 Collect monies in respect of employee and employer
contributions, transfer values and investment income;

 Facilitate payment of Local Government Pension
Scheme (LGPS) benefits, transfer values, costs,
charges and expenses; and

 Accumulate and invest money received and facilitate the management of this.

Funding Objectives

1.5 Contributions are paid to the Fund by Scheme members and Scheme employers to
provide for the benefits which will become payable to Scheme members when they fall
due.

1.6 The funding objectives are to

 Set levels of employer contributions that will build up a fund of assets that will be
sufficient to meet all future benefit payments from the Fund and ensure the solvency of
the Fund;

 Set contributions which maximise the long-term cost efficiency. Broadly, this means
that paying contributions as soon as possible so that any deficit is addressed quickly is
preferable;

97
117



Version 8 – March 2019 6

 Build up the required assets in such a way that produces levels of employer
contributions that are as stable as possible;

 Minimise the risk of employers leaving with unpaid deficits, which then fall to the other
employers;

 Ensure effective and efficient management of employer liabilities; and

 Allow the return from investments to be maximised within reasonable risk parameters.

2 KEY PARTIES

2.1 The parties directly concerned with the funding aspect of the Pension Fund are
contained in this section of the FSS. A number of other key parties, including investment
managers and external auditors also have responsibilities to the Fund but are not key
parties in determining funding strategy.

The Administering Authority

The Administering Authority for the Royal County
Berkshire Pension Fund is the Royal Borough of
Windsor & Maidenhead. The main responsibilities of
the Administering Authority are as follows:

 Collect and account for employee and employer
contributions;

 Pay the benefits to Scheme members and their
dependants as they fall due;

 Invest the Fund’s assets ensuring sufficient cash
is available to meet the liabilities as and when they become due;

 Take measures as set out in the regulations to safeguard the Fund against the
consequences of employer default;

 Manage the Actuarial valuation process in conjunction with the Fund Actuary;

 Prepare and maintain the FSS and also the ISS (Investment Strategy Statement) and
after consultation with other interested parties;

 Monitor all aspects of the Fund’s performance and funding to ensure that the FSS and
the ISS are updated as necessary; and

 Effectively manage any potential conflicts of interest arising from its dual role as both
Fund administrator and Scheme employer.

Scheme employers

2.3 The responsibilities of each individual Scheme employer which participates in the Fund,
including the Administering Authority in its capacity as a Scheme employer, are as
follows:

98
118



Version 8 – March 2019 7

 Collect employee contributions and pay these
together with their own employer
contributions as certified by the Fund Actuary
within the statutory timescales;

 Promptly notify the Administering Authority of
any new Scheme members and any other
membership changes in accordance with the
pension administration service level
agreement;

 Promptly notify the Administering Authority of
any Scheme member who leaves or retires
from their employment in accordance with the
pension administration service level
agreement;

 Promptly notify the Administering Authority of all Scheme member data and information
required by the Administering Authority in accordance with the pension administration
service level agreement so that the Administering Authority is able to accurately
calculate the value of benefits payable to each Scheme member;

 Exercise any discretions permitted under the Scheme Regulations and to produce,
maintain and publish a policy statement with regard to the exercise of those discretions;

 Meet the costs of any augmentations or other additional costs such as Pension Fund
strain costs resulting from decisions to release early Scheme members’ retirement
benefits in accordance with Scheme regulations and agreed policies and procedures;

 Provide any information as requested to facilitate the Actuarial valuation process.

Fund Actuary

2.4 The Fund Actuary for the Royal County of Berkshire Pension Fund is Barnett
Waddingham LLP. The main responsibilities of the Fund
Actuary are to:

 Prepare the Actuarial Valuation having regard to the FSS and
the Scheme Regulations;

 Prepare annual FRS102/IAS19 (accounting standards)
reports for all Scheme employers requiring such a report for
their annual report and accounts;

 Advise interested parties on funding strategy and completion
of Actuarial valuations in accordance with the FSS and the
Scheme Regulations;

 Advise on other actuarial matters affecting the financial
position of the Fund.

3 FUNDING STRATEGY

99
119



Version 8 – March 2019 8

3.1 The funding strategy seeks to achieve (via employee and employer contributions and
investment returns) two key objectives:

 A funding level of 100% as assessed by the Fund’s appointed Actuary, triennially, in
accordance with the Scheme Regulations;

 As stable an employer contribution rate as is practical.

3.2 The funding strategy recognises that the funding level will fluctuate with changing levels
of employment, retirements, actuarial assumptions and investment returns and that the
employer contribution has to be adjusted to a level sufficient to maintain the Pension
Fund’s solvency and to achieve a funding level of 100% over the longer term.

3.3 The Actuarial valuation process is essentially a projection of future cash-flows to and
from the Fund. The main purpose of the triennial valuation is to determine the level of
employers’ contributions that should be paid over an agreed period to ensure that the
existing assets and future contributions will be sufficient to meet all future benefit
payments from the Fund.

3.4 The last Actuarial valuation was carried out as at 31st March 2016 with the assets of the
Fund found to be 73% of the accrued liabilities for the Fund.

Funding Method

3.5 The funding target is to have sufficient assets to meet the accrued liabilities for each
Scheme employer in the Fund. The funding target may, however, also depend on
certain Scheme employer circumstances and will, in particular, have regard to whether
a Scheme employer is an “open” employer (which allows new recruits access to the
Fund) or a “closed” employer (which no longer permits new employees access to the
Fund). The expected period of participation by a Scheme employer in the Fund may
also affect the chosen funding target.

3.6 For all Scheme employers the Actuarial funding method adopted considers separately
the benefits in respect of service completed before the Valuation date (“past service”)
and benefits in respect of service expected to be completed after the Valuation date
(“future service”). This approach focuses on:

 The past service funding level of the Fund. This is the ratio of accumulated assets to
liabilities in respect of past service after making allowance for future increases to
members’ pay and pensions in payment. A funding level in excess of 100% indicates a
surplus of assets over liabilities whereas a funding level of less than 100% indicates a
deficit.

 The future funding rate i.e. the level of contributions required from the individual Scheme
employers which together with employee contributions are expected to support the cost
of benefits accruing in the future.

3.7 For “open” Scheme employers, the Projected Unit method is used which, for the future
service rate, assesses the cost of one year’s benefit accrual.

3.8 For “closed” Scheme employers the funding method adopted is known as the Attained
Age Method. This gives the same results for the past service funding level as the
Projected Unit Method but for the future cost it assesses the average cost of the benefits
that will accrue over the remaining working lifetime of the active Scheme members.

100
120



Version 8 – March 2019 9

Valuation Assumptions and Funding Model

3.9 In completing the Actuarial valuation it is necessary to formulate assumptions about the
factors affecting the Fund’s future finances such as inflation, pay increases, investment
returns, rates of mortality, early retirement and staff turnover etc.

3.10 The assumptions adopted at the valuation can therefore be considered as:

 The statistical assumptions which generally speaking are estimates of the likelihood of
benefits and contributions being paid; and

 The financial assumptions which generally speaking will determine the estimates of the
amount of benefits and contributions payable and their current or present value.

Future Price Inflation

3.11 The base assumption in any triennial valuation is the future level of price inflation. This
is derived by considering the average difference in yields from conventional and index
linked gilts during the 6 months straddling the valuation date using a point from the Bank
of England RPI Inflation Curve. This gives an assumption for Retail Prices Index (RPI)
inflation, which is then adjusted to get an assumption for Consumer Prices Index (CPI)
inflation. At the 2016 valuation, CPI was assumed to be 0.9% per annum lower than
RPI, giving a CPI inflation assumption of 2.4% per annum.

Future Pay Inflation

3.12As benefits accrued before 1st April 2014 (and in the case of some
protected members after 31st March 2014) are linked to pay levels at
retirement it is necessary to make an assumption as to future levels
of pay inflation. The assumption adopted in the 2016 valuation is that
pay increases will, on average over the longer term, exceed CPI by
1.5% per annum. In the short term in anticipation of Government
policy, it has been assumed that pay increases for the 4 year period
to 31 March 2020 would be limited to CPI.

Future Pension Increases

3.13 Pension increases are assumed to be linked to CPI.

Future Investment Returns/Discount Rate

3.14 To determine the value of accrued liabilities and derive
future contribution requirements it is necessary to
discount future payments to and from the Fund to
present day values.

3.15 The discount rate adopted depends on the funding
level target adopted for each Scheme employer.

101
121



Version 8 – March 2019 10

3.16 For “open” Scheme employers the discount rate applied to all projected liabilities reflects
a prudent estimate of the rate of investment return that is expected to be earned from
the underlying investment strategy by considering average market yields and indicators
in the 6 months straddling the valuation date. This discount rate so determined may be
referred to as the “ongoing” discount rate.

The level of prudence at the 2016 valuation differed between the major councils and the
remaining employers, to reflect the difference in covenant strength. This gave a
discount rate of 5.7% per annum for the unitary authorities (and the employers pooled
with them) and of 5.5% per annum for the other employers.

3.17 For “closed” employers an adjustment may be made to the discount rate in relation to
the remaining liabilities once all active members are assumed to have retired if at that
time (the projected “termination date”) the Scheme employer either wishes to leave the
Fund or the terms of their admission requires it.

3.18 The Fund Actuary will incorporate such an adjustment after consultation with the
Administering Authority.

3.19 The adjustment to the discount rate is essentially to set a higher funding target at the
projected termination date so that there are sufficient assets to fund the remaining
liabilities on a “minimum risk” rather than on an ongoing basis to minimise the risk of
deficits arising after the termination.

Asset Valuation

3.20 The asset valuation is a market value of the accumulated Fund at the triennial valuation
date adjusted to reflect average market conditions during the 6 months straddling the
triennial valuation date.

Statistical Assumptions

3.21 The statistical assumptions incorporated into the triennial valuation such as future rates
of mortality etc are based on national statistics but then adjusted where deemed
appropriate to reflect the individual circumstances of the Fund and/or individual Scheme
employers. For the 2016 valuation, the Fund received a bespoke analysis of the
pensioner mortality and the results of this analysis were used to aid in setting a suitable
assumption for the Fund.

Deficit Recovery/Surplus Amortisation Periods

3.22 Whilst one of the funding objectives is to build up sufficient assets to meet the cost of
benefits as they accrue it is recognised that at any particular point in time, the value of the

accumulated assets will be different to the value of accrued liabilities
depending on how the actual experience of the Fund differs to the
actuarial assumptions. Accordingly the Fund will normally either be
in surplus or in deficit.

3.23 Where the Actuarial valuation discloses a significant
surplus or deficit then the levels of required Scheme employers’
contributions will include an adjustment to either amortise the surplus
or fund the deficit over a period of years. At the 2016 valuation, a

deficit was revealed and contributions were set to recover this deficit over a period no
longer than 24 years.

102
122



Version 8 – March 2019 11

3.24 The period that is adopted for any particular Scheme employer will depend upon:

 The significance of the surplus or deficit relative to that Scheme employer’s liabilities;

 The covenant of the individual Scheme employer and any limited period of participation
in the Fund; and

 The implications in terms of stability of future levels of Scheme employers’ contributions.

3.25 At the 2016 triennial valuation the period adopted to recover the deficit was:

Type of Scheme Employer Maximum Length of Recovery Period

Unitary Authorities and Associated
Employers

24 years

Housing Associations 14 years
Colleges (excluding the University of West
London)*

14 years

Academies 17 years
Community Admission Bodies 14 years
Transferee Admission Bodies Future working life of current employees or

contract period whichever is the shorter
period

3.26 Where a Scheme employer’s contribution has to increase significantly then the increase
may be phased in over a period not exceeding 6 years although this may only be allowed
for some Scheme employer types or if the increase in contributions would increase the
risk of an employer insolvency, leaving an unpaid deficit and adversely affecting other
employers’ contributions and the solvency of the Fund as a whole.

Pooling of Individual Scheme employers

3.27 The policy of the Fund is that each individual Scheme employer should be responsible
for the costs of providing pensions for its own employees who participate in the Fund.
Accordingly contribution rates are generally set for individual employers to reflect their
own particular circumstances.

3.28 However, certain groups of individual Scheme employers may be pooled for the
purposes of determining contribution rates to recognise common characteristics or
where the number of Scheme members is small.

3.29 Currently, other than Scheme employers that are
already legally connected, there are the following
pools:

 Colleges (with the exception of the University of
West London)*

 Academies

 ‘Community’ Admission Bodies

 Housing Associations

103
123



Version 8 – March 2019 12

3.30 The main purpose of pooling is to produce more stable Scheme employer contribution
levels in the longer term whilst recognising that ultimately there will be some level of
cross subsidy of pension cost amongst pooled Scheme employers.

*The University of West London is a closed employer whose membership and liability profile no
longer makes it a viable employer for inclusion within the college pool.

Cessation Valuations

3.31 On the cessation of a Scheme employer’s participation in the Fund, the Actuary will be
asked to make a termination assessment. Any deficit in the Fund in respect of the
Scheme employer will be due to the Fund as a termination contribution, unless it is
agreed by the Administering Authority and the other parties involved that the assets and
liabilities relating to the Scheme employer will transfer within the Fund to another
participating Scheme employer.

3.32 In assessing the deficit on termination, the Actuary may adopt a discount rate based on
gilt yields or other lower risk assets and adopt different assumptions to those used at
the previous triennial valuation to protect the other Scheme employers in the Fund from
having to fund any future deficits from the liabilities that will remain in the Fund.

Early Retirement Costs

3.33 The Actuary’s funding basis makes no allowance for premature retirement except on
grounds of permanent ill health. Scheme employers are required to pay additional

contributions whenever an employee retires before attaining
the age at which the triennial valuation assumes that benefits
are payable. The calculation of these costs is carried out with
reference to a calculation approved by the Actuary to the
Fund.

3.34 The Fund monitors each Scheme employer’s ill
health experience on an ongoing basis. If the
cumulative number of ill health retirements in any
financial year exceeds the allowance at the previous
triennial valuation by a statistically significant
amount, the Scheme employer may be charged

additional contributions on the same basis as apply for
non-ill health cases.

Triennial Valuation

3.35 The next triennial valuation is due as at 31st March 2019.

4 LINKS WITH THE INVESTMENT STRATEGY STATEMENT (ISS)

4.1 The main link between the FSS and the ISS relates to the discount rate that underlies
the funding strategy as set out in the FSS and the expected rate of investment return
which is expected to be achieved by the underlying investment strategy as set out in the
ISS.

104
124



Version 8 – March 2019 13

4.2 As explained above the ongoing discount rate adopted in the Actuarial valuation is
derived by considering the expected return from the underlying investment strategy and
so there is consistency between the funding strategy and the investment strategy.

5 RISKS AND COUNTER MEASURES

5.1 Whilst the funding strategy attempts to satisfy the funding objectives of ensuring
sufficient assets to meet pension liabilities and stable levels of Scheme employer
contributions, it is recognised that there are a number of risks that may impact on the
funding strategy and hence the ability of the strategy to meet the funding objectives.

5.2 The major risks for the funding strategy are financial risks although there are external
factors including demographic risks, regulatory risks and governance risks.

Financial Risks

5.3 The main financial risk is that the actual investment strategy fails to produce the
expected rate of investment return (in real terms) that underlies the funding strategy.
This could be due to a number of factors including market returns being less than
expected and/or chosen fund managers who are employed to implement the chosen
investment strategy failing to achieve their performance targets. The triennial valuation
results are most sensitive to the real discount rate. Broadly speaking an
increase/decrease of 0.1% per annum in the
real discount rate will decrease/increase the
liabilities by 2% and decrease/increase the
required Scheme employer contribution by
around 1.0% of payroll.

5.4 The Pension Fund Panel regularly monitor the
investment returns achieved by the fund
managers and seek advice from Officers and
independent advisors on investment strategy.
In the inter-valuation period 2013 to 2016 such
monitoring activity saw investment returns
slightly lower than assumed in the 2013
valuation.

5.5 In addition the Fund Actuary provides monthly funding updates between triennial
valuations to check whether the funding strategy continues to meet the funding
objectives.

Demographic Risks

5.6 Allowance is made in the funding strategy via the actuarial assumptions of continuing
improvement in life expectancy. However, the main risk to the funding strategy is that
it might underestimate the continuing improvement in mortality. For example an
increase in 1 year to life expectancy of all members in the Fund will reduce the funding
level by around 2%.

5.7 The actual mortality of retired members in the Fund is, however, monitored by the Fund
Actuary at each Actuarial valuation and assumptions kept under review.

5.8 The liabilities of the Fund can also increase by more than has been planned as a result
of early retirements (including redundancies).

105
125



Version 8 – March 2019 14

5.9 However, the Administering Authority monitors the incidence of early retirements and
procedures are in place that require individual Scheme employers to pay additional
amounts to the Fund to meet any additional costs arising from early retirements thereby
avoiding unnecessary strain on the Fund.

Regulatory Risks

5.10 The benefits provided by the Scheme and employee contribution levels are set out in
Statutory Regulations as determined by central Government. The tax status of the
invested assets is also determined by central Government.

5.11 The funding strategy is therefore exposed to the risks of changes in the Statutory
Regulations governing the Scheme and changes to the tax regime which increase the
cost to individual Scheme employers of participating in the Scheme.

5.12 The Administering Authority actively participates in any consultation process of any
change in Regulations and seeks advice from the Fund Actuary on the financial
implications of any proposed changes.

Governance

5.13 Several different Scheme employers participate in the Fund. Accordingly it is
recognised that a number of Scheme employer specific events could impact on the
funding strategy including:

 Structural changes in an individual Scheme employer’s membership;

 An individual Scheme employer deciding to close the Scheme to new employees;

 A Scheme employer ceasing to exist without having fully funded their pension
liabilities; and

 New Scheme employers being created out of existing Scheme employers.

5.14 The Administering Authority monitors the position of Scheme employers participating in
the Fund particularly those that may be susceptible to the aforementioned events and
takes advice from the Fund Actuary when required.

5.15 In addition the Administering Authority keeps in close touch with all individual Scheme
employers participating in the Fund and regularly holds meetings with Scheme
employers to ensure that, as Administering Authority, it has the most up to date
information available on individual Scheme employer situations and also to keep
individual Scheme employers fully briefed on funding and related issues.

6 MONITORING AND REVIEW

6.1 This FSS is reviewed formally, in consultation with the key parties, at least every three
years to tie in with the triennial valuation process.

6.2 The Administering Authority also monitors the financial position of the Fund between
triennial valuations and may review this FSS more frequently if deemed necessary.

Approved by the Berkshire Pension Fund Panel: 11 March 2019

Next Review date: March 2020

106
126



 

www.barnett-waddingham.co.uk Royal County of Berkshire Pension Fund – Actuarial valuation at 31 March 2016 – 31 March 2017 

PUBLIC 0217 Version 1 Page 20 of 28 

 

 Rates and Adjustment Certificate 

Regulatory background 

In accordance with Regulation 62 of the Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations we have made an assessment of the contributions that should be paid into the Fund by 

participating employers for the period 1 April 2017 to 31 March 2020. 

The method and assumptions used to calculate the contributions set out in the Rates and Adjustments certificate are detailed in the Funding Strategy Statement and this report.  

The primary rate of contribution as defined by Regulation 62(5) for each employer for the period 1 April 2017 to 31 March 2020 is set out in the table overleaf.  The primary rate 

is the employer’s share of the cost of benefits accruing in each of the three years beginning 1 April 2017.  In addition each employer pays a secondary contribution as required 

under Regulation 62(7) that when combined with the primary rate results in the minimum total contributions as set out below.  This secondary rate is based on their particular 

circumstances and so individual adjustments are made for each employer.   

Primary and secondary rate summary 

The primary rate for the whole Fund is the weighted average (by payroll) of the individual employers’ primary rates, and is 14.3% of payroll. 

The secondary rates across the entire Fund (as a percentage of projected payroll and as an equivalent monetary amount) in each of the three years in the period 1 April 2017 to 

31 March 2020 is set out in the table below. 

 

The above table assumes that the small number of employers that have not had their contributions finalised for the entire valuation period will continue to pay consistent levels 

of deficit contributions.  

General notes 

Employers may pay further amounts at any time and future periodic contributions, or the timing of contributions, may be adjusted on a basis approved by us as the Fund 

Actuary.  The Administering Authority, with the advice from us as the Fund Actuary may allow some or all of these contributions to be treated as a prepayment and offset 

against future certified contributions. 

Secondary contributions 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20

Average as a % of payroll 5.3% 6.7% 8.2%

Total monetary amounts £21,017,000 £27,468,000 £34,075,000

107

127



 

www.barnett-waddingham.co.uk Royal County of Berkshire Pension Fund – Actuarial valuation at 31 March 2016 – 31 March 2017 

PUBLIC 0217 Version 1 Page 21 of 28 

 

The certified contributions include an allowance for expenses and the expected cost of lump sum death benefits but exclude early retirement strain and augmentation costs 

which are payable by participating employers in addition. 

The monetary amounts are payable in 12 monthly instalments throughout the relevant year unless agreed by the Administering Authority and an individual employer.   

If contributions set out in the certificate are adjusted for any such agreements in place relating to the timing of contribution payments these are noted in the end column and 

detailed in specific notes at the end of the certificate. 

108

128



 

www.barnett-waddingham.co.uk Royal County of Berkshire Pension Fund – Actuarial valuation at 31 March 2016 – 31 March 2017 

PUBLIC 0217 Version 1 Page 22 of 28 

 

Code Employer name Primary 

rate (% 

pay) 

Secondary rate (% pay plus monetary adjustment) Total contributions (% pay plus monetary adjustment) Specific 

notes  

2017/18 

 

2018/19 

 

2019/20 

 

2017/18 

 

2018/19 

 

2019/20 

2 Bracknell Forest Council 14.3% £2,083,000 £2,489,000 £2,914,000 
14.3% plus 

£2,083,000 

14.3% plus 

£2,489,000 

14.3% plus 

£2,914,000 
B 

49 Binfield Parish Council 14.3% 4.1% 4.7% 5.4% 18.4% 19.1% 19.8%   

9 Bracknell Town Council 14.3% 4.1% 4.7% 5.4% 18.4% 19.1% 19.8%  

125 Crowthorne Parish Council 14.3% 4.1% 4.7% 5.4% 18.4% 19.1% 19.8%   

137 Sandhurst Town Council 14.3% 4.1% 4.7% 5.4% 18.4% 19.1% 19.8%   

39 South Hill Park Trust 14.3% 4.1% 4.7% 5.4% 18.4% 19.1% 19.8%   

190 Warfield Parish Council 14.3% 4.1% 4.7% 5.4% 18.4% 19.1% 19.8%   

42 Winkfield Parish Council 14.3% 4.1% 4.7% 5.4% 18.4% 19.1% 19.8%   

3 
RBWM (non-schools) 14.3% £2,371,000 £3,176,000 £4,017,000 

14.3% plus 

£2,371,000 

14.3% plus 

£3,176,000 

14.3% plus 

£4,017,000 
B 

RBWM (schools) 14.3% 8.0% 10.5% 12.9% 22.3% 24.8% 27.2%   

118 Bray Parish Council  14.3% 8.0% 10.5% 12.9% 22.3% 24.8% 27.2%   

51 Cox Green Parish Council 14.3% 8.0% 10.5% 12.9% 22.3% 24.8% 27.2%   

45 Eton Town Council 14.3% 8.0% 10.5% 12.9% 22.3% 24.8% 27.2%   

143 Hurley Parish Council 14.3% 8.0% 10.5% 12.9% 22.3% 24.8% 27.2%  

18 Sunningdale Parish Council 14.3% 8.0% 10.5% 12.9% 22.3% 24.8% 27.2%   

19 Sunninghill & Ascot Parish 

Council  

14.3% 8.0% 10.5% 12.9% 22.3% 24.8% 27.2%   

127 White Waltham Parish Council  14.3% 8.0% 10.5% 12.9% 22.3% 24.8% 27.2%   

4 West Berkshire Council 14.3% £2,631,000 £3,693,000 £4,774,000 
14.3% plus 

£2,631,000 

14.3% plus 

£3,693,000 

14.3% plus 

£4,774,000 

 B 

147 Burghfield Parish Council 14.3% 4.8% 6.5% 8.2% 19.1% 20.8% 22.5%   

216 Chieveley Parish Council 14.3% 4.8% 6.5% 8.2% 19.1% 20.8% 22.5%   

249 Holybrook Parish Council 14.3% 4.8% 6.5% 8.2% 19.1% 20.8% 22.5%  

136 Hungerford Town Council 14.3% 4.8% 6.5% 8.2% 19.1% 20.8% 22.5%   

88 Newbury Town Council 14.3% 4.8% 6.5% 8.2% 19.1% 20.8% 22.5%   

250 Purley on Thames Parish 

Council 

14.3% 4.8% 6.5% 8.2% 19.1% 20.8% 22.5%   

11 Thatcham Town Council 14.3% 4.8% 6.5% 8.2% 19.1% 20.8% 22.5%   

75 The Downs School 14.3% 4.8% 6.5% 8.2% 19.1% 20.8% 22.5%   

47 Theale Parish Council 14.3% 4.8% 6.5% 8.2% 19.1% 20.8% 22.5%   

20 Tilehurst Parish Council 14.3% 4.8% 6.5% 8.2% 19.1% 20.8% 22.5%   

5 Reading Borough Council 13.4% £5,829,000 £5,969,000 £6,112,000 
13.4% plus 

£5,829,000 

13.4% plus 

£5,969,000 

13.4% plus 

£6,112,000 

A 

68 Reading Girls School  13.4% 8.5% 8.5% 8.5% 21.9% 21.9% 21.9%   

109

129



 

www.barnett-waddingham.co.uk Royal County of Berkshire Pension Fund – Actuarial valuation at 31 March 2016 – 31 March 2017 

PUBLIC 0217 Version 1 Page 23 of 28 

 

Code Employer name Primary 

rate (% 

pay) 

Secondary rate (% pay plus monetary adjustment) Total contributions (% pay plus monetary adjustment) Specific 

notes  

2017/18 

 

2018/19 

 

2019/20 

 

2017/18 

 

2018/19 

 

2019/20 
66 The Blessed Hugh Faringdon 

School 

13.4% 8.5% 8.5% 8.5% 21.9% 21.9% 21.9%   

6 Slough Borough Council 13.6% £2,719,000 £3,012,000 £3,318,000 
13.6% plus 

£2,719,000 

13.6% plus 

£3,012,000 

13.6% plus 

£3,318,000 

 B 

61 Holy Family School 13.6% 8.5% 9.2% 9.9% 22.1% 22.8% 23.5%   

119 Pippins School - Slough 13.6% 8.5% 9.2% 9.9% 22.1% 22.8% 23.5%   

62 Priory School 13.6% 8.5% 9.2% 9.9% 22.1% 22.8% 23.5%  

122 Wexham Court Parish Council 13.6% 8.5% 9.2% 9.9% 22.1% 22.8% 23.5%   

7 Wokingham Borough Council 14.2% £1,443,000 £2,061,000 £2,692,000 
14.2% plus 

£1,443,000 

14.2% plus 

£2,061,000 

14.2% plus 

£2,692,000 

 B 

73 All Saints CE (Aided) Primary 

School 

14.2% 6.2% 7.9% 9.6% 20.4% 22.1% 23.8%  

97 Barkham Parish Council 14.2% 6.2% 7.9% 9.6% 20.4% 22.1% 23.8%  

251 Charvil Parish Council 14.2% 6.2% 7.9% 9.6% 20.4% 22.1% 23.8%  

10 Earley Town Council 14.2% 6.2% 7.9% 9.6% 20.4% 22.1% 23.8%   

117 Finchampstead Parish Council  14.2% 6.2% 7.9% 9.6% 20.4% 22.1% 23.8%  

258 Ruscombe Parish Council 14.2% 6.2% 7.9% 9.6% 20.4% 22.1% 23.8%   

96 Shinfield Parish Council  14.2% 6.2% 7.9% 9.6% 20.4% 22.1% 23.8%  

52 Swallowfield Parish Council  14.2% 6.2% 7.9% 9.6% 20.4% 22.1% 23.8%   

159 Twyford Parish Council 14.2% 6.2% 7.9% 9.6% 20.4% 22.1% 23.8%   

129 Winnersh Parish Council  14.2% 6.2% 7.9% 9.6% 20.4% 22.1% 23.8%   

70000 Wokingham Borough Council 

(Schools) 

14.2% 6.2% 7.9% 9.6% 20.4% 22.1% 23.8%   

12 Wokingham Town Council  14.2% 6.2% 7.9% 9.6% 20.4% 22.1% 23.8%   

227 Wokingham Without Parish 

Council 

14.2% 6.2% 7.9% 9.6% 20.4% 22.1% 23.8%   

21 Woodley Town Council  14.2% 6.2% 7.9% 9.6% 20.4% 22.1% 23.8%   

Colleges 

58 Berkshire College Of 

Agriculture 

13.9% 8.4% Tbc  Tbc 22.3% Tbc  Tbc  

55 Bracknell & Wokingham 

College 

17.3% 6.9% Tbc  Tbc 24.2% Tbc  Tbc   

57 East Berkshire College  15.0% 7.3% Tbc  Tbc 22.3% Tbc  Tbc   

53 Newbury College 15.8% 6.8% Tbc  Tbc 22.6% Tbc Tbc   

156 University of West London 15.8% 7.7% Tbc  Tbc 23.5% Tbc  Tbc   

Housing Associations         

132 Bracknell Forest Homes 19.6% 2.4% 2.4% plus £264,000 2.4% plus £541,000 22.0% 22.0% plus £264,000 22.0% plus £541,000  

110

130



 

www.barnett-waddingham.co.uk Royal County of Berkshire Pension Fund – Actuarial valuation at 31 March 2016 – 31 March 2017 

PUBLIC 0217 Version 1 Page 24 of 28 

 

Code Employer name Primary 

rate (% 

pay) 

Secondary rate (% pay plus monetary adjustment) Total contributions (% pay plus monetary adjustment) Specific 

notes  

2017/18 

 

2018/19 

 

2019/20 

 

2017/18 

 

2018/19 

 

2019/20 
83 Dimensions UK Ltd 17.9% 4.8% 4.8% plus £5,000 4.8% plus £10,000 22.7% 22.7% plus £5,000 22.7% plus £10,000   

104/79 Housing Solutions Ltd 15.6% 2.6% 2.6% plus £213,000 2.6% plus £438,000 18.2% 18.2% plus £213,000 18.2% plus £438,000   

80 Windsor Housing 23.1% 2.6% 2.6% plus £6,000 2.6% plus £13,000 25.7% 25.7% plus £6,000 25.7% plus £13,000  

Admission Bodies - Pooled         

26 Age UK Berkshire 24.1% -1.9% -1.9% plus £5,000 -1.9% plus £10,000 22.2% 22.2% plus £5,000 22.2% plus £10,000   

38 AOSEC 24.9% -5.4% -5.4% plus £3,000 -5.4% plus £5,000 19.5% 19.5% plus £3,000 19.5% plus £5,000  

95 Berkshire Maestros 17.3% 0.8% 0.8% plus £15,000 0.8% plus £31,000 18.1% 18.1% plus £15,000 18.1% plus £31,000  

30 Mary Hare Grammar School 16.4% 1.9% 1.9% plus £86,000 1.9% plus £177,000 18.3% 18.3% plus £86,000 18.3% plus £177,000   

105 PACT 22.1% -3.8% -3.8% plus £14,000 -3.8% plus £29,000 18.3% 18.3% plus £14,000 18.3% plus £29,000   

40 Reading Voluntary Action 22.1% -0.3% -0.3% plus £3,000 -0.3% plus £6,000 21.8% 21.8% plus £3,000 21.8% plus £6,000   

35 School of St Helen & St 

Katharine 

20.0% 0.9% 0.9% plus £11,000 0.9% plus £23,000 20.9% 20.9% plus £11,000 20.9% plus £23,000   

121 SECBE 17.5% -1.2% -1.2% plus £5,000 -1.2% plus £10,000 16.3% 16.3% plus £5,000 16.3% plus £10,000  

37 Slough Council For Voluntary 

Service 

18.7% 1.6% 1.6% plus £3,000 1.6% plus £5,000 20.3% 20.3% plus £3,000 20.3% plus £5,000   

Admission Bodies - Individual         

193 Adviza 15.5% -0.3% 4.0% 8.2% 15.2% 19.5% 23.7%   

184 Arvato 16.1% -3.2% -1.6% - 12.9% 14.5% 16.1%  

226 Berks Bucks & Oxon Wildlife 

Trust 

18.6% 0.8% 0.8% 0.8% 19.4% 19.4% 19.4%  

90 Berkshire Fire & Rescue Service 15.2% -1.5% plus £158,000 £198,000 £239,000 13.7% plus £158,000 15.2% plus £198,000 15.2% plus £239,000   

150 Busy Bee Cleaning Services Ltd 27.6% -7.9% -3.9% - 19.7% 23.7% 27.6%  

247 Busy Bee Cleaning Services Ltd 

(Wexham School) 

24.9% -8.5% -4.3% - 16.4% 20.6% 24.9%  

140 Care UK 20.8% -0.4% -0.1% 0.1% 20.4% 20.7% 20.9%  

59 CfBT Berks Careers Guidance  19.8% £160,000 £216,000 £275,000 19.8% plus £160,000 19.8% plus £216,000 19.8% plus £275,000  

242 Continental Landscapes Ltd 17.4% -1.8% 1.2% 4.3% 15.6% 18.6% 21.7%  

100 Corn Exchange Trust 25.8% -6.4% plus £300 £2,000 £5,000 19.4% plus £300 25.8% plus £2,000 25.8% plus £5,000  

241 Cranstoun  19.2% -3.0% -0.2% 2.5% 16.2% 19.0% 21.7%  

261 Creative Support (Slough Extra 

Care) 

21.0% -7.1% -7.1% -7.1% 13.9% 13.9% 13.9%  

211 Creative Support Limited 18.9% -2.7% 2.1% 6.9% 16.2% 21.0% 25.8%  

255 C-Salt (1Life Management 

Solutions) 

17.4% -6.1% -2.7% 0.7% 11.3% 14.7% 18.1%  

204 Elior UK plc 23.4% -9.7% -4.9% - 13.7% 18.5% 23.4%  

28  Elizabeth Fry Charity 10.1% 22,000 23,000 24,000 10.1% plus £22,000 10.1% plus £23,000 10.1% plus £24,000  

282 Energy Kidz 10.9% - - - 10.9% 10.9% 10.9%  

111

131



 

www.barnett-waddingham.co.uk Royal County of Berkshire Pension Fund – Actuarial valuation at 31 March 2016 – 31 March 2017 

PUBLIC 0217 Version 1 Page 25 of 28 

 

Code Employer name Primary 

rate (% 

pay) 

Secondary rate (% pay plus monetary adjustment) Total contributions (% pay plus monetary adjustment) Specific 

notes  

2017/18 

 

2018/19 

 

2019/20 

 

2017/18 

 

2018/19 

 

2019/20 
281 Get Active Sports 17.5% -3.4% -1.7% - 14.1% 15.8% 17.5%  

128 Greenwich Leisure Ltd  17.2% -5.2% plus £8,000 £10,000 £23,000 12.0% plus £8,000 17.2% plus £10,000 17.2% plus £23,000   

114 Holroyd Howe Ltd 29.0% -4.2% plus £4,000 £7,000 £10,000 24.8% plus £4,000 29.0% plus £7,000 29.0% plus £10,000  

237 Innovate Services Ltd (Baylis 

Court) 

20.7% -2.9% -1.4% - 17.8% 19.3% 20.7%  

107 Interserve (Facilities Services 

Slough) Ltd 

19.3% -4.3% plus £64,000 £84,000 £150,000 15.0% plus £64,000 19.3% plus £84,000 19.3% plus £150,000  

188 KGB Cleaning Ltd 25.5% -4.0% -2.0% - 21.5% 23.5% 25.5%  

248 Legacy Leisure Limited 18.7% -6.6% -3.3% - 12.1% 15.4% 18.7%   

115 MITIE 18.2% -5.2% plus £10,000 £12,000 £13,000 13.0% plus £10,000 18.2% plus £12,000 18.2% plus £13,000   

178 Northgate Information 

Solutions 

20.1% -4.6% -0.2% 4.2% 15.5% 19.9% 24.3%  

113 Northgate Ltd 18.5% -5.4% plus £7,000 £9,000 £13,000 13.1% plus £7,000 18.5% plus £9,000 18.5% plus £13,000  

267 Olive Dining Ltd 18.7% -1.8% -0.9% - 16.9% 17.8% 18.7%  

160 Optalis Limited 21.2% -7.2% -3.6% - 14.0% 17.6% 21.2%  

44 Reading Transport Ltd 21.5% -1.3% plus £374,000 £487,000 £604,000 20.2% plus £374,000 21.5% plus £487,000 21.5% plus £604,000   

260 Slough Children's Services 

Trust 

14.2% -2.2% -0.5% 1.3% 12.0% 13.7% 15.5%  

103 Slough Community Leisure 12.2% 3.4% 6.8% 10.1% 15.6% 19.0% 22.3%  

110 Slough Enterprise Ltd 18.1% -0.1% 2.3% 4.7% 18.0% 20.4% 22.8%  

48 Sovereign Housing Association  24.7% -2.8% plus £412,000 £438,000 £465,000 21.9% plus £412,000 24.7% plus £438,000 24.7% plus £465,000   

252 The Windsor Club Day Nursery 

Ltd 

19.5% -5.2% -1.8% 1.5% 14.3% 17.7% 21.0%   

155 Vinci Park Services Ltd 

(Bracknell) 

17.8% -8.7% -4.3% - 9.1% 13.5% 17.8%  

139 VolkerWessels Ltd 27.1% -2.7% -2.7% -2.7% 24.4% 24.4% 24.4%   

256 Ways Into Work 15.2% -1.0% 0.7% 2.4% 14.2% 15.9% 17.6%   

Academies - Individual        

126 John Madejski Academy 14.5% -2.0% -0.3% 1.4% 12.5% 14.2% 15.9%   

135 Langley Academy 14.3% -2.2% -0.6% 0.9% 12.1% 13.7% 15.2%   

Academies - Pooled                  

 Academies Pooled 15.3% 2.3% 3.3% 4.3% 17.6% 18.6% 19.6%   

171 Prospect School Reading 15.3% 2.3% plus £1,280 3.3% plus £1,330 4.3% plus £570 17.6% plus £1,280 18.6% plus £1,330 19.6% plus £570   

112

132



 

www.barnett-waddingham.co.uk Royal County of Berkshire Pension Fund – Actuarial valuation at 31 March 2016 – 31 March 2017 

PUBLIC 0217 Version 1 Page 26 of 28 

 

Below is a table outlining all of the academies paying the pooled rate included in the table above. 

 

Code Employer name Code Employer name Code Employer name Code Employer name Code Employer name 

          
181 All Saints Junior School 

Reading 

191 Altwood School 206 Battle Primary Academy 163 Baylis Court School 271 Bellevue Place Education 

Trust 

246 Braywick Court School 245 Burchetts Green Infants 

School 

199 Castleview School 200 Charters School 146 Churchend Academy 

186 Cippenham Infants School 185 Cippenham Primary School 262 Civitas Academy (Free 

School) 

210 Colnbrook School 175 Cox Green School 

179 Datchet St Mary's C of E 

Primary School 

180 Denefield School 201 Desborough School 230 Ditton Park Academy 278 Eton Porny CofE First School 

233 Evendons Primary School 208 Fir Tree Academy Trust 264 Forest Bridge School (Free 

School) 

225 Foxborough School 176 Furze Platt Senior School 

198 Godolphin Infant School 197 Godolphin Junior School 275 Halley House School 182 Herschel Grammar School 144 Highdown School and 6th 

Form Centre 

229 Holyport College 215 James Elliman School 168 Kendrick School 148 Kennet Academy 274 Kilburn Grange School 

236 Knowl Hill CE Academy 169 Langley Grammar School 167 Langley Hall Primary 

Academy 

152 Lowbrook Academy Trust 257 Lynch Hill Enterprise 

Academy 

170 Lynch Hill School Primary 

Academy 

153 Maiden Erlegh School 280 Maiden Erlegh School 

Reading  

187 Marish Primary School 203 Meadow Park Academy 

224 Montem School 221 National Autistic Society 

(NAS) Academy Trust 

269 Newlands Girls' School 189 Oakbank Free School 157 Park House School Newbury 

235 Parlaunt Park Academy 166 Ranelagh School 266 Ranikhet Primary School 173 Reading School 272 Rutherford House School 

266 Ranikhet Primary School 164 Slough & Eton C of E School 174 St Bartholomew's School 263 St Francis School 244 St Lukes Church of England 

Primary School 

270 St Margaret Clitherow 

School 

213 St Mary's Catholic Primary 

School 

243 St Peters Church of England 

Middle  

165 The Avenue Academy 214 The Forest School 

232 The Heights Primary School 161 The Holt School 268 The Langley Academy 

Primary 

217 The Palmer Academy 158 The Piggott C of E Academy 

218 The Specialist Education 

Trust (Haybrook College) 

240 The Specialist Education 

Trust (Littledown Primary 

School) 

265 The Wren School (Free 

School) 

219 Theale Green School 194 Trinity School 

234 Upton Court Grammar 

School 

231 UTC Reading  259 Waingels Academy 276 Watling Park School 238 Western House Academy 

183 Westgate School 239 Wheatfield School 196 White Waltham School 273 Whitehall Park Primary 

School 

223 Whitelands Park School 

207 Willow Primary School 228 Windmill School 253 Windsor Boys School 

Academy 

254 Windsor Girls School 

Academy 

  

113

133



 

www.barnett-waddingham.co.uk Royal County of Berkshire Pension Fund – Actuarial valuation at 31 March 2016 – 31 March 2017 

PUBLIC 0217 Version 1 Page 27 of 28 

 

Notes 

The notes below detail what the specific notes refer to in the table above: 

A We understand that employers with this note have agreed with the administering authority that they will prepay an element of their certified contributions by making a 

single lump payment in April 2017.  This lump sum payment will receive an actuarially equivalent discount and the employer has been notified of the required amount 

separately.  If they do not make the lump sum payment by 30 April 2017, the above contributions in the table will apply as normal. 

B We understand that employers with this note have agreed with the administering authority that they will prepay an element of their certified contributions by making 

lump sum payments at the start of each year (i.e. in April 2017, April 2018 and April 2019).  This lump sum payment will receive an actuarially equivalent discount and 

the employer has been notified of the required amount separately.  If they do not make the lump sum payments by 30 April in the period they are due, the above 

contributions in the table will apply as normal. 

 

114

134



 

www.barnett-waddingham.co.uk Royal County of Berkshire Pension Fund – Actuarial valuation at 31 March 2016 – 31 March 2017 

PUBLIC 0217 Version 1 Page 28 of 28 

 

Post valuation employers  

A number of employers joined the Fund on or after 1 April 2016 and their rates were certified at their date of joining and have been reviewed as part of the 2016 valuation 

process.  The table summarises the start dates and contributions required from these employers where known.  

Employer 

Code 

Employer name Transfer date Total contributions (% pay) 

 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 

      
279 Wraysbury Parish Council 01/09/2016 22.1% 22.8% 23.5% 

283 Rapid Clean 01/04/2016 24.3% 24.3% 24.3% 

284 Brakenhale School 01/04/2016 17.6% 18.6% 19.6% 

285 Dedworth Middle School 01/05/2016 17.6% 18.6% 19.6% 

286 Dedworth Green First School 01/05/2016 17.6% 18.6% 19.6% 

287 St John’s CE Primary School 01/06/2016 17.6% 18.6% 19.6% 

288 Compton Parish Council 01/05/2016 19.1% 20.8% 22.5% 

289 Holyport CE Primary 01/06/2016 17.6% 18.6% 19.6% 

290 Rapid Clean 25/04/2016 24.0% 24.0% 24.0% 

291 New Town School 01/06/2016 17.6% 18.6% 19.6% 

292 Get Active 01/09/2016 12.0% 12.0% 12.0% 

293 Innovate Cleaning Services Ltd 01/09/2016 18.7% 18.7% 18.7% 

294 Floreat Montague Park Primary School 01/09/2016 17.6% 18.6% 19.6% 

296 Bohunt School 01/06/2016 17.6% 18.6% 19.6% 

297 John O’Gaunt School 01/10/2016 17.6% 18.6% 19.6% 

298 Beechwood School 01/09/2016 17.6% 18.6% 19.6% 

299 Trevelyan Middle School 01/11/2016 17.6% 18.6% 19.6% 

300 Lambourn Parish Council 01/01/2017 19.1% 20.8% 22.5% 

308 St Anthony’s Primary School and Nursery 01/12/2016 17.6% 18.6% 19.6% 

309 St Ethelbert’s Catholic High School 01/12/2016 17.6% 18.6% 19.6% 

310 St Joseph’s High School 01/12/2016 17.6% 18.6% 19.6% 

311 Northern House Academy Wokingham 01/01/2017 17.6% 18.6% 19.6% 

312 Speenhamland Primary School 01/02/2017 17.6% 18.6% 19.6% 

 

115

135



116
136



1
Version3 – M arch2019

APPENDIX 4 - INVESTMENT STRATEGY STATEMENT

The Royal Borough of Windsor & Maidenhead (“RBWM”) acting as the administering

authority for The Royal County of Berkshire Pension Fund, a constituent member of

The Local Government Pension Scheme in England & Wales, is required by Section

7 of The Local Government Pension Scheme (Management and Investment of Funds)

Regulations 2016 to publish an Investment Strategy Statement.

This is the second such statement published by the Royal Borough and in accordance

with the Regulations it will be reviewed regularly and at no more than 3 year intervals.

The Regulations require the administering authority to outline how it meets each of 6

objectives:

1. A requirement to invest fund money in a wide range of instruments.

RBWM’s policy is that the Pension Fund (the “Fund) should have a highly

diversified investment portfolio spread across different asset classes and different

asset managers using differing approaches as appropriate. This ensures that the

fund money is invested in a wide range of instruments.

RBWM’s Pension Fund Panel has established an Investment Group which meets

at least quarterly to review the Fund’s performance, asset allocation and ability to

meet its target return. In addition the Investment Group reviews potential new

investment ideas and products offered by its investment manager, Local Pensions

Partnership Investments Limited (the “Investment Manager” (LPPI)) and opines

whether such ideas are consistent with the investment strategy of the Fund and a

suitable investment.

The Investment Group receives advice from suitably qualified Officers and

Independent Advisers. It also makes use of information derived from the

Investment Manager. It will commission specialist work from an external adviser

when it believes that neither Officers nor the Independent Advisers have sufficient

experience or expertise in a particular field.

To achieve sufficient diversification the Fund divides assets across 4 broad

categories: equities, bonds, real assets and absolute return strategies. The size

of each bucket will vary depending on investment conditions but each bucket will

itself be diversified.

Any investment strategy will have associated risks, including primarily that of not

meeting the returns required to ensure the long-term ability of the Fund to pay

benefits as they fall due. To mitigate these risks the Investment Group regularly

reviews both the performance and the expected returns from the portfolio to

measure whether it has met and is likely to continue to meet its return objective.

117
137



2
Version3 – M arch2019

In addition the Investment Group notes that there will be an increasing gap

between contributions received and benefits – i.e. that the Fund will become cash-

flow negative. The Pension Fund Panel does not wish the Fund to sell assets to

pay benefits. Consequently, it has resolved that a secondary objective of the

investment strategy of the Fund should be to ensure that there is sufficient

investment income generated from the Fund’s investments to meet any cash-flow

shortfall. This has been formalised as a medium term objective to generate a 2%

income return across the investment portfolio (i.e. investment income should be

at least equivalent to 2% of the Fund’s assets).

2. The authority’s assessment of the suitability of particular investments and

types of investments.

In assessing the suitability of investments RBWM relies on the Investment

Manager to take into account relevant factors including, but not limited to,

prospective return, risks, concentration or diversification of risk as well as

geographic and currency exposures, as well as possible interactions with other

investments in the portfolio.

Performance benchmarks are set for the Fund as a whole (target return UK

CPI+4.5%) as well as for individual allocations. The Fund’s target return is greater

than the actuarial discount rate used to value liabilities and has been set at a level

sufficient to assist in meeting the funding gap whilst not taking excessive

investment risk. Furthermore the Pension Fund Panel has agreed that the Fund

should aim to achieve its target return with a low level of volatility in those returns.

Whilst the Fund as a whole has an absolute return target, RBWM recognises that

for measuring the performance of individual asset classes relative to specific

benchmarks may be more appropriate.

In ensuring the suitability of investments RBWM expects the Investment Manager

(LPPI) to pay regard to both the potential returns and risk (including possible

interactions with other investments in the portfolio). RBWM will also consider the

reputational risk of being connected with or investing in any investment proposal

made by the Investment Manager. RBWM expects its managers to take into

account Environmental, Social and Governance (ESG) issues when making an

investment.

RBWM measures the returns and the volatility of those returns on a quarterly basis

and publishes the results relative to a global group of investment funds with a

similar diversified approach to investment on the Fund web-site.

118
138



3
Version3 – M arch2019

3. The authority’s approach to risk, including the ways in which risks are to

be measured and managed

There are a variety of risks to be addressed when managing a Pension Fund with

investment risk being just one of them. In 2016, in accordance with the principles

of Pensions Regulator guidance, RBWM commissioned Lincoln Pensions to

undertake an Integrated Risk Management (“IRM”) study of the Fund. This study

looked at the interaction of employer covenant risk – the ability of the employers to

meet future contributions, support the investment risk (volatility of returns) and

underwrite funding risk (volatility of actuarial deficit). The study concluded that:

 The future contributions estimated by the Fund’s Actuary (on the GAD’s

funding test, i.e. aimed at removing an actuarial deficit over 20 years) are

likely to be affordable across the Fund’s employers over the next 10 years.

 Some of the Fund’s larger employers, notably unitary authorities, do face a

number of challenges in the near term which could constrain affordability

of future contributions, particularly given their statutory duties to provide

adequate services.

In reaching these conclusions, the Fund’s assets, liabilities, and its participating

employers have been subjected to a number of adverse stress scenarios to assess

resilience, which serve to test and constrain affordability. Where employers find

themselves under stress, they would be required to identify and utilise financial

levers in order to maintain contributions at the level required. Such levers could

include support from central Government or other employers, increases in council

tax rates, increasing borrowings (subject to restrictions) and pledging assets to the

Fund.

Early in 2019 the Pension Fund Panel agreed to enter into a 12-month contract

with LPPI to undertake further work concerning employer covenants with a view to

identifying those employers most at risk of not being able to underwrite their

liabilities in the future. The Panel will consider the findings of this work over the

coming months and determine action might be necessary to safeguard the Fund

against the risks associated with employers exiting the Pension Scheme.

Looking specifically at investment risk RBWM is of the view that the diversification

of the Fund investment portfolio is so broad that investment risk (volatility of

returns) is low and will continue to be low. Ex ante volatility estimates require

forecasts by asset class of volatility and correlation and whilst historic data can be

used to estimate volatility for listed assets, it is much more difficult for unlisted (e.g.

private equity, infrastructure, real estate) assets. Furthermore RBWM notes that

correlations continually change and in times of financial stress all risk assets trend

to a correlation with each other of 1. This “tail risk” means that most risk models

either understate risk in times of stress or conservatively over-estimate volatility in

normal markets.

119
139



4
Version3 – M arch2019

The Fund targets a long-term return of UK CPI+4.5%; this is sufficient for it to meet

its long-term liabilities. In setting the investment strategy, the Pension Fund Panel

decided that this return should be achieved with a low degree of volatility – currently

the Fund targets volatility below 10% per annum over the medium term.

As a patient long-term investor the Fund is prepared to ride-out short term volatility

in investment markets and may, if suitable opportunities arise, adapt its investment

strategy accordingly. At each review of the Investment Strategy Statement the

assumptions on risk and return and their impact on asset allocation will be

reviewed.

4. The authority’s approach to pooling investments, including the use of

collective investment vehicles.

RBWM has broad experience of investing in pooled vehicles be they collective

investment vehicles or other “collectives” such as multi-partner Limited

Partnerships.

When deciding whether to invest in a collective scheme or to seek a segregated

account RBWM, will pay close attention to:

 The relative costs between a collective investment scheme and a

segregated account with a focus on the Total Cost of Ownership

 The suitability and ability of a collective investment scheme to meet the

mandate requirements of RBWM.

In recognition of the government’s requirement for LGPS funds to pool their

investments RBWM became an Investment Client of the Local Pensions

Partnership Investments Limited with effect from 1 June 2018 and the pooling of

assets has commenced.

5. The authority’s policy on how social, environmental or corporate

governance considerations are taken into account in the selection, non-

selection, retention and realisation of investments.

RBWM accepts that stakeholders will have differing views on how social,

environmental and corporate governance considerations should be taken into

account and believes that no “one-size fits all” policy can possibly be implemented

across such a diverse portfolio such as that of the Fund. Nevertheless RBWM

seeks to protect its reputation as an institutional investor and ensures that the

Investment Manager (LPPI) takes into account these issues when selecting

investments for purchase, retention or sale. RBWM will not place social,

environmental or corporate governance restrictions on the Investment Manager but

relies on it to adhere to best practices in the jurisdictions in which they are based,

operates and invests.

120
140



5
Version3 – M arch2019

Furthermore RBWM has implemented three investment theses under “ESG”

principles: investment in the food chain, housing and infrastructure. Specifically

RBWM has made private equity investments in a “food and water” segregated

account within its private equity portfolio, two farmland funds in its property

portfolio, a number of infrastructure fund investments both globally and in the UK

(in particular it was the seed investor in the Gresham House British strategic

Investment Fund focussed on small scale infrastructure and Housing projects) as

well as investments to support house builders via the purchase of residual shared

equity loan books and a fund specialising in acquiring brownfield land for residential

developments.

6. The authority’s policy on the exercising of the rights (including voting

rights) attaching to investments.

RBWM expects the Investment Manager to exercise all rights attaching to

investments including voting in accordance with recognised responsible

investment guidelines. RBWM expects the Investment Manager to comply with the

principles of the UK Stewardship Code.

RBWM confirms that the Berkshire Pension Fund has no investments in entities

that are connected with the authority but if in future it does these will be limited

to no more than 5% of the Fund’s assets.

Table one sets out the asset class limits as agreed by the Berkshire Pension Fund

Panel on 11 March 2019

121
141



6
Version3 – M arch2019

Table one: Asset Class Limits

Asset Class Policy
Portfolio
Benchmark

Tolerance
Range

Relevant
LPPI pool

Investment
Objective

Credit 10% 5-15% LPP I Credit
Investment
LP

GBP LIBOR plus
3-5%

Fixed Income 3% 0-6% LPP I Fixed
Income Fund

Barclays Global
Aggregate Index
GBP Hedged plus
0.5%

Global
Equities (*)

40% 30-50% LPP I Global
Equities Fund

MSCI All Country
World GBP Index
(net dividends
reinvested) plus
2%

Private
Equity

13% 8-18% LPP I PE
Investments
(No. 3) LP

MSCI All Country
World GBP Index
(net dividends
reinvested) plus
4-6%

Total Return 4% 0-10% LPP I Total
Return

1 month GBP
LIBOR plus 2-4%

Infrastructure 12.5% 8-16% LPP I
Infrastructure
Investment
LP

UK CPI plus 4-6%

Real Estate 16.5% 10-20% LPP I
Property Pool

UK CPI plus 4-6%

Cash 1% 0-5%

Approved by the Berkshire Pension Fund Panel: 11 March 2019
Next review date: March 2020

122
142



APPENDIX 5

SERVICE LEVEL AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE

ROYAL BOROUGH OF WINDSOR & MAIDENHEAD

AS ADMINISTERING AUTHORITY AND THE

THE PENSION ADMINISTRATION TEAM

123
143



Admin SLA v2.0 September 2018 2
124

144



Admin SLA v2.0 September 2018 3

CONTENTS

INTRODUCTION ............................................................................................................ 5

1.0 ADMINISTRATION OF THE LGPS ..................................................................... 5

2.0 SCHEME COMMUNICATIONS ........................................................................... 6

3.0 COMPLAINTS PROCEDURE.............................................................................. 6

4.0 GENERAL............................................................................................................ 7

125
145



Admin SLA v2.0 September 2018 4
126

146



Admin SLA v2.0 September 2018 5

INTRODUCTION

The Royal Borough of Windsor & Maidenhead (RBWM) is the administering authority for
the Royal County of Berkshire Pension Fund. As such, RBWM has certain statutory
responsibilities for the administration of the Local Government
Pension Scheme (LGPS) in Berkshire. This includes the six
Unitary Authorities (of which RBWM is one) and around 250
other associated employers who make up the membership of
the Pension Fund.

The administering authority has ultimate responsibility for
interpreting and implementing statutory LGPS regulations,
which includes setting an investment strategy, for receiving
monies due to and paying monies owing from the Fund and for
making sure that it has robust systems and processes in place
to ensure that the scheme is administered in line with scheme
regulations and within prescribed levels of performance.

This document has been prepared as a service level agreement between the
administering authority and the pension administration team and sets out service
standards or ‘promises’ of the level of service that the team will provide to ensure that the
administering authority achieves its statutory responsibilities.

1.0 ADMINISTRATION OF THE LGPS

The pension administration team will:

1.1 Maintain a member database of all current, deferred and retired members
(including their dependants) of the scheme along with historical data relating to
former scheme members who have a right to claim a refund of contributions but
have not elected to do so (frozen refunds), former members who no longer have a
liability within the Fund (benefits transferred out of the scheme) and employees
who have opted out of the Scheme for whom an opting out form must be retained.

1.2 Provide an efficient, effective and courteous administration service.

1.3 Calculate member benefits in accordance with
Scheme regulations.

1.4 Provide a pension payroll service to all retired
Scheme members and their dependants.

1.5 Ensure that pension payments are made on the
correct date and that all lump sum payments are made
as soon as possible following the retirement of the
Scheme member.

1.6 Provide current and deferred members with an annual benefit statement.

127
147



Admin SLA v2.0 September 2018 6

1.7 Ensure that all new Scheme members receive an
access key to ‘my pension ONLINE’ with details
of how to access a formal notification of
membership and other relevant Scheme information.

1.8 Notify all retired scheme members of the annual
increase to their pension.

1.9 Provide a payslip to retired members of the Scheme in
April every year and any subsequent month where there is 50 pence variance in
net pay.

1.10 Provide a P60 to every retired Scheme member within HMRC deadlines.

1.11 Perform other administrative tasks in line with the service standards laid down in
a service level agreement with Scheme employers.

2.0 SCHEME COMMUNICATIONS

The pension administration team will:

2.1 Maintain and update a website for all members
of the LGPS and provide a dedicated area for Scheme
employers to assist them in administering the scheme on
behalf of their employees.

2.2 Inform all scheme members of significant
changes to the LGPS by way of a bi-annual newsletter.

2.3 Produce, publish and maintain a suite of
scheme guides and fact-sheets to assist scheme
members in understanding their pension rights and
options.

2.4 Offer pension surgeries, presentations and
open days to be held across the County of Berkshire.

2.5 Respond to letters and emails within 10 working days.

3.0 COMPLAINTS PROCEDURE

3.1 The pension administration team has a commitment to put things right if they go
wrong and will investigate any complaint received within 10 working days.

3.2 If the team are unable to resolve a complaint the member has a right to appeal
under the Internal Disputes Resolution Procedure (IDRP) which is a 3-stage
appeal process set out in the regulations.

128
148



Admin SLA v2.0 September 2018 7

4.0 GENERAL

The pension administration team will:

4.1 Deal with member enquiries in a professional, polite and friendly way and offer
guidance to scheme members as appropriate without giving financial advice.

4.2 Make available confidential interview facilities as required.

4.3 Maintain and report on performance statistics.

4.4 Provide information for completion of an administration report to be presented to
members of the for the Pension Fund Panel, Pension Fund Advisory Panel and
Pension Board.

4.5 Provide information for the Annual Report and Accounts of the Pension Fund.

4.6 Maintain the member database in accordance with the General Data Protection
Regulations 2018 and issue a Privacy Notice explaining how the Pension Fund
collects data, what the data is used you, with whom the data is shared and the
rights of individuals with regard to their data.

Approved by the Pension Fund Panel: 17 September 2018

Next review date: September 2019

129
149



130
150



A ppendix 6 – L istofS chem eEm ployersand
ContributionsR eceived2018/19

Em ployee Em ployer

Em ployer £'000 £'000

Absolutely L eisureL im ited 29 78

AccentCateringS ervicesL td 1 4

Achievem entforAllEducationT rust 24 77

ActivateL earningEducationT rust 62 185

AgeConcernBerkshire 4 17

AL ET (B&W College) 33 146

Altw oodS chool(Academ y S tatus) 29 94

Arvato 201 433

Ashley HillS choolsT rust 23 74

AssociationofS EColleges 2 10

BaylisCourtT rust 83 265

BellevueP laceEducationT rust 100 287

Berks,Bucks& O xfordshireW ildlifeT rust 7 22

BerkshireCollegeO fAgriculture 199 745

BerkshireFire& R escueS ervice 367 1,018

BerkshireM aestros 32 110

BinfieldP arishCouncil 4 13

BohuntEducationT rust 19 61

BonitasM ultiAcadem y T rustL im ited 78 188

BouyguesE&S U KL td 4 18

Bracknell& W okingham College 113 495

BracknellForestBC 3,027 9,133

BracknellForestHom es 141 694

BracknellT ow nCouncil 41 122

Bray P arishCouncil 3 11

BrighterFuturesforChildren 259 499

Bucklebury P arishCouncil 0 0

BurghfieldP arishCouncil 5 12

Busy BeeCleaningS ervicesL td 1 3

CareU K 5 16

Castleview S chool(Academ y S tatus) 51 163

Caterlink 1 4

CfBT S choolsT rust 69 191

ChartersS chool(Academ y S tatus) 72 212

CharvilP arishCouncil 1 5

Chieveley P arishCouncil 0 2

ChurchendAcadem y 32 100

Cippenham M iddleS chool 0 0

Com ptonP arishCouncil 0 2

ConnexionsT ham esValley 96 281

ContinentalL andscapesL td 14 43

131
151



Cookham P arishCouncil 2 8

CornExchangeT rust 2 11

CoxGreenP arishCouncil 4 15

CoxGreenS chool(Academ y S tatus) 54 157

Cranstoun 4 12

CreativeS upportExtraCare 19 41

CreativeS upportL td(Altair00211) 11 36

Crow thorneP arishCouncil 5 17

DenefieldS chool(Academ y S tatus) 54 154

DesboroughS chool(Academ y S tatus) 21 60

Dim ensionsU KL td 8 35

Earley T ow nCouncil 26 95

EastBerkshireCollegeExt3302 250 836

EliorU Kplc 1 4

ElizabethFry Hostel 8 34

Energy Kidz 0 0

EtonT ow nCouncil 1 4

EvendonsP rim ary S chool 16 54

ExcaliburAcadem iesT rust 31 100

Fincham psteadP arishCouncil 3 10

FloreatEducationAcadem iesT rust 13 40

ForestBridgeS chool 42 130

FrassatiCatholicAcadem y T rust 85 274

FurzeP lattS eniorS chool(Academ y S tatus) 78 243

GlynL earningFoundation 17 56

Greenham P arishCouncil 1 3

Greenshaw L earningT rust 100 320

Greenw ichL eisureL tdext4076 8 33

Ham psteadN orreysP arishCouncil 0 1

HaybrookCollegeT rust 70 208

Hayw ardS ervicesL td(CoxG) 1 5

Hayw ardS ervicesL td(W ex) 1 7

Highdow nS chool 54 163

HolroydHow eL td 1 12

HoltS chool(Academ y S tatus) 46 138

Holy Fam ily S chool 29 116

HolybrookP arishCouncil 2 7

HolyportCollege 45 133

HousingS olutionsL td 162 617

HungerfordT ow nCouncil 4 14

Hurley P arishCouncil 1 3

InnovateS ervices(Em m brook) 1 2

InnovateS ervices(P rospect) 6 18

InnovateS ervicesL td 2 6

JohnM adejskiAcadem y 36 81

KendrickS chool(Academ y S tatus) 30 91

132
152



KennetS choolAcadem iesT rust 97 300

KeysM ulti-Academ y T rust 53 165

KGB CleaningL td 0 0

KGB CleaningL td– Denefield 0 0

King'sAcadem y Binfield 6 17

L am bournP arishCouncil 2 7

L angley Academ y 84 183

L angley Academ y T rust 62 198

L angley Gram m arS chool(Academ y S tatus) 50 184

L angley HallP rim ary Academ y 40 122

L earningAllianceT rust 42 138

L egacy L eisureL im ited 23 60

L ow brookAcadem y T rust 14 45

M aidenErleghS choolsT rust 175 528

M arishAcadem y T rust 104 329

M ary HareGram m arS chool 254 731

M IT IE 1 16

N ET Academ iesT rust 35 91

N ew bury Academ y T rust 82 254

N ew bury College 108 423

N ew bury T ow nCouncil 20 62

N ew landsGirlsS chool 51 154

N orthernHouseS choolW okingham 23 71

N orthgateU KL td(AltairCode00113) 4 24

N orthgateU KL td(AltairCode00178) 11 33

N S L L td 25 85

O liveDiningL td 1 0

O ptalisL im ited 59 175

O ptalisL im ited(R BW M ) 274 910

O rchardHillCollege& Academ y T rust 67 213

O sborneP roperty S ervicesL im ited 46 432

O xfordDioscesanS choolsT rust 69 219

P abulum L td 3 13

P act 21 65

P angbourneP arishCouncil 2 7

P arkFederationAcadem y T rust 173 537

P arkHouseS choolN ew bury 17 53

P riory S chool 87 327

P rojectCentreL td 16 42

P rojectCentreL td2 13 27

P rospectS choolR eading(Academ y S tatus) 72 213

P urley onT ham esP arishCouncil 2 6

R apidCom m ercialCleaningS ervicesL td 0 2

R apidCom m ercialCleaningS ervicesL td2 1 3

R BW M 1,948 8,733

R BW M P roperty Com pany L td 30 34

133
153



R each2 T ham esValley Academ y T rust 55 168

R eadibusL im ited 2 38

R eadingBoroughCouncil 4,429 14,527

R eadingS chool(Academ y S tatus) 45 133

R eadingT ransportL td 48 629

R eadingVoluntary Action 2 11

R oyalCounty ofBerkshireS choolsT rust 54 176

R yversS chool(Academ y S tatus) 40 109

S .E.CentrefortheBuiltEnvironm entL td 11 25

S andhurstP arishCouncil 4 9

S AS H EducationT rust 59 183

S chelw oodAcadem y T rust 76 220

S choolofS tHelen& S tKatharine 22 77

S hinfieldP arishCouncil 3 11

S L M CharitableT rust2 100 274

S L M Fitness& Health 9 30

S L M Food& Beverage 17 54

S loughBoroughCouncil 2,735 8,475

S loughChildren'sS ervicesT rust 631 1,120

S loughCom m unity & L eisureL td 0 40

S loughCouncilForVoluntary S ervice 5 14

S outhHillP arkT rust 9 16

S overeignHousingAssociation 14 554

S pecialistEducationT rust 35 105

S tBartholom ew 'sS chool(Academ y S tatus) 65 206

S tP eterCatholicAcadem iesT rust 97 306

S unningdaleP arishCouncil 3 11

S unninghill& AscotP arishCouncil 2 8

S w allow fieldP arishCouncil 3 11

T hatcham T ow nCouncil 13 43

T heAvenueAcadem y 111 356

T heBeehive(W okingham )L im ited 1 2

T heBlessedHughFarringdonS chool 40 150

T heCippenham S chools'T rust 69 217

T heCircleT rust 83 222

T heCorvusL earningT rust 95 301

T heDow nsS chool 83 260

T heEducationFellow ship 25 43

T heForestS choolAcadem y T rust 42 112

T heHeightsFreeS chool 13 42

T heN ationalAutisticS ociety Academ y T rust 52 165

T heP iggottC ofEAcadem y 51 159

T heS loughandEastBerkshireM AT 125 373

T heW indsorDay ClubN ursery 0 1

T heW renFreeS chool 18 54

T healeGreenS chool(Academ y S tatus) 0 68

134
154



T healeP arishCouncil 1 3

T ilehurstP arishCouncil 6 19

T w yfordP arishCouncil 1 6

U niversity ofW estL ondon 63 580

U ptonCourtEducationT rust 101 327

Volkerhighw aysL td 28 102

W aingelsCollege 54 139

W arfieldP arishCouncil 2 6

W aysIntoW orkCIC 8 19

W estBerkshireDC 3,724 11,587

W estgateS chool(Academ y S tatus) 67 205

W exham CourtP arishCouncil 1 3

W hiteHorseFederartionT rust 10 38

W hiteW altham P arishCouncil 4 13

W hitelockeInfant 26 99

W indsorHousing 2 15

W indsorL earningP artnership 116 352

W inkfieldP arishCouncil 15 44

W innershP arishCouncil 4 14

W okingham BoroughCouncil 3,095 8,955

W okingham T ow nCouncil 35 71

W okingham W ithoutP arishCouncil 8 26

W oodley T ow nCouncil 36 132

W raysbury P arishCouncil 1 2

YattendonP arishCouncil 0 0

135
155



136
156



 

Appendix 7 - AVC Arrangements 

There are a number of investment choices available to members of the Royal County 
of Berkshire Pension Fund who elect to pay Additional Voluntary Contributions 
(AVCs). Members can choose to switch AVC Funds at any time subject to the terms 
and conditions of each vehicle. At retirement, the accumulated value of a member's 
AVC Fund can be used to provide a tax-free lump sum payment (subject to HMRC 
limits), to purchase an annuity on the open market or, in certain circumstances, buy 
additional membership of the Local Government Pension Scheme. The following 
table sets out the available Funds and the level of investment risk attached to each of 
those Funds: 

Provider Fund Type Level of Risk 

Prudential Assurance Company     Deposit Minimal 
Cash Minimal 
Fixed Interest Lower 
Index Linked Gilts Lower 
Retirement Protection Lower 
With Profits Lower to Medium 
Discretionary Medium 
Property Medium 
International Equity Medium to Higher 
Global Equity Medium to Higher 
Equity Higher 
UK Equity Passive Higher 
Socially Responsible Higher 

Many members choose to invest in the With Profits Fund that is designed to provide 
smoothed medium to long-term growth by investing in a range of assets including 
equities and property. The investment returns are distributed by way of reversionary 
and terminal bonuses. 

Lifestyling 

Lifestyling is a convenient way for members of AVC schemes to stay invested in 
assets with the potential for long-term growth throughout their working lives whilst 
gaining an element of protection through automatic switching into funds with lower 
risk as retirement approaches. 

137
157



138
158



ReportTitle: Internal Audit Report – Pensions
Payroll and Administration

C ontains C onfid entialor
ExemptInformation?

YES -P artI

M emberreporting: C ou nc illorJu lian S harpe, C hairman
B erks hire P ens ion Fu nd and P ens ion
Fu nd A d vis ory P anels

M eetingand D ate: B erks hire P ens ion Fu nd and P ens ion
Fu nd A d vis ory P anels –23 S eptember
20 19

Res pons ible O ffic er(s ): Kevin Taylor, D epu ty P ens ion Fu nd
M anager

W ard s affec ted : N one

1 DETAILS OF RECOMMENDATION(S)

RECOMMENDATION: That Panel

i) notes the Internal Audit Report on Pension Payroll and Administration

2 REASON(S) FOR RECOMMENDATION(S) AND OPTIONS CONSIDERED

2 . 1 The P ens ion P anelac ts as the S c heme M anagerforthe B erks hire P ens ion Fu nd
and need s to c ons id erand keep u nd erreview its governanc e and ad minis tration
prac tic es and s tand ard s to ens u re thatitis c ompliantwith S c heme Regu lations
and the requ irements ofThe P ens ions Regu lator.

2 . 2 InternalA u d itare requ es ted to review annu ally the Fu nd ’ s c omplianc e with
governanc e and ad minis tration requ irements s etou tin S c heme Regu lations and
in gu id anc e is s u ed by the P ens ions Regu lator.

2 . 3 Its hou ld be noted thatof the 5 mod erate c onc erns rais ed 4 were ad d res s ed
between the d raftreports tage and the finalreports tage.

2 . 4 N o extreme ormajorc onc erns were fou nd and 3 minorc onc erns were d is c u s s ed
and ad d res s ed atthe exitmeeting.

2 . 5 The au d itopinion is thatthe highes ts tand ard s have been metand the report
c onc lu d es thatc ontrols are c omplete and effec tive.

REPORT SUMMARY

1 . This reportbrings to M embers ’ attention the res u lts and ou tc omes of an
annu alInternalA u d itReportc onc erningP ens ion P ayrolland A d minis tration.

2 . A llofthe is s u es id entified have been ad d res s ed . A c opy ofthe au d itreport
c an be fou nd atA ppend ix 1 .

3. A verbalu pd ate willbe provid ed atthe meeting.

159

Agenda Item 7



3 KEY IMPLICATIONS

3. 1 The A d minis tering A u thority is requ ired to maintain the P ens ion Fu nd in
ac c ord anc e with S c heme Regu lations and C od es of P rac tic e is s u ed by The
P ens ions Regu lator. Failu re to d o s o c ou ld d amage the repu tation of the Royal
B orou ghas the A d minis teringA u thority to the B erks hire P ens ion Fu nd .

4 FINANCIAL DETAILS / VALUE FOR MONEY

4. 1 N one.

5 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

5. 1 The A d minis tering A u thority is requ ired to govern and ad minis ter the P ens ion
S c heme in ac c ord anc e withthe P u blic S ervic e P ens ions A c t20 13 and as s oc iated
L oc alGovernmentP ens ion S c heme Regu lations . Failu re to d o s o c ou ld lead to
c hallenge.

6 RISK MANAGEMENT

Table 1: Risk Analysis
Risks Uncontrolled

Risk
Controls Controlled

Risk
P ens ion S c heme
notgoverned in
line with
legis lation

M ed iu m Internaland
ExternalA u d its

L ow

7 POTENTIAL IMPACTS

7 . 1 Failu re to c omply with P ens ion legis lation c ou ld res u lt in the A d minis tering
A u thority being reported to the P ens ions Regu latorwhere failu re is d eemed to be
ofa materials ignific anc e.

8 CONSULTATION

8 . 1 N otA pplic able

9 TIMETABLE FOR IMPLEMENTATION

9. 1 Immed iate

10 APPENDICES

1 0 . 1 The append ic es to the reportare as follows :

 A ppend ix 1 –InternalA u d itReport–P ens ions and P ayrollA d minis tration

11 BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

11 . 1 L oc alGovernmentP ens ion S c heme Regu lations 20 13 (as amend ed )
11 . 2 P u blic S ervic e P ens ions A c t20 13
11 . 3 The P ens ions Regu lator’ s C od e ofprac tic e N o. 14

160



12 CONSULTATION (MANDATORY)

Name of
consultee

Post held Date
issued for
comment

Date
returned
with
comments

C llrJu lian S harpe C hairman –B erks hire
P ens ion Fu nd P anel

Rob S tu bbs S ec tion 151 O ffic er

161



SHARED AUDIT AND INVESTIGATION SERVICE
_________________________________________________________________________________

INTERNAL AUDIT REPORT

Pensions Payroll and
Administration

2018/19

Managing Director’s Directorate

Report Distribution

Name Title
Kevin Taylor D epu ty P ens ion Fu nd M anager
P hilipB oyton P ens ion A d minis tration M anager
D u nc an S harkey M anaging D irec tor
Rob S tu bbs D epu ty D irec torand H ead ofFinanc e (&

S ec tion 151 O ffic er)
S teve M appley Ins u ranc e & Ris kM anager
D eloitte L L P ExternalA u d it

Auditor

S held on H all, A u d itand Inves tigation S pec ialis t

Report Approved by

C atherine H ic kman, L ead S pec ialis t–A u d itand Inves tigation

162



Pension Payroll and Administration 2018/19 Page 1
Issue Date 30/5/19

1 . INTRODUCTION

1 . 1 This au d ithas been u nd ertaken as partofthe approved A nnu alInternalA u d itP lan
20 1 8 /19, in ac c ord anc e withthe:

 A u d itC harter
 A u d itP rotoc ol
 A greed Terms ofReferenc e previou s ly is s u ed

1 . 2 The formatofthis reportis bas ed on the L ean S ys tems Thinking M ethod ology.
M anagementis as ked to s pec ify and explain whic htype ofc ou ntermeas u re c hos en

(treat, tolerate, trans ferorterminate)agains teac hofthe c onc erns (ris ks )rais ed as
d etailed in the M anagementA c tion P lan. D es c riptions ofthe type ofc ou ntermeas u res
c an be fou nd in the InternalA u d itP rotoc ol.

2. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY & CONCLUSIONS

2 . 1 The princ ipalobjec tive ofthis A u d itwas to c onc lu d e whetherc ontrols in plac e for
P ens ions P ayrolland A d minis tration are operatingeffec tively and ris ks are minimis ed
throu ghproperand ad eq u ate c ontrolmeas u res .

2 . 2 The P ens ion P ayrolland A d minis tration is wellc ontrolled by the ad minis teringau thority
(RB W M ). The c ontrols between the ad minis tration and payrollproc es s es are s ou nd ,
payments to benefic iaries are properly au thoris ed and the rec onc iliation between the
pens ion ad minis tration and payrollis u nd ertaken in ac c ord anc e withexpec ted key
c ontrols .

2 . 3 A reas where there are opportu nities to improve inc lu d e: -Rec onc iliation between the
pens ions payrolland the generalled ger, late paymentc harges , written proc ed u re
notes , au tomatic tas kgeneration and u s erac c es s levels within the P TX payment
s ys tem . Its hou ld be noted thatthere is one c onc ern rais ed within this reportwhic his
the res pons ibility ofthe Financ ialC ontrolTeam and notthe P ens ion P ayrolland
A d minis tration S ervic e.

2 . 4 There are 5 c onc erns id entified in this A u d itReport, allofwhic hare c las s ified as being
mod erate c onc erns ofwhic h4 have been ad d res s ed between d raftreports tage and
finalreports tage. This has res u lted in the au d itopinion beingre-as s es s ed to the

AUDIT OPINION

B as ed u pon ou r review of the c ontrols in plac e within P ens ion P ayroll and
A d minis tration, we have c onc lu d ed thatc ontrols are:

Complete and Effective
 A llnec es s ary TreatmentM eas u res are in plac e and are operatingeffec tively.
 Res id u alris ks have been red u c ed to an ac c eptable level
 There are no u nac c eptable financ ialimplic ations .
 C onc erns reported are minor.

(Ris kmanagementproc es s es are s trongand c ontrols are ad eq u ate and effec tive).

163



Pension Payroll and Administration 2018/19 Page 2
Issue Date 30/5/19

highes tc ategory. There are no extreme ormajorc onc erns and 3 minorc onc erns were
d is c u s s ed atthe exitmeeting.

Audit Opinion

The opinion stated in the audit report provides management with a brief objective
assessment of the status of current Treatment Measures which have been put in place to
reduce identified risks to the operation or strategy under review. It is not a statement of fact.

In reaching the Audit Opinion for this audit, the majority of the criteria for the relevant
definition apply.

AUDIT OPINION DEFINITIONS

Complete and Effective
 A llnec es s ary TreatmentM eas u res are in plac e and are operatingeffec tively.
 Res id u alris ks have been red u c ed to an ac c eptable level
 There are no u nac c eptable financ ialimplic ations .
 C onc erns reported are minor.

(Ris kmanagementproc es s es are s trongand c ontrols are ad eq u ate and effec tive).

Substantially Complete and Generally Effective
 M os tkey TreatmentM eas u res are in plac e and thes e operate effec tively.
 The majority ofres id u alris ks have been red u c ed to an ac c eptable level.
 There are a s mallnu mberofu nac c eptable financ ialimplic ations .
 The majority ofc onc erns are ofa pred ominately mod erate impac t/likelihood .

(Ris kmanagementproc es s es are good and c ontrols are ad eq u ate althou ghonly partially
effec tive).

Range of Risk Mitigation Controls is incomplete and risks are not effectively mitigated
 N otallkey TreatmentM eas u res are in plac e and /ord o notoperate effec tively
 Res id u alris ks have notallbeen red u c ed to an ac c eptable level
 There are s ome u nac c eptable financ ialimplic ations as s oc iated withmore than one

ris kmitigation c ontrolorbec au s e ofa lac kofris kmitigation c ontrol.
 There are a nu mberofc onc erns thatare pred ominantly ofa majorimpac t/likelihood .

(Ris kmanagementproc es s es and c ontrols are ad eq u ate bu tnoteffec tive in mitigatingthe
id entified ris ks ).

There is no effective Risk Management process in place
 There are no appropriate TreatmentM eas u res in plac e.
 Res id u alris ks remain atan u nac c eptable level
 Reported c onc erns are pred ominantly ofa c atas trophic ormajorimpac t/likelihood .

(Ris kmanagementproc es s es and c ontrols are weak).

164



Pension Payroll and Administration 2018/19 Page 3
Issue Date 30/5/19

Management Action Plan
Pensions Payroll and Administration – 2018-19

COUNTER
MEASURE

Ref. Concern Risk Finding

T
re

a
t

T
o

le
ra

te

T
ra

n
s
fe

r

T
e
rm

in
a
t

e

Counter Measure Action /
Explanation

Responsible
Officer

Target
Date

1 Governanc e is
weakened and
s taffmayfollow
ou tofd ate written
proc ed u res ifthey
are notu pd ated
ac c ord ingly.

M od erate The vas tmajority ofd es ktop
proc ed u res are fu lly written
and u pto d ate withthos e
ou ts tand ingnearing
c ompletion.

X Itis an ongoingexerc is e forthe
A d minis tration Team to obtain
P A S A A c c red itation.
M any d es ktopproc ed u res are
alread y in plac e and u pto d ate
and u s ed on a d aily bas is mainly
by (Trainee)P ens ion
A d minis trators in theirlearning
and d evelopmentand
s u c c es s fu lly fu lfillingareas of
ad minis tration.

P hilipB oyton,
P ens ion

A d minis tration
M anager

31/0 3/21

2 The preventative
c ontrolc ou ld be
c irc u mvented ifa
tas kis not
au tomatic ally s et
u p.

M od erate W hen a c hange has to be
mad e to the A ltairs ys tem
rec ord s , a tas kentry has to be
entered manu ally on to the
s ys tem ratherthan the s ys tem
au tomatic ally s etting u pa tas k
and therefore an au tomatic
proc es s to pu s ha
trans ac tion/c hange throu ghto
a c hec kingtas k(i. e. a s ec ond
pers on). This means thata
c hange to an ac c ou ntc an be
mad e withou tthe nec es s ary
followingc hec kbeingmad e.

X W ithimmed iate effec ta robu s t
s ys tem willbe introd u c ed
whereby the ‘ A pprover’ ofthe
weekly IP ru n willc hec kthe
payee ac c ou ntd etails , of
payments lis ted on the
res pec tive ru n, thatare eq u alto
orgreaterthan £ 35, 0 0 0 .

P hilipB oyton,
P ens ion

A d minis tration
M anager

0 1/0 5/19

165



Pension Payroll and Administration 2018/19 Page 4
Issue Date 30/5/19

3 The elements
within the key
c ontrolof
rec onc iliations will
notbe
u nd ertaken, s u c h
as s igned by the
preparerand
reviewer.

M od erate There is an informal
rec onc iliation u nd ertaken by
the C orporate A c c ou ntant.
This was introd u c ed by the
C orporate A c c ou ntantbu titis
notoffic ially s igned by the
preparerand an ind epend ent
approver, c hec ked thatitc as ts
and thatthe brou ghtforward
and c arry forward figu res are
c orrec tand to c onfirm thatany
materialvarianc es are
inves tigated . In ad d ition, the
lates trec onc iliation (Febru ary
20 19)c ontained varianc es that
req u ire inves tigation and
c learing.

X The D epu ty P ens ion Fu nd
M anagerhas metwiththe
C orporate A c c ou ntantand a
proc es s ofinves tigation followed
by preparerand approver
s ignatories beingapplied has
been ad opted .

Kevin Taylor,
D epu ty

P ens ion Fu nd
M anager

16/0 5/19

4 Governanc e is
weakened if
appropriate
approvalfora
c hange in proc es s
is notobtained .

M od erate The method ology ofnot
c hargingorganis ations late
paymentfees has notbeen
approved by the S 151 O ffic er.

X The s 151 offic erhas been
ad vis ed ofthe proc es s es and
proc ed u res ad opted by the
P ens ion Fu nd and in an email
d ated 0 8 /0 5/19 has approved
the method ology as s etou t.

Kevin Taylor,
D epu ty

P ens ion Fu nd
M anager

0 8 /0 5/19

5 The fu nd amental
internalc ontrolof
s eparation of
d u ties whic h
red u c es the ris k
offrau d and error
is notin plac e.

M od erate The P TX s ys tem , whic hmakes
the B A C S payments , was
reviewed withthe Financ ial
C ontrolTeam and itwas
es tablis hed thatthe offic ers
who are inc lu d ed within the
P ens ions u s ergrou phave the
fac ility to c reate payments and
au thoris e payments .

X Evid enc e has been rec eived by
InternalA u d itfrom the Financ ial
C ontrolTeam thatac c es s has
been amend ed and is
appropriate to mitigate the ris k.

0 5/0 5/19

166



ReportTitle: Risk Assessment Policy and Risk
Assessment Register

C ontains C onfid entialor
ExemptInformation?

YES -P artI

M emberreporting: C ou nc illorJu lian S harpe, C hairman
B erks hire P ens ion Fu nd and P ens ion
Fu nd A d vis ory P anels

M eetingand D ate: B erks hire P ens ion Fu nd and P ens ion
Fu nd A d vis ory P anels –23 S eptember
20 19

Res pons ible O ffic er(s ): Kevin Taylor, D epu ty P ens ion Fu nd
M anager

W ard s affec ted : N one

1 DETAILS OF RECOMMENDATION(S)

RECOMMENDATION: That Panel

i) Considers and notes the Risk Management Policy and Risk
Assessment Register and puts forward any suggested amendments
as may be felt necessary; and

ii) Authorises Officers to update the Risk Management Policy and Risk
Assessment Register as agreed by Panel; and

iii) Approves publication of the final version on the Pension Fund
website.

2 REASON(S) FOR RECOMMENDATION(S) AND OPTIONS CONSIDERED

2 . 1 The S c heme M anager(The RoyalB orou gh as the ad minis tering au thority forthe
Fu nd ) has a legald u ty to es tablis h and operate internalc ontrols . Failu re to
implementan ad eq u ate and appropriate ris kas s es s mentand regis terc ou ld lead
to breac hes of law and where the effec tand wid erimplic ations of nothaving in
plac e ad eq u ate internalc ontrols are likely to be materially s ignific antthe P ens ion
Regu latormu s tbe notified in ac c ord anc e with the S c heme M anager’ s polic y on
reportingbreac hes ofthe law.

2 . 2 C u rrently no highris ks bu t4 med iu m ris ks have been id entified :

2 . 2 . 1 . P EN 0 0 4: Failu re to maintain ahighqu alitymemberd atabas e: Remains
a med iu m ris kwhils tthe P ens ion Team c ontinu es with its s trategy to have
alls c heme employers u s ingi-C onnec tby M arc h20 21 .

REPORT SUMMARY

1 . This reportprovid es M embers withthe c u rrentvers ion ofthe P ens ion Fu nd ’ s
M anagingRis kP olic y and Ris kA s s es s mentRegis ter.

2 . N o c hanges have been mad e to the Ris k M anagementP olic y d oc u ment
s inc e itwas las tapproved by P anelon 12 N ovember20 1 8 .

3. 4 med iu m ris ks are highlighted in the ris k as s es s ment d oc u ment for
c ons id eration by P anelM embers .

167

Agenda Item 8



2 . 2 . 2 . P EN 0 11 : L os s ofkey s taff: There is always a ris kthatkey s taffc ou ld
leave bu ta potentialris k has been id entified in 20 23. A n appropriate
s u c c es s ion plan will be d eveloped and d is c u s s ed between s enior
managers in the c omingmonths .

2 . 2 . 3. P EN 0 1 7 : Fu nd ing levelbelow 10 0 % : The GovernmentA c tu ary’ s
S ec tion 13 reportred flagged the B erks hire P ens ion Fu nd ’ s fu nd ing level
atthe las ttriennialvalu ation in 20 16. Res u lts from the 20 19 valu ation will
be reported to P anelatits nextmeetingin D ec ember20 19 bu tforthe time
beingthis item remains a med iu m ris k.

2 . 2 . 4. P EN 0 25: Inability of S c heme employers to meettheirobligations : The
P anelagreed to enterinto a ris k managementc ontrac twith L P P Iatits
meetingon 14 Janu ary 20 19. W orkin c u rrently u nd erway to id entifythos e
S c heme employers atgreates tris kofnotbeingable to meettheirpens ion
obligations and itis antic ipated thata progres s reportwillbe pres ented to
P anelattheir nextmeeting in D ec ember 20 19. This item remains a
med iu m ris k.

3 KEY IMPLICATIONS

3. 1 This is a s tatu torypolic yrequ iringreview by P anel. Failu re to d o s o c ou ld lead to
a los s in c onfid enc e.

4 FINANCIAL DETAILS / VALUE FOR MONEY

4. 1 Failu re to monitor id entified ris ks and to implementappropriate s trategies to
c ou nterac tthos e ris ks c ou ld lead to an inc reas ed Fu nd d efic itres u lting in
employers havingto pay more.

5 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

5. 1 The A d minis tering A u thority is requ ired to govern and ad minis ter the P ens ion
S c heme in ac c ord anc e withthe P u blic S ervic e P ens ions A c t20 13 and as s oc iated
L oc alGovernmentP ens ion S c heme Regu lations . Failu re to d o s o c ou ld lead to
c hallenge.

6 RISK MANAGEMENT

Table 1: Risk Analysis
Risks Uncontrolled

Risk
Controls Controlled

Risk
P ens ion S c heme
notgoverned in
line with
legis lation

M ed iu m Internaland
ExternalA u d its

L ow

7 POTENTIAL IMPACTS

7 . 1 Failu re to c omply with P ens ion legis lation c ou ld res u lt in the A d minis tering
A u thority being reported to the P ens ions Regu latorwhere failu re is d eemed to be
ofa materials ignific anc e.

168



8 CONSULTATION

8 . 1 N otA pplic able.

9 TIMETABLE FOR IMPLEMENTATION

9. 1 Immed iate.

10 APPENDICES

1 0 . 1 The append ic es to the reportare as follows :

 A ppend ix 1 –Ris kM anagementP olic y
 A ppend ix 2 –Ris kA s s es s mentRegis ter

11 BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

11 . 1 L oc alGovernmentP ens ion S c heme Regu lations 20 13 (as amend ed )
11 . 2 P u blic S ervic e P ens ions A c t20 13
11 . 3 The P ens ions Regu lator’ s C od e ofprac tic e N o. 14

12 CONSULTATION (MANDATORY)

Name of
consultee

Post held Date
issued for
comment

Date
returned
with
comments

C llrJu lian S harpe C hairman –B erks hire
P ens ion Fu nd P anel

Rob S tu bbs S ec tion 151 O ffic er

169



M anagingRis ks v2 . 0

MANAGING RISKS

170



M anagingRis ks v2 . 0

171



M anagingRis ks v2 . 0

CONTENTS

1 INTRODUCTION ............................................................................................................ 5

2 RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY ...................................................................................... 5

3 PENSION FUND OBJECTIVES ..................................................................................... 6

Operational objectives ........................................................................................................ 6

Strategic objectives............................................................................................................. 7

4 PENSION FUND RISKS................................................................................................. 7

Operational risks................................................................................................................. 8

Strategic risks ..................................................................................................................... 8

5 RISK MANAGEMENT PROCESS .................................................................................. 9

Stage 1 –Identification ....................................................................................................... 9

Stage 2 - Assessment......................................................................................................... 9

Stage 3 - Control............................................................................................................... 10

Stage 4 - Monitoring.......................................................................................................... 10

6 RISK APPETITE........................................................................................................... 10

7 RISK MANAGEMENT ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES........................................... 11

8 CORPORATE RISK FINANCING STRATEGY............................................................. 13

172



M anagingRis ks v2 . 0

173



M anagingRis ks v2 . 0

1 INTRODUCTION

A S c heme M anager(A d minis tering A u thority)ofa pu blic s ervic e pens ion s c heme mu s tes tablis h
and operate internalc ontrols whic hmu s tbe ad eq u ate forthe pu rpos e ofs ec u ringthatthe s c heme
is ad minis tered and managed in ac c ord anc e with the s c heme ru les and with the req u irements of
the law. The RoyalB orou ghofW ind s or& M aid enhead , as the A d minis teringA u thorityto the Royal
C ou nty of B erks hire P ens ion Fu nd , has a ris k managementpolic y and s trategy and the Fu nd ’ s
operationaland s trategic ris ks are integrated into, and have a d irec tc orrelation with, the Royal
B orou gh’ s ris k managementframework. Greatemphas is is plac ed on ris kmanagementand the
reas on why the P ens ion Fu nd d ifferentiates between operationaland s trategic ris ks is to s ec u re
the effec tive governanc e and ad minis tration ofthe L oc alGovernmentP ens ion S c heme.

Ris k c an be id entified as “the chance of something happening which may have an impact on the
achievement of an organisation’s objectives”. The d ifferenc e between a ris kand an is s u e is one of
timing:

 A ris keventhas nothappened yet;

 A n is s u e is a res u ltof an eventthatis happening rightnow or
has alread y happened ;

 A s the ris k eventis a fu tu re event, the tas k is to as s es s its
probability of oc c u rring and es timate the impac tthatwou ld be
c au s ed ifitd id oc c u r;

 A n is s u e eventhas alread y happened s o there is no need to
as s es s its probability bu twhatmu s tbe taken into ac c ou ntis the
impac tand whatreac tion is req u ired to d ealwithit;

 There is a pos s ibility fora ris k to tu rn into an is s u e when itis
realis ed .

The main internalc ontrols forthe P ens ion Fu nd are:

 A rrangements and proc ed u res to be followed in ad minis tration, governanc e and
managementofthe s c heme;

 S ys tems and arrangements for monitoring that ad minis tration, governanc e and
management; and

 A rrangements and proc ed u res to be followed forthe s afe c u s tod yand s ec u rityofthe as s ets
ofthe s c heme.

2 RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY

Ris k managementd ec is ions and prac tic es willbe in ac c ord anc e with appropriate c od es of bes t
prac tic e, ethic als tand ard s and valu es applic able to the governanc e and ad minis tration ofthe L GP S
and as applied to the offic ers ofthe P ens ion Fu nd .

To d eliverthis polic y itis nec es s ary forP ens ion Fu nd s taff, Elec ted M embers ofthe P ens ion Fu nd
P anel, members ofthe P ens ion Fu nd A d vis ory P aneland members ofthe P ens ion B oard to ad opt
a c ons is tentand s ys tematic approac h to managing ris ks . The way in whic h ris kis managed c an
have a majorimpac ton the P ens ion Fu nd ’ s key objec tives and s ervic e d elivery to its s takehold ers .

174



M anagingRis ks v2 . 0

The fou nd ations of this polic y are bas ed u pon a c ommon u nd ers tand ing and applic ation of the
following princ iples :

 The informed ac c eptanc e ofris kis an es s entialelementofgood bu s ines s s trategy;

 Ris k managementis an effec tive means to enhanc e and protec tthe P ens ion Fu nd over
time;

 C ommon d efinition and u nd ers tand ingofris ks is nec es s aryin ord erto bettermanage thos e
ris ks and make more c ons is tentand informed bu s ines s d ec is ions ;

 A llris ks are to be id entified , as s es s ed , meas u red , monitored and reported on in ac c ord anc e
withthe A d minis teringA u thority’ s ris kmanagements trategy;

 A llbu s ines s ac tivities are to ad here to ris k managementprac tic es whic h reflec teffec tive
and appropriate internalc ontrols .

3 PENSION FUND OBJECTIVES

Operational objectives

 To manage the s c heme in ac c ord anc e with s c heme regu lations and as s oc iated pens ion
law;

 To ens u re that the appropriate
knowled ge and experienc e is
maintained within the P ens ion Fu nd s o
thatalld u ties are d is c harged properly;

 To maintain a high q u ality pens ion
memberd atabas e;

 To ens u re thatallpens ion payments
are mad e on the c orrec tpay d ate;

 To ens u re thatpayments d o notc ontinu e to be mad e to d ec eas ed members ofthe s c heme;

 To have c ontinu ou s ac c es s to the pens ion ad minis tration s oftware d u ring normalworking
hou rs and extend ed hou rs as req u ired ;

 To ens u re thatpens ion c ontribu tions are rec eived from S c heme employers by the P ens ion
Fu nd within req u ired times c ales ;

 To maintain an appropriate levelofs taffto ad minis terthe s c heme effec tivelyand effic iently;

 To maintain a pens ion ad minis tration s trategy and s ervic e levelagreementand ens u re that
key performanc e ind ic ators are ac hieved and reported to the P ens ion Fu nd P anel, P ens ion
Fu nd A d vis ory P aneland P ens ion B oard ;

 To c ommu nic ate effec tively and effic iently withalls c heme members ;

 To ens u re thatthird party operations are c ontrolled and operate effec tively and c os t
effic iently;

175



M anagingRis ks v2 . 0

 To monitor and review the performanc e of the L oc alP ens ions P artners hip Inves tment
L imited as the Inves tmentFu nd M anagerto ens u re maximu m benefitforthe P ens ion Fu nd .

Strategic objectives

 To ac hieve a fu nd ing levelof10 0 % ;

 To ac hieve s table employerc ontribu tion rates ;

 To s etthe s trategic as s etalloc ation;

 To monitorand review inves tmentperformanc e in line withthe s trategic as s etalloc ation;

 To ens u re employerc ovenants are s u ffic ientto
meetemployerobligations ;

 To maintain a high levelofgovernanc e ofthe
P ens ion Fu nd in line with the L oc alGovernment
P ens ion S c heme Regu lations and as s oc iated
pens ion legis lation.

4 PENSION FUND RISKS

Ifris kis notproperly managed itc an have a s ignific antimpac ton the P ens ion Fu nd . The effec tive
managementofris kis ac ritic alpartofthe P ens ion Fu nd ’ s approac hto d eliverings ou nd governanc e
and ad minis tration performanc e thatprovid es better ou tc omes for allof its s takehold ers . The
P ens ion Fu nd id entifies the operationaland s trategic ris ks as s oc iated with its operationaland
s trategic objec tives .

The objec tive ofris kmanagementis notto c ompletely eliminate allpos s ible ris ks bu tto rec ognis e
ris ks and d ealwith them appropriately. Everyone c onnec ted to the P ens ion Fu nd s hou ld
u nd ers tand the natu re of ris k and s ys temic ally id entify, analys e, treat, monitorand review thos e
ris ks .

Ris kmanagementreq u ires :

 A c ons is tentmanagementframeworkformakingd ec is ions on how bes tto manage ris k;

 Relevantlegis lative req u irements to be taken into ac c ou ntin managingris ks ;

 Integration ofris kmanagementwithexis ting planning and operationalproc es s es ;

 L ead ers hipto empowers taffin the managementofris k;

176



M anagingRis ks v2 . 0

 Good q u ality information.

Operational risks

Key operationalris kc overs s u c hareas as :

 A d minis tration ofmemberrec ord s ;

 P ayments ofmemberbenefits ;

 M anagementofthe P ens ion Fu nd ’ s c as h;

 M onitoringand reviewing inves tmentperformanc e;

 Rec eiptofemployee and employerc ontribu tions ;

 B u s ines s c ontinu ity and d is as terrec overy;

 L ac kofknowled ge and expertis e; and

 S taffs hortages .

Strategic risks

Key s trategic ris k, whils tnotaffec ting d ay to d ay operations ofthe Fu nd , c ou ld in the med iu m or
long-term , have s ignific antimpac tand c overs s u c hareas as :

 The P ens ion Fu nd beingles s than 10 0 % fu nd ed ;

 Volatility ofemployerc ontribu tion rates ;

 Inves tmentperformanc e;

 Failu re to meetfu nd ingtargets

 L ongevity ris k;

 Employerc ovenants .

The P ens ion Fu nd ’ s ris kas s es s mentand regis ters ets ou tallofthe operationaland s trategic ris ks .

177



M anagingRis ks v2 . 0

5 RISK MANAGEMENT PROCESS

The P ens ion Fu nd has ad opted the A d minis teringA u thority’ s approac hto ris kmanagementwhic h
follows a fou r-s tage proc es s thatinvolves the Fu nd ’ s objec tives beingris kprofiled .

Stage 1 –Identification

This involves id entifyingthe P ens ion Fu nd ’ s objec tives from its c ore bu s ines s proc es s es .

Stage 2 - Assessment

This s tage id entifies thos e c irc u ms tanc es (ris ks )thatmightpreventthos e objec tives beingreac hed
and evalu ates the likelihood , impac tand s ignific anc e ofeac hris k.

Impac ts are s c ored from 1 to 4 where 1 repres ents a minorris kand 4 repres ents a highris k. The
likelihood ofthe ris k oc c u rring is als o s c ored from 1 to 4 where 1 repres ents very u nlikely and 4
very likely.

M u ltiplyingthes e likelihood and impac ts c ores togethergives ares u ltthatis as s es s ed as “highris k”
(avalu e over10 ), “high/med iu m ris k”(avalu e above 8 and below 11), “med iu m ris k”(avalu e above
4 and below 9)and “low ris k”(a valu e below 5). Key ris ks are thos e id entified as high ris k and
thos e where the implic ations offailu re c arry the mos td amaging c ons eq u enc es .

In terms of as s es s ing eac h ris k the as s es s mentis d etailed in three s itu ations forallris ks with a
fu rtherd imens ion ofris kappetite as s es s mentto the key ris ks :

 Unc ontrolled : the inherentris kwithou tany c ontrols whats oever;

 C u rrent: how the ris ks tand s atthe pres enttime;

 C ontrolled : how the ris kwou ld lookonc e alltreatmentmeas u res are implemented .

A n impac t/likelihood matrix as follows s hows how eac hris konc e as s es s ed agains tbothc riteriawill
id entify the ris kprofile ofeac hobjec tive.

178



M anagingRis ks v2 . 0

I

M
P
A
C
T

High 4 8 12 16

Medium/High 3 6 9 12

Medium 2 4 6 8

Low 1 2 3 4

Low Medium Medium/High High

LIKELIHOOD VALUES

Stage 3 - Control

This s tage treats the ris ks in ord erofpriority. Treatmentmeas u res ad d res s whetherthe likelihood
and /orimpac tc an be red u c ed orthe c ons eq u enc es c hanged . C ontingenc ies c an be d evis ed to
res pond s hou ld the ris koc c u r.

Stage 4 - Monitoring

This s tage s ets ou ta proc es s forreviewing and monitoring ac tions previou s ly taken. Eac h ris k
mu s tc learly ind ic ate allc ons eq u enc es , c ou ntermeas u res and c ontingenc ies along with the ris k
owner.

This proc es s ad d s s c ru tiny to ens u re:

 C orrec tris ks are being id entified ;

 Treatmentmeas u res id entified are legitimate;

 C orrec tind ivid u als are as s igned as ris kowners ;

 There are c hallenges mad e to whatis known to ens u re thatthe mos tu pto d ate knowled ge
is beingu tilis ed ;

 There are early warning s ys tems s o thatinformation c an filteru pq u ic kly and eas ily.

6 RISK APPETITE

Ris kappetite is the phras e u s ed to d es c ribe where the P ens ion Fu nd c ons id ers its elfto be on the
s pec tru m ranging from willingnes s to take orac c eptris ks throu gh to an u nwillingnes s oravers ion
to takingris ks .

The A d minis tering A u thority provid es a d ivers e range ofs ervic es where its ris kappetite may vary
from one s ervic e to another. The P ens ion Fu nd has a s etofc ore objec tives and s o its ris kappetite
c an be s etwithin appropriate limits .

A d efined ris kappetite red u c es the likelihood ofu npleas ants u rpris es and c ons id ers :

179



M anagingRis ks v2 . 0

 Ris kc apac ity: the ac tu alphys ic alres ou rc es available and phys ic alc apabilityofthe P ens ion
Fu nd . The Fu nd ’ s c apac ity willhave limits and therefore its c apac ity is finite and breac hing
thos e limits may c au s e the P ens ion Fu nd problems thatitc annotd ealwith;

 Ris ktoleranc e: the fac tors thatthe P ens ion Fu nd c an d etermine, c an c hange and is prepare
to bear. Ris ks falling within the Fu nd ’ s toleranc es for governanc e and ad minis tration
s ervic es c an be ac c epted .

7 RISK MANAGEMENT ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

This s ec tion has been lifted d irec tlyfrom the A d minis teringA u thority’ s ris kmanagementpolic y and
s trategy and has been inc lu d ed forthe pu rpos es ofprovid ing gu id anc e on how the P ens ion Fu nd ,
as managed by The RoyalB orou gh of W ind s or & M aid enhead , is held ac c ou ntable to the
managements tru c tu re ofthe B orou gh.

Managing director

The M D takes overallres pons ibilityforthe c ou nc il’ s ris kmanagementperformanc e and in partic u lar
ens u res that:

 d ec is ion-making is in line withc ou nc ilpolic y and proc ed u res formanagementofris k;

 ad eq u ate res ou rc es are mad e available forthe managementofris k;

 there is an u nd ers tand ingofthe ris ks fac ingthe c ou nc il.

Cabinet members

 Take reas onable s teps to c ons id erthe ris ks involved in the d ec is ions taken by them;

 H ave an u nd ers tand ingofthe key c ou nc ilris ks falling within theirportfolio.

Audit and Performance Review Panel

 C ons id erand approve the ris kmanagements trategy annu ally and c ommu nic ate itto other
elec ted members ;

 Rec eive an annu alreporton ris kmanagementand monitorthe effec tive d evelopmentand
operation and c orporate governanc e in the c ou nc il;

 Rec eive q u arterly reports on the managementof the key operationaland s trategic ris ks
fac ingthe c ou nc ilto allow theirs c ru tiny and c hallenge;

 O vers ee the governanc e proc es s to ens u re thats trategic ris ks are being reviewed atC M T
and ac ros s eac hd irec torate;

 O vers ee a c omprehens ive, inc lu s ive and ris k management approac h to the annu al
governanc e s tatementproc es s ;

 Review an annu alreporton c orporate governanc e (annu algovernanc e s tatement).

180



M anagingRis ks v2 . 0

Head of finance

 Ens u re thata ris kmanagementpolic y and s trategy is d eveloped and reviewed annu ally to
reflec tthe c hanging natu re ofthe c ou nc il;

 C hampion the proc es s ofris kmanagementas good managementprac tic e and a valu able
managementtool.

Senior Leadership Team (SLT)

 Ens u re thatthe c ou nc ilmanages ris k effec tively throu gh the d evelopmentof an all-
enc ompas s ings trategy and monthly u pd ates from the ris kmanager;

 A pprove the c orporate ris kmanagements trategy;

 C hallenge the c ontents ofthe c orporate ris kregis terto ens u re, in partic u lar, thatitreflec ts
any s ignific antnew ris ks emerging and thatmonitorings ys tems are s u itably robu s t;

 S u pportand promote ris kmanagementthrou ghou tthe c ou nc il;

 Ens u re that, where appropriate, key d ec is ion reports inc lu d e a s ec tion d emons trating that
arrangements are in plac e to manage id entified ris ks .

 Id entify and manage the s trategic and S L T ris kregis ters on a q u arterly bas is .

Directorate Management Team (DMT)

 Ens u re thatris k is managed effec tively in eac h s ervic e area within the agreed c orporate
s trategy;

 Id entify any s ervic e s pec ific is s u es relating to ris k managementwhic h have notbeen
explic itly ad d res s ed in the c orporate s trategy;

 Id entify and manage the d irec torate ris kregis teron a q u arterly bas is ;

 D is s eminate the d etailof the s trategy and alloc ate res pons ibilities for implementation to
s ervic e managers and s taff;

 Es tablis h the training req u irements of managers and s taff with regard to s trategy
implementation;

 H ave an u nd ers tand ingofthe ris ks fac ingthe c ou nc il.

Insurance and risk management team

 D evelopthe s trategy and overs ee its implementation ac ros s the c ou nc il;

 S hare experienc e and good prac tic e on ris kand ris kmanagement;

 D evelop and rec ommend the s trategy to the A u d itand P erformanc e Review P aneland
C M T;

 P rovid e a c learand c onc is e s ys tem forreportingris ks to elec ted members .

181



M anagingRis ks v2 . 0

Internal audit

 Take the c ontentof the key ris k regis ters into ac c ou ntwhen s etting the internalau d it
programme;

 Und ertake au d its to as s es s the effec tivenes s ofthe ris kmitigation meas u res ;

 Feed bac kau d itopinions into the ris kregis ter.

Heads of service/managers

 Take primaryres pons ibilityforid entifyingand managings ignific ants trategic and operational
ris ks aris ingfrom theirs ervic e ac tivities ;

 Rec ommend the nec es s ary trainingforemployees on ris kmanagement;

 M aintain a ris kmanagementportfolio fortheirs ervic e area;

 Ens u re thatallemployees are aware ofthe ris kas s es s ments appropriate to theirac tivity;

 B e res pons ible forprod u c tion, tes tingand maintenanc e ofbu s ines s c ontinu ity plans .

All staff

 Id entify new orc hangingris ks in theirjob and feed thes e bac kto theirline manager;

 S u pportc ontinu ou s s ervic e d elivery and any emergenc y res pons e.

8 CORPORATE RISK FINANCING STRATEGY

This s ec tion has als o been lifted d irec tlyfrom the A d minis teringA u thority’ s ris kmanagementpolic y
and s trategy and has been inc lu d ed forthe pu rpos es of provid ing gu id anc e on how the P ens ion
Fu nd , as managed by The RoyalB orou gh ofW ind s or& M aid enhead , is held ac c ou ntable to the
managements tru c tu re ofthe B orou gh.

The c ou nc ilu s es its ris kfinanc ing arrangements to protec tits elffrom the financ ialimplic ations of
u nexpec ted ac c id entalevents affec ting its s taffand property, whic h helps in provid ing c ontinu ou s
s ervic es in the eventofs eriou s los s es .

The levelofc overbou ghtand exc es s es applied willd epend on the c ou nc il’ s appetite forris k, bas ed
on its financ ials ec u rity i. e. ability to s elffu nd c laims and the s trengthofits ris kmanagement.

The c ou nc ilis exemptfrom the majority ofreq u irements regard ingc ompu ls ory ins u ranc e. The only
ins u rable as pec tofthe c ou nc il’ s operations itis obliged to make s pec ific financ ialprovis ion foris
fid elity gu arantee (frau d by s taff).

N evertheles s , mos tpu blic s ec tororganis ations inc lu d ing the c ou nc il, c hoos e to pu rc has e external
ins u ranc e forthe majority oftheirris ks . This is bec au s e withou texternalins u ranc e, the c ou nc ilwill
be obliged to fu nd alls u c hexpos u res from its res ou rc es .

Ifthe c ou nc ilwere to ins u re agains tmos tofthe ris ks thatitfac ed then this wou ld inc u ra s ignific ant
amou ntofannu alexpend itu re in premiu ms .

182



M anagingRis ks v2 . 0

H aving s trong ris k managementarrangements ac ros s the c ou nc ilallows u s to retain s ome ris ks
eitherby d ec id ing to s elf ins u re thes e ris ks in theirentirety orby pu rc has ing ins u ranc e c overfor
los s es thataris e overa c ertain valu e.

Objectives

 P rovid e financ ialprotec tion to the c ou nc il’ s as s ets , res ou rc es , s ervic es and employees ;

 M aintain an appropriate balanc e between externalins u ranc e and internalris kretention;

 Red u c e the c os tofexternalins u ranc e premiu m s pend ;

 Ens u re the internalins u ranc e fu nd is maintained atan appropriate level;

 Ens u re res ilientc laims hand ling arrangements and ins u ranc e frau d d etec tion;

 C omplywithanys tatu toryreq u irements to have in plac e partic u larpolic ies ofins u ranc e and
as s oc iated ins pec tion s ys tems .

Achieved by:

 Us ing c laims mod elling and otherris kas s es s ments to d etermine ris kexpos u res ;

 C ontinu ally monitoringc hanges in legis lation, c ivilju s tic e protoc ols and relevantc as e law;

 C omparing the c ou nc il’ s ins u ranc e programme and c laims experienc e throu gh s u itable
benc hmarking;

 M aintaining c laims hand ling protoc ols in line withs tatu tory req u irements ;

 Und ertaking period ic ac tu arialfu nd reviews .

Procurement of insurance

A llins u ranc e proc u rementc omplies withthe relevantEU proc u rementru les .

H ard c opies of polic ies are retained ind efinitely with more rec entpolic y d oc u mentation s tored
elec tronic ally.

A pproved by the P ens ion P anel: 1 2 N ovember20 1 8

N extreview d ate: O c tober20 19

183



RoyalC ou nty ofB erkshire P ension Fu nd –Risk A ssessm entRegister

1
D ate las treviewed : 1 2 N ovember20 1 8
D ate las tu pd ated : 1 2 N ovember20 1 8

C u rrentriskrating Targetriskrating
Ref Risk Risk

C ategory
C au se Im pac t Riskowner C ontrols in plac e to

m anage the risk
I
m
p
a
c
t

L
i
k
e
l
i
h
o
o
d

S
c
o
r
e

L evel
ofrisk

Fu rtherac tions
nec essary to
m anage the risk

Riskac tion
owner

D ate
C om plete

I
m
p
a
c
t

L
i
k
e
l
i
h
o
o
d

S
c
o
r
e

L evel
ofrisk

Next
Review
D ate

P EN
0 0 1

Failu re to
c omply with
S c heme
regu lations and
as s oc iated
pens ion law.

O perational L ac koftec hnic al
expertis e /s taff
res ou rc es to
res earc h
regu lations , IT
s ys tems notkept
u pto d ate with
regu lations .

Inc orrec tpens ion
payments mad e or
es timates given.
Unhappy c u s tomers ,
employers , ris ks of
fines , ad vers e au d it
reports , breac hes of
the law.

Rob S tu bbs S u ffic ients taffing.
Trainingand
regu latory u pd ates
forallind ivid u als
as s oc iated withthe
Fu nd . C ompetent
s oftware provid er
and external
c ons u ltants .

2 2 4

L ow

W orkc ontinu es to
ens u re thatthe
Fu nd c omplies fu lly
withallgovernanc e
and ad minis tration
req u irements .

Kevin
Taylor
P hilip
B oyton

O ngoing 2 2 4

L ow

Ju ly
20 19

P EN
0 0 2

L ate is s u e of
S c heme
regu lation
amend ments .

O perational M H C L G d o not
is s u e c hanges to
regu lations wellin
ad vanc e of
effec tive d ate.

Res ou rc e is s u es for
Fu nd . A d minis tering
A u thority has a d u ty
to ens u re thatall
s takehold ers rec eive
and have ac c es s to
mos tu pto d ate
information.

Rob S tu bbs Req u ired ac tions to
be c ons id ered in
view ofd raft
regu lations . S enior
managers to
c ons id erappropriate
req u irements and
prioritis e
c ommu nic ations
ac c ord ingly.

4 1 4

L ow

D etails to be
inc lu d ed on
welc ome page of
webs ite and
information to be
d is tribu ted to
S c heme employers
ford is s emination
to s c heme
members via
intranetand email.

Kevin
Taylor
P hilip
B oyton

N /A 4 1 4

L ow

Ju ly
20 19

P EN
0 0 3

The
appropriate
knowled ge and
u nd ers tand ing
is not
maintained by
the
A d minis tering
A u thority.

O perational L ac koftec hnic al
expertis e, training,
profes s ional
d evelopmentand
c ontinu ou s s elf-
as s es s mentto
id entify gaps in
knowled ge.

Failu re to s ec u re
c omplianc e with
s tatu tory obligations
and tP R
req u irements lead ing
to poorgovernanc e
and ad minis tration of
the S c heme.
D is s atis fied
c u s tomers , ad vers e
au d itreports , ris kof
fine.

Rob S tu bbs Trainingplans in
plac e foroffic ers and
M embers ofthe
P ens ion Fu nd P anel,
P ens ion Fu nd
A d vis ory P aneland
P ens ion B oard .
M embers ofP ens ion
B oard to as s is t
A d minis tering
A u thority in ens u ring
c omplianc e.

4 1 4

L ow

C ontinu alreview of
trainingneed s and
s tafflevels with
s u c c es s ion plans
d eveloped .

Kevin
Taylor
P hilip
B oyton

O ngoing 4 1 4

L ow

Ju ly
20 19

P EN
0 0 4

Failu re to
maintain a high
qu ality member
d atabas e.

O perational P oorornon-
exis tentnotific ation
ofmemberd ata by
S c heme
employers .

Inc orrec trec ord s ,
inc orrec tbenefit
es timates , potentially
inc orrec tpens ion
benefits beingpaid .
S c heme members
ac c es s wrong
information via s elf-
s ervic e. L os s of
repu tation, more
c omplaints , poor
performanc e.

Rob S tu bbs Fu nd c ontinu es to
workwithemployers
to improve d ata
qu ality. P ro-ac tive
c hec ks when benefits
are c alc u lated .
M embers hip
information is
c hec ked as partof
year-end proc es s ing

4 2 8

M ed iu
m

Key aim ofthe
P ens ion
A d minis tration
S trategy is to
engage employers
in the u s e ofi-
C onnec t.

Kevin
TaylorP hilip
B oyton

M arc h20 21 4 1 4

L ow

Ju ly
20 19

184



RoyalC ou nty ofB erkshire P ension Fu nd –Risk A ssessm entRegister

2
D ate las treviewed : 1 2 N ovember20 1 8
D ate las tu pd ated : 1 2 N ovember20 1 8

C u rrentriskrating Targetriskrating
Ref Risk Risk

C ategory
C au se Im pac t Riskowner C ontrols in plac e to

m anage the risk
I
m
p
a
c
t

L
i
k
e
l
i
h
o
o
d

S
c
o
r
e

L evel
ofrisk

Fu rtherac tions
nec essary to
m anage the risk

Riskac tion
owner

D ate
C om plete

I
m
p
a
c
t

L
i
k
e
l
i
h
o
o
d

S
c
o
r
e

L evel
ofrisk

Next
Review
D ate

P EN
0 0 5

Failu re to hold
pers onald ata
s ec u rely.

O perational P oorproc ed u res
ford ata trans ferto
and from partner
organis ations , poor
s ec u rity of
s ys tems , poord ata
retention and
d is pos al, poor
bac ku pand
rec overy ofd ata.

P oord ata, los tor
c ompromis ed . Ris k
offines , ad vers e
au d itreports ,
breac hes ofthe law.

Rob S tu bbs D atabas e hos ted off-
s ite and bac ked u pin
2 s eparate loc ations .
A c c es s to s ys tems is
available to a limited
nu mberofu s ers via
d u alpas s word and
u s erid entific ation.
D ata trans ferred is
enc rypted .
C ompliantwith
RB W M d ata
protec tion and IT
polic ies . N o paper
files allmanaged via
image and s ys tem
d oc u ment
generation.
C onfid entialwas te
d is pos ed ofin line
withRB W M polic y.

4 1 4

L ow

A nnu alau d it
u nd ertaken. S taff
u nd ertake annu al
d ata protec tion
trainingin line with
RB W M polic y.

Kevin
TaylorP hilip
B oyton

O ngoing 4 1 4

L ow

Ju ly
20 19

P EN
0 0 6

Failu re to make
pens ion
payments on
time.

O perational S ys tems notin
plac e to ens u re
payments mad e on
time.

P ayments paid late
and in s ome c as es
afters tatu tory
d ead line. Fu nd open
to c ritic is m and
pos s ible fine.

Rob S tu bbs S c hed u le ofpayment
d ates is maintained
and written
proc ed u res ad opted .
S u ffic ientc overis
provid ed to ens u re
payments c an be
mad e on time.

4 1 4

L ow

C ontinu alreview of
trainingneed s and
s tafflevels with
s u c c es s ion plans
d eveloped .

P hilip
B oyton

O ngoing 4 1 4

L ow

Ju ly
20 19

P EN
0 0 7

C ontinu e
making
payments to
d ec eas ed
members .

O perational S ys tems notin
plac e to ens u re
thatpayments s top
atappropriate
time. Fu nd not
ad vis ed of
member’ s d eath.

P ayments c ontinu e
to be mad e
inc orrec tly ata
potentialc os tto the
P ens ion Fu nd .
D is tres s c au s ed to
d epend ants .

Rob S tu bbs The Fu nd u nd ertakes
a monthly mortality
s c reeningexerc is e
and partic ipates in
the biennialN ational
Frau d Initiative (N FI).

2 2 4

L ow

Fu nd has s igned
u pto the
Information
S haring
A greementhos ted
by W YP F and the
D W P ‘ TellUs
O nc e’ s ervic e.

P hilip
B oyton

O ngoing 2 2 4

L ow

Ju ly
20 19

P EN
0 0 8

Unable to
ac c es s pens ion
s oftware d u ring
normaloffic e
hou rs or
extend ed hou rs
where req u ired .

O perational L inks to s ys tem not
working, internet
ac c es s d enied .

Unable to c arry ou t
ad minis trative d u ties
ford u ration of
ou tage.

Rob S tu bbs P roc ed u res in plac e
to c ontac ts oftware
provid er’ s helpd es k
and ac tion plan
implemented .
O u tage times
rec ord ed /reported .

4 1 4

L ow

A s partofc ontrac t
c ons id eration
need s to be given
to means of
c ompens ation for
los s ofs ervic e.

P hilip
B oyton

O ngoing 4 1 4

L ow

Ju ly
20 19

185



RoyalC ou nty ofB erkshire P ension Fu nd –Risk A ssessm entRegister

3
D ate las treviewed : 1 2 N ovember20 1 8
D ate las tu pd ated : 1 2 N ovember20 1 8

C u rrentriskrating Targetriskrating
Ref Risk Risk

C ategory
C au se Im pac t Riskowner C ontrols in plac e to

m anage the risk
I
m
p
a
c
t

L
i
k
e
l
i
h
o
o
d

S
c
o
r
e

L evel
ofrisk

Fu rtherac tions
nec essary to
m anage the risk

Riskac tion
owner

D ate
C om plete

I
m
p
a
c
t

L
i
k
e
l
i
h
o
o
d

S
c
o
r
e

L evel
ofrisk

Next
Review
D ate

P EN
0 0 9

L ate ornon-
rec eiptof
pens ion
c ontribu tions
from S c heme
employer.

O perational S c heme employers
failto make
paymentof
employee and
employer
c ontribu tions to
P ens ion Fu nd
within s tatu tory
d ead lines .

L os s ofpens ion
inves tment.
Employeratris kof
beingreported to tP R
withac tion and fines
beingimpos ed if
c ons id ered to be of
materials ignific anc e.

Rob S tu bbs Rec eiptof
c ontribu tions is
monitored very
c los ely. Employers
c has ed and
remind ed oftheir
s tatu tory d u ties . A ll
oc c u rrenc es
rec ord ed in
ad minis tration report.
Gu id anc e is s u ed to
s c heme employers .

2 1 3

L ow

S c heme employers
engagingwithi-
C onnec twill
au tomatic ally
u pload
c ontribu tions to
memberrec ord s
monthly improving
rec onc iliation
proc es s es .

Kevin
Taylor

O ngoing 2 2 4

L ow

Ju ly
20 19

P EN
0 10

Inc reas ed
liabilities as a
res u ltoflarge
nu mberofearly
retirement
c as es .

O perational S c heme employer
early retirement
polic ies .

P otentialfor
u nfu nd ed liabilities
throu ghs train c os ts .
Financ iallos s to the
Fu nd .

Rob S tu bbs The Fu nd monitors
the inc id enc es of
early retirements
c los ely and
proc ed u res are in
plac e to ens u re that
S c heme employers
are invoic ed forany
s train c os ts that
aris e.

1 1 2

L ow

S ettlementof
invoic es req u ired
within 21 d ays of
is s u e withfailu res
res u ltingin the
is s u e ofa notic e of
u ns atis fac tory
performanc e to
employer.

Kevin
Taylor

O ngoing 2 2 4

L ow

Ju ly
20 19

P EN
0 11

L os s ofkey
s taff.

O perational The s pec ialis t
natu re ofthe work
means s ome s taff
have bec ome
experts in the
L GP S regu lations
and inves tment
polic ies .

Ifs omeone leaves or
bec omes illa big
knowled ge gapis left
behind .

Rob S tu bbs In the eventofa
knowled ge gap
externalc ons u ltants
and ind epend ent
ad vis ors c an helpin
the s hort-term .

4 2 8

M ed iu
m

L os s ofkey s taffin
20 23 has been
highlighted atan
early s tage in ord er
to c ons id er
appropriate
s u c c es s ion
planning.

Rob S tu bbs O ngoing 2 2 4

L ow

Ju ly
20 19

P EN
0 12

Failu re to
c ommu nic ate
properly with
s takehold ers

O perational L ac kofc lear
c ommu nic ations
polic y and ac tion
partic u larly with
S c heme members
and employers .

S c heme members
u naware ofthe rights
and privileges the
S c heme provid es s o
make bad d ec is ions .
Employers are not
aware ofthe
regu lations and their
res pons ibilities and
s o d ata flow is poor.

Rob S tu bbs The Fu nd has a
C ommu nic ation
M anagerand a
C ommu nic ations
P olic y. The webs ite
is maintained to a
highs tand ard and all
gu id es , fac ts heets
and trainingnotes
are pu blis hed .

4 1 4

L ow

The
C ommu nic ation
P olic y c ontinu es to
evolve.

Kevin
Taylor

O ngoing 4 1 4

L ow

Ju ly
20 19

P EN
0 13

L os s ofoffic e
premis es

O perational Fire, bomb, flood
etc .

Temporary los s of
s ervic e.

Rob S tu bbs A bu s ines s c ontinu ity
plan is in plac e.
S ys tems hos ted , s taff
c an workathome.

4 1 4

L ow

N /A Kevin
Taylor

O ngoing 4 1 4

L ow

Ju ly
20 19

186



RoyalC ou nty ofB erkshire P ension Fu nd –Risk A ssessm entRegister

4
D ate las treviewed : 1 2 N ovember20 1 8
D ate las tu pd ated : 1 2 N ovember20 1 8

C u rrentriskrating Targetriskrating
Ref Risk Risk

C ategory
C au se Im pac t Riskowner C ontrols in plac e to

m anage the risk
I
m
p
a
c
t

L
i
k
e
l
i
h
o
o
d

S
c
o
r
e

L evel
ofrisk

Fu rtherac tions
nec essary to
m anage the risk

Riskac tion
owner

D ate
C om plete

I
m
p
a
c
t

L
i
k
e
l
i
h
o
o
d

S
c
o
r
e

L evel
ofrisk

Next
Review
D ate

P EN
0 14

L os s offu nd s
throu ghfrau d .

O perational Frau d or
mis appropriation of
fu nd s by an
employer, agentor
c ontrac tor.

Financ iallos s to the
Fu nd .

Rob S tu bbs The Fu nd is internally
and externally
au d ited to tes tthat
c ontrols are
ad eq u ate.
Regu latory c ontrol
reports from
inves tment
managers , c u s tod ian.
Fu nd partic ipates in
biennialN ational
Frau d Initiative (N FI).

4 1 4

L ow

M onthly s pot
c hec ks are
u nd ertaken as
req u es ted by
internalau d itto
ens u re thatno
‘ ghos t’ members
have been ad d ed
to payrolland that
allpaymentru ns
have been
proc es s ed
appropriately.

Rob S tu bbs O ngoing 4 1 4

L ow

Ju ly
20 19

P EN
0 15

P oor
managementof
c as hflows .

O perational D ay to d ay
c as hflows not
monitored
effec tively.

Fu nd s notavailable
to make pens ion
payments .

Rob S tu bbs O ffic ers ofthe
P ens ion Fu nd
monitorc as hflows on
a d aily bas is and are
aware ofthe
payments c hed u les
prod u c ed by payroll.

4 1 4

L ow

N /A Kevin
Taylor

O ngoing 4 1 4

L ow

Ju ly
20 19

P EN
0 16

Failu re to
d elegate d u ties
appropriately.

O perational D elegation of
d u ties not
u nd ers tood .

O ffic ers failto fu lfil
theird elegated d u ties
res u ltingin poor
performanc e and
potentiallos s of
repu tation.

Rob S tu bbs O ffic ers c arry ou t
theird u ties in
ac c ord anc e withthe
A d minis tering
A u thority’ s S c hed u le
ofD elegations as
c ontained in the
C ou nc il’ s
C ons titu tion.

3 2 6

L ow

S c hed u les of
d elegation to be
reviewed forall
as pec ts ofthe
P ens ion Fu nd ’ s
d u ties .

Rob S tu bbs M arc h20 16 4 1 4

L ow

Ju ly
20 19

P EN
0 1 7

Fu nd ingL evel
below 10 0 % .

S trategic L ac kofproper
s trategy to ac hieve
10 0 % fu nd ing
level. A c tu al
inves tmentretu rns
failto meet
expec ted retu rns .

Fu nd remains
u nd erfu nd ed and
employerc ontribu tion
rates inc reas e.

Rob S tu bbs Fu nd has pu blis hed
Fu nd ingS trategy
S tatement. D efic it
rec overy plan
implemented
following20 10
valu ation. Fu nd
regu larly monitors
inves tmentretu rns
and the A c tu ary
provid es a fu nd ing
u pd ate eac hmonth.

4 2 8

M ed iu m

Regu lar
performanc e
u pd ates rec eived
from L P P IL td .

Rob S tu bbs O ngoing 4 1 4

L ow

Ju ly
20 19

187



RoyalC ou nty ofB erkshire P ension Fu nd –Risk A ssessm entRegister

5
D ate las treviewed : 1 2 N ovember20 1 8
D ate las tu pd ated : 1 2 N ovember20 1 8

C u rrentriskrating Targetriskrating
Ref Risk Risk

C ategory
C au se Im pac t Riskowner C ontrols in plac e to

m anage the risk
I
m
p
a
c
t

L
i
k
e
l
i
h
o
o
d

S
c
o
r
e

L evel
ofrisk

Fu rtherac tions
nec essary to
m anage the risk

Riskac tion
owner

D ate
C om plete

I
m
p
a
c
t

L
i
k
e
l
i
h
o
o
d

S
c
o
r
e

L evel
ofrisk

Next
Review
D ate

P EN
0 1 8

Uns table
employer
c ontribu tion
rates .

S trategic A c tu alinves tment
retu rns failto meet
expec ted retu rns .

Volatile employer
c ontribu tion rates
lead ingto S c heme
employers having
d iffic u lties in s etting
bu d gets .

Rob S tu bbs The Fu nd aims to
keepemployer
c ontribu tion rates
s table in agreement
withemployers and
the A c tu ary with
appropriate d efic it
rec overy plan in
plac e.

4 1 4

L ow

Fu nd inglevel
monitored c los ely.

Rob S tu bbs O ngoing 4 1 4

L ow

Ju ly
20 19

P EN
0 19

Inappropriate
fu nd ingtargets .

S trategic Failu re of
inves tment
s trategy to d eliver
ad eq u ate retu rns .

Immed iate c as h
injec tions req u ired
from employers .
Inc reas e in employer
c ontribu tions .

Rob S tu bbs The Fu nd has is s u ed
a Fu nd ingS trategy
s tatementand
Inves tmentS trategy
S tatement. .

3 1 3

L ow

Regu lar
performanc e
u pd ates rec eived
from L P P IL td .

Rob S tu bbs O ngoing 4 1 4

L ow

Ju ly
20 19

P EN
0 20

Uns atis fac tory
inves tment
performanc e

S trategic P oorec onomic
c ond itions , wrong
inves tment
s trategy, poor
s elec tion of
inves tment
managers .

P oor/negative
inves tmentretu rn,
employerc ontribu tion
rates inc reas e,
fu nd inglevelfalls ,
pres s u re on C ou nc il
tax and employer
c os ts .

Rob S tu bbs Us e ofexpert
c ons u ltants in the
s elec tion of
inves tments trategy.
Regu larreview via
Inves tmentGrou p.

2 2 4

L ow

Regu lar
performanc e
u pd ates to be
rec eived from L P P
IL td .

Rob S tu bbs O ngoing 4 1 4

L ow

Ju ly
20 19

P EN
0 21

L ife
Expec tanc y
ris k.

S trategic A s life expec tanc y
ris es liabilities
inc reas e
d is proportionately.

Employer
c ontribu tions ris e
c au s ing u pward
pres s u re on C ou nc il
Tax and employer
c os ts .

Rob S tu bbs In D ec ember20 0 9
the Fu nd entered into
a longevity ins u ranc e
S W A P c overingits
liabilities for
pens ioners as at31
Ju ly 2 0 0 9.

3 1 3

L ow

The P ens ion Fu nd
P anelc ontinu es to
inves tigate how to
protec tthe Fu nd
agains tinc reas ing
longevity. Reviews
the c os tofins u ring
longevity ris kof
pens ioners retired
s inc e Ju ly 20 0 9.

Rob S tu bbs O ngoing 3 1 3

L ow

Ju ly
20 19

P EN
0 22

C u rrenc y ris k. S trategic Valu es of
inves tments
overs eas are
affec ted by
u nrelated c hanges
in foreign
exc hange rates .

Inves tmentretu rns
bec ome volatile in
the med iu m to long-
term .

Rob S tu bbs In A pril20 1 2 the
Fu nd ’ s c u rrenc y
hed gingpolic y was
amend ed s o
c u rrenc y expos u res
are managed agains t
a s trategic c u rrenc y
benc hmark

3 1 3

L ow

Regu lar
performanc e
u pd ates to be
rec eived from L P P
IL td .

Rob S tu bbs O ngoing 3 1 3

L ow

Ju ly
20 19

188



RoyalC ou nty ofB erkshire P ension Fu nd –Risk A ssessm entRegister

6
D ate las treviewed : 1 2 N ovember20 1 8
D ate las tu pd ated : 1 2 N ovember20 1 8

C u rrentriskrating Targetriskrating
Ref Risk Risk

C ategory
C au se Im pac t Riskowner C ontrols in plac e to

m anage the risk
I
m
p
a
c
t

L
i
k
e
l
i
h
o
o
d

S
c
o
r
e

L evel
ofrisk

Fu rtherac tions
nec essary to
m anage the risk

Riskac tion
owner

D ate
C om plete

I
m
p
a
c
t

L
i
k
e
l
i
h
o
o
d

S
c
o
r
e

L evel
ofrisk

Next
Review
D ate

P EN
0 23

Interes trate
ris k.

S trategic C hanges in long-
term interes trates
affec tthe net
pres entvalu e of
the Fu nd ’ s
liabilities .

Inves tmentretu rns
bec ome volatile in
the med iu m to long-
term .

Rob S tu bbs The P ens ion Fu nd
P anelhas
c ons id ered how long-
term interes trate ris k
c an be hed ged and
au thoris ed offic ers to
inves tigate how this
c an be ac hieved
within the c ons traints
ofthe L GP S
regu lations .

3 1 3

L ow

Regu lar
performanc e
u pd ates to be
rec eived from L P P
IL td .

Rob S tu bbs O ngoing 3 1 3

L ow

Ju ly
20 19

P EN
0 24

Inflation ris k. S trategic B enefits paid to
S c heme members
are linked
(u pward s only)to
C ons u merP ric e
Ind ex (C P I).

L iabilities inc reas e
d is proportionately at
times ofhigh
inflation.

Rob S tu bbs The P ens ion Fu nd
P anelhas
c ons id ered how long-
term inflation ris kc an
be hed ged and
au thoris ed offic ers to
inves tigate how this
c an be ac hieved
within the c ons traints
ofthe L GP S
regu lations .

2 1 2

L ow

Regu lar
performanc e
u pd ates to be
rec eived from L P P
IL td

Rob S tu bbs O ngoing 4 1 4

L ow

Ju ly
20 19

P EN
0 25

Inability of
S c heme
employers to
meettheir
obligations .

S trategic W hen a S c heme
employerno longer
has any ac tive
members a
c es s ation valu ation
is triggered and an
exitpayment
req u ired ifa
fu nd ingd efic it
exis ts to meet
fu tu re liabilities .

Failu re to c ollec t
c es s ation payments
means the c os tof
fu nd ingfu tu re
liabilities willfallto
the Fu nd and
therefore allS c heme
employers that
remain in itmeaning
a potentialinc reas e
in employer
c ontribu tions .

Rob S tu bbs The P ens ion Fu nd
P anelhas au thoris ed
offic ers to take
appropriate s teps to
review employer
c ovenants and take
the nec es s ary ac tion
to mitigate the impac t
thatthe failu re ofone
S c heme employer
c an have on allother
S c heme employers .

3 2 6

M ed iu m

L P P IL td
as s es s ingris ks .

Rob S tu bbs O ngoing 3 1 3

L ow

Ju ly
20 19

189



RoyalC ou nty ofB erkshire P ension Fu nd –Risk A ssessm entRegister

7
D ate las treviewed : 1 2 N ovember20 1 8
D ate las tu pd ated : 1 2 N ovember20 1 8

C u rrentriskrating Targetriskrating
Ref Risk Risk

C ategory
C au se Im pac t Riskowner C ontrols in plac e to

m anage the risk
I
m
p
a
c
t

L
i
k
e
l
i
h
o
o
d

S
c
o
r
e

L evel
ofrisk

Fu rtherac tions
nec essary to
m anage the risk

Riskac tion
owner

D ate
C om plete

I
m
p
a
c
t

L
i
k
e
l
i
h
o
o
d

S
c
o
r
e

L evel
ofrisk

Next
Review
D ate

P EN
0 2 7

A bility to
implementthe
P u blic S ec tor
exitc ap.

O perational Introd u c tion ofexit
c apwillplac e an
ad d itionalbu rd en
ofthe
ad minis tration
team .

C hanges need to be
c ommu nic ated to
ind ivid u als and
S c heme employers .
S ys tems willneed to
be ad apted onc e
revis ed regu lations
have been is s u ed .

Rob S tu bbs C u rrently monitoring
the progres s and
briefings being
c ommu nic ated .

1 4 4

L ow

A waitingis s u e of
regu lations in ord er
to formu late ac tion
plan.

Kevin
Taylor
P hilip
B oyton

O ngoing 1 4 4

L ow

Ju ly
20 19

P EN
0 2 8

Rec onc iliation
ofGM P
rec ord s

O perational From 6 A pril20 16
c hanges to the
S tate P ens ion
S c heme remove
the c ontrac ting-ou t
natu re ofthe
L GP S .

GM P s no longer
provid ed by H M RC .
GM P information
held by Fu nd c ou ld
be wrongres u ltingin
potentialforliabilities
beingpaid by Fu nd .

Rob S tu bbs D ata analys is c arried
ou tand ac tion taken
to rec onc ile and
ad ju s tpens ions paid
to retired members .

1 4 4

L ow

To review GM P
amou nts alloc ated
to ac tive and
d eferred members .

P hilip
B oyton

O ngoing 1 3 3

L ow

Ju ly
20 19

P EN
0 29

Failu re by
P ens ion B oard
members to
fu lfiltheir
Terms of
Referenc e and
as s oc iated
protoc ols

O perational M embers ofthe
P ens ion B oard s o
notfu lfiltheir
s tatu tory
obligations s etou t
in theirTerms of
Referenc e.

Failu re by P ens ion
B oard members to
as s is tthe
A d minis tering
A u thority in s ec u ring
c omplianc e with
pens ion legis lation
and req u irements s et
ou tby the P ens ions
Regu latorlead ingto
poorgovernanc e and
ad minis tration ofthe
s c heme. D is s atis fied
c u s tomers , los s of
repu tation, ris kof
fine.

Rob S tu bbs Trainingplans in
plac e forP ens ion
B oard members .

4 1 4

L ow

A nnu alreview of
Terms of
Referenc e and
regu larreview of
trainingneed s .

Kevin
Taylor

O ngoing 4 1 4

L ow

Ju ly
20 19

190



ReportTitle: Administration Report
C ontains C onfid entialor
ExemptInformation?

YES -P artI

M emberreporting: C ou nc illorS harpe, C hairman B erks hire
P ens ion Fu nd and P ens ion Fu nd A d vis ory
P anels

M eetingand D ate: B erks hire P ens ion Fu nd and P ens ion
Fu nd A d vis ory P anels –23 S eptember
20 19

Res pons ible O ffic er(s ): Kevin Taylor, D epu ty P ens ion Fu nd
M anager, P hilipB oyton, P ens ion
A d minis tration M anager

W ard s affec ted : N one

1. DETAILS OF RECOMMENDATION(S)

RECOMMENDATION: That Panel notes the report and:

• All areas of governance and administration as reported
• All key performance indicators

P leas e note thatA d minis tration Reports are provid ed to eac h qu arterend d ate (30
Ju ne, 30 S eptember, 31 D ec ember and 31 M arc h) and pres ented ateac h P anel
meetings u bs eq u entto thos e d ates .

2. REASON(S) FOR RECOMMENDATION(S) AND OPTIONS CONSIDERED

The P ens ion P anels have a d u ty in s ec u ring c omplianc e with allgovernanc e and
ad minis tration is s u es .

3. KEY IMPLICATIONS

Failu re to fu lfilthe role and pu rpos e of the A d minis tering A u thority c ou ld lead to the
P ens ion Fu nd and the A d minis tering A u thority being open to c hallenge and
intervention by the P ens ions Regu lator.

4. FINANCIAL DETAILS / VALUE FOR MONEY

N otapplic able.

REPORT SUMMARY

1 . This reportd eals with the ad minis tration of the P ens ion Fu nd forthe period 1
A pril20 19 to 30 Ju ne 20 19

2 . Itrec ommend s thatM embers (and P ens ion B oard repres entatives )note the Key
A d minis trative Ind ic ators throu ghou tthe attac hed report.

3. Good governanc e req u ires allas pec ts ofthe P ens ion Fu nd to be reviewed bythe
A d minis teringA u thority on a regu larbas is

4. There are no financ ialimplic ations forRB W M in this report

191

Agenda Item 9



5. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

N one.

6. RISK MANAGEMENT

N one.

7 . POTENTIAL IMPACTS

N one.

8 . CONSULTATION

N otapplic able.

9. TIMETABLE FOR IMPLEMENTATION

N otapplic able.

10. APPENDICES

N one.

1 1 . BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

N one.

12. CONSULTATION (MANDATORY)

Name of
consultee

Post held Date
issued for
comment

Date
returned
with
comments

C llr. Ju lian S harpe C hairman –B erks hire
P ens ion Fu nd P anel

Rob S tu bbs S ec tion 151 O ffic er

192



ADMINISTRATION REPORT

QUARTER 1 – 2019/20

1 April 2019 to 30 June 2019

193



Conte nts
1. A D M IN ISTRA TIO N .....................................................................................................5

1.1 Scheme M embership....................................................................................................5

1.2 M embershipbyEmployer............................................................................................5

1.3 Scheme Employers.......................................................................................................6

1.4 Scheme EmployerKeyP erformance Ind icators..........................................................7

1.5 KeyP erformance Ind icators.........................................................................................8

1.6 C ommu nications........................................................................................................10

1.7 W ebsite H its...............................................................................................................10

1.8 Stakehold erFeed back................................................................................................10

2 SP E C IA L P RO JEC TS..................................................................................................11

2.1 Y earEnd 2019 ...........................................................................................................11

2.2 V alu ation 2019...........................................................................................................11

2.3 D ataQ u alityExercise ................................................................................................11

194



1. ADMINISTRATION

1.1 Scheme Membership

TOTAL MEMBERSHIP

A c tive Rec ord s 25, 0 94 A c tive P eople 21 , 637

D eferred Rec ord s 26, 68 6 D eferred P eople 22 , 2 91

Retired Rec ord s 1 8 , 0 57 Retired P eople 16, 197

TOTAL 69,837 TOTAL 60,125

1.2 Membership by Employer

Membership movements in this Quarter (a nd pre vious Q ua rte r)

B rac knell RB W M Read ing S lou gh W B erks W okingham

A c tive -221
-112

-57
-126

-346
-363

-230
-20

-188
-173

+171
-128

D eferred -3
+33

-3
-10

+91
+15

+39
-3

+92
+117

+99
+103

Retired +56
+26

+46
+70

+82
+41

+46
+19

+82
+53

+86
+42

0

5000

10000

15000

20000

25000

30000

2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20

Chart 1 - Scheme membership by status
Active Records

Deferred Records

Retired (inc.
Dependants)
Records

Active People

Deferred people

Retired (inc.
Dependants)
People

0

500

1000

1500

2000

2500

3000

3500

4000

4500

Bracknell Forest RBWM Reading Slough West Berkshire Wokingham

Chart 2 - Scheme membership by Unitary Authority

Active Deferred Retired

195



1.3 Scheme Employers

N ew employers s inc e las treport:

A dm ission B odie s : Regenc y C leaning S ervic es L td (M aid en Erlegh S c hools Tru s t),

VolkerH ighways (W okingham B C )

A ca de m ie s : C layc ots P rimary S c hool

Exiting e m ploye rs : N one

6

41

74

56

125

3

Chart 3 - Employers with active members

Unitary Authorities

Town/Parish Councils

Admission Bodies

Colleges

Housing Associations

Academies

Others

1
6

43

1

Chart 4 - Employers without active members

County Council

Town/Parish Councils

Admission Bodies

Academies

196



1.4 Scheme Employer Key Performance Indicators

Table 1A – i-Connect users Quarter 1 (1 April 2019 to 30 June 2019)

Employer Starters Leavers Changes Total Achieved

B rac knellFores tC nc l 158 1 0 7 1 24 38 9 98 . 5269%

RB W M 199 10 4 8 0 38 3 95. 2596%

Read ingB C 294 156 20 9 659 99. 2643%

S lou ghB C 92 59 111 262 92 . 657 3%

W es tB erks C ou nc il 350 20 4 30 4 8 58 98 . 5348 %

W okingham B C 119 53 10 1 2 7 3 99. 6329%

A c ad emy/S c hool 362 191 2445 2998 91 . 267 9%

O thers 135 7 8 349 562 93. 7 534%
Totals 1709 952 2723 6384 96.1121%

NOTES: Table 1 A above s hows alltrans ac tions throu gh i-C onnec tfor the firs tqu arter of 20 19/20 .
C hanges inc lu d e hou rs /weeks u pd ates , ad d res s amend ments and bas ic d etails u pd ates .

The benefits ofi-C onnec tare:

 P ens ion rec ord s are maintained in ‘ real-time’ ;
 S c heme members are pres ented with the mos tu p to d ate and ac c u rate information throu gh

mypension O N L IN E (M embers elf-s ervic e);
 P ens ion ad minis tration d ata matc hes employerpayrolld ata;
 D is c repanc ies are d ealtwithas they aris e eac hmonth;
 Employers are notreq u ired to c omplete yearend retu rns ;
 M anu alc ompletion offorms and inpu tofd ata onto s ys tems is erad ic ated removing the ris kof

hu man error.

Exception report – less than 90% achieved

N one

Table 1B Non i-Connect users Quarter 1 (1 April to 30
June 2019)

Trend

Employer Starters Leavers Total This
Quarter

Quarter
<1

Quarter
<2

Quarter
<3

In/Out In/Out

B rac knell 1/1 39/44 40 /45 47.06% 38 . 8 4% 41 . 1 0 % 38 . 0 5%

RB W M 0 /0 19/69 19/69 21.59% 41 . 1 8 % 51 . 13% 11 . 1 1%

Read ing 0 /0 21/199 21/199 9.55% 20 . 90 % 6. 0 1% 1 8 . 7 5%

S lou gh 0 /0 8 /36 8 /36 18.18% 61 . 2 9% 56. 32% 51 . 97 %

W B erks hire 1/2 23/142 24/144 14.29% 14. 55% 6. 2 8 % 24. 62%

W okingham 0 /5 10 /24 10 /29 25.64% 7 1 . 0 5% 38 . 64% 19. 64%

W B C S c hs . 3/44 4/7 9 7 /123 5.38% 13. 49% 5. 61% 6. 29%

A c ad emies 2 8 /2 8 0 40 /20 2 68 /48 2 12.36% 23. 32% 33. 2 8 % 1 8 . 35%

C olleges 4/12 3/1 7 7 /29 19.44% 66. 67 % 37 . 8 4% 8 . 0 6%

O thers 15/41 14/8 6 29/12 7 18.59% 51 . 2 0 % 41 . 99% 2 7 . 7 8 %

Totals 51/388 181/898 232/1286 15.28% 28.95% 27.30% 19.33%

NOTES: S ome employers lis ted in Table 8 B above willals o be lis ted in Table 8 A . This is bec au s e not
allemployees ofa s c heme employerare paid throu gh the s c heme employer’ s payrolle. g. s ome non-
teac hings taffatL oc alA u thoritymaintained s c hools maybe paid via a third party payrollprovid erwhic h
is notan i-C onnec tu s eralthou ghthos e ind ivid u als are employees ofthe relevantUnitary A u thority.

D etails ofs tarters and leavers only are rec ord ed by the team . O therpens ion rec ord c hanges may or
may nothave been rec eived by the P ens ion Fu nd via payrollor from the s c heme member d irec t.
Experienc e tend s to s how thatind ivid u als may notify payrollof c ertain d ata c hanges bu tnotalways
pens ions and thatpayrollmay notalways forward information to the pens ion team .

M anymis s ingd ata items are fou nd throu ghthe year-end proc es s whic hc an be a long, labou rintens ive
exerc is e forboththe P ens ion Fu nd and the s c heme employer. Employers u s ingi-C onnec td o nothave
a year-end proc es s to d ealwithas alld ata is u pload ed and verified on a monthly bas is .197



1.5 Key Performance Indicators

80%

82%

84%

86%

88%

90%

92%

94%

96%

98%

100%

Jul-18
Aug-
18

Sep-
18

Oct-
18

Nov-
18

Dec-
18

Jan-
19

Feb-
19

Mar-
19

Apr-
19

May-
19

Jun-
19

Starters 99.29 99.35 99.73 99.37 99.63 97.97 99.6 98.46 98.51 98.73 98.32 99.22

Target 95 95 95 95 95 95 95 95 95 95 95 95

Total 848 462 364 478 1072 345 756 456 537 642 832 723

Chart 5A - KPI 1 - Starters processed within 20 working days

Starters

Target

80%

82%

84%

86%

88%

90%

92%

94%

96%

98%

100%

Jul-18
Aug-
18

Sep-
18

Oct-
18

Nov-
18

Dec-
18

Jan-
19

Feb-
19

Mar-
19

Apr-
19

May-
19

Jun-
19

Leavers 100 100 100 100 100 96.83 95.76 96.37 95.86 97.24 94.26 96.45

Target 95 95 95 95 95 95 95 95 95 95 95 95

Total 458 548 635 566 428 379 637 606 652 673 694 582

Chart 5B - KPI 2 - Leavers processed within 15 working days

Leavers

Target

198



50%

55%

60%

65%

70%

75%

80%

85%

90%

95%

100%

Jul-18
Aug-
18

Sep-
18

Oct-
18

Nov-
18

Dec-
18

Jan-19
Feb-
19

Mar-
19

Apr-
19

May-
19

Jun-
19

Refunds 100 98.59 100 98.78 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100

Target 95 95 95 95 95 95 95 95 95 95 95 95

Chart 5C - KPI 3 - Refunds processed within 10 working days

Refunds

Target

80%

82%

84%

86%

88%

90%

92%

94%

96%

98%

100%

Jul-
18

Aug-
18

Sep-
18

Oct-
18

Nov-
18

Dec-
18

Jan-
19

Feb-
19

Mar-
19

Apr-
19

May-
19

Jun-
19

Retirements 95.1 96.26 93.97 94.55 100 100 100 100 99.04 100 98.25 100

Target 95 95 95 95 95 95 95 95 95 95 95 95

Total 102 107 116 110 116 68 84 115 104 125 114 98

Chart 5D - KPI 4 - Retirements processed within 5 working days

Retirements

Target

199



1.6 Communications

1.7 Website Hits

1.8 Stakeholder Feedback

A s partof the P ens ion Fu nd ’ s aim to ac hieve P ens ion A d minis tration S tand ard s
A s s oc iation (P A S A ) ac c red itation it is a req u irement to report to M embers the
c omments and c omplaints rec eived from s c heme employers and their s c heme
members on a period ic bas is .

There is no feed bac kto report.

Pension Surgeries Presentations
Employer

Meetings/Training

Q2 - 2018/19 97 40 7

Q3 - 2018/19 165 0 7

Q4 - 2018/19 58 31 4

Q1 - 2019/20 132 0 4

97

40

7

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

160

180

Chart 5 - Communications - Attendees

Q2 - 2018/19

Q3 - 2018/19

Q4 - 2018/19

Q1 - 2019/20

0

1000

2000

3000

4000

5000

6000

7000

8000

9000

Chart 10 - Website Hits

Number of hits

200



2 SPECIAL PROJECTS

2.1 Year End 2019

O ffic ers are pleas ed to reportthe rec onc iliation and is s u e ofA nnu alB enefitS tatements
in res pec tofac tive c ontribu tors and d eferred pens ioners was c ompleted ahead ofthe
s tatu tory d ead line of31 A u gu s t20 19.

In total2 7 5 s c heme employers were req u ired to provid e O ffic ers with a YearEnd File
by 30 A pril20 19. This was ac hieved by 248 s c heme employers withthe remaining2 7
s c heme employers provid ingtheirfile by no laterthan 23 M ay 20 19.

O ffic ers mad e available A nnu alB enefitS tatements to alls c heme members ofthe total
2 7 5 s c heme employers by 4 Ju ly 20 19. A nnu alB enefitS tatements have been mad e
available overone month earlierthan d u ring 20 1 8 when they were mad e available by
14 A u gu s t20 1 8 . This is tes tamentto the everinc reas ingpopu larityofi-c onnec tamong
s c heme employers whic h enables them to provid e the A d minis tration Team with
s c heme member d ata elec tronic ally on a monthly bas is ratherthan a fu ll12 month
rec onc iliation exerc is e immed iately following the end ofthe s c heme year.

2.2 Valuation 2019

Following the s u c c es s fu lc ompletion ofYearEnd 20 19, as d es c ribed above, O ffic ers
were able to foc u s on prod u c ing the s c heme memberd ata extrac ts req u ired by the
P ens ion Fu nd ’ s A c tu ary, B arnettW ad d ingham . Thes e extrac ts willc ontribu te toward s
the c alc u lation of alls c heme employerc ontribu tions rates payable forthree s c heme
years beginning 1 A pril20 20 . Following s ix provis ionald ata ru ns , u s ed by O ffic ers to
id entify and c orrec terrors , finald ata extrac ts were s u bmitted on 2 7 Ju ne 20 19.

The feed bac k rec eived from the A c tu ary s o far has been thatthe q u ality of d ata
provid ed is ofan exc ellents tand ard .

2.3 Data Quality Exercise

The P ens ions Regu lator (tP R) expec ts allUK pens ion s c hemes to meas u re the
pres enc e and ac c u rac y ofthe d ata they hold , and pu tplans in plac e to res olve is s u es
where they find them.

S inc e O ffic ers rec eived the res u lts of the firs td ata c leans e from heywood ’ s , the
provid erofthe P ens ion Fu nd ’ s altair pens ion ad minis tration s oftware, efforts have been
on going to improve the res u lts in res pec tof C ommon and S c heme S pec ific d ata in
read ines s forthe nextd ata c leans e.

The s ec ond d atac leans e was s c hed u led forO c tober20 19 bu twiththe earlyc ompletion
ofYearEnd 20 19 and Valu ation d ata alread y s u bmitted to the A c tu ary, O ffic ers as ked
heywood ’ s to perform the s ec ond d ata c leans e d u ringA u gu s t20 19.

The res u lts remain ou ts tand ingbu taremind erofthe res pec tive s c ores rec eived d u ring
the firs td ata c leans e in O c tober20 1 8 are s hown below:

Data Item Pass rate Member records without
a single failure

C ommon 98 . 8 5% 91 . 3%
S c heme S pec ific 97 . 58 % 8 6. 1%

O ffic ers willreportthe res u lts of the s ec ond d ata c leans e atthe earlies tavailable
opportu nity.

201



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

203

Agenda Item 11
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

205

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

207

Agenda Item 12
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Declarations of Interest
	3 Minutes
	4 Terms of Reference
	5 Pension Fund Panels Work-Plan
	6 Approval of Annual Report and Accounts 2018/19
	7 Internal Audit Report – Pensions and Payroll and Administration
	8 RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY AND RISK ASSESSMENT REGISTER
	9 Administration Report
	11 Minutes
	IG Mins

	12 INVESTMENT PERFORMANCE UPDATE–LPPI

